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U.S. SENATE,
COMMITTEE ON THE JUDICIARY,

Wa8hington, D.C.
The committee met, pursuant to notice, at 10:35 a.m., in room 2228,

Dirksen Senate Office Building, Senator James 0. Eastland (chair-
man) presiding.

Present: Senators Eastland, McClellan, Hart, Kennedy, Byrd, Tun-
ney, Hruska, Fong, Cook, and Gurney.

Also present: Peter M. Stockett, Francis C. Rosenberger, Thomas D.
Hart, and Hite McLean, of the committee staff.

The CHAIRMAN. The committee will come to order.
Senator Saxbe, identify yourself for the record.
Senator SAXBE. Senator Eastland, members of the committee, I

am here as a nominee for the Office of Attorney General and with me
is my colleague, Senator Robert Taft.

The CHAIRMAN. Excuse me, Bob. Have you got a statement?

TESTIMONY OF ROBERT TAFT, JR., U.S. SENATOR FROM 0HI0
Senator TAFT. Thank you, Mr. Chairman, members of the

committee.
It would be presumptuous for me to make any formal statement on

this occasion, but it is a great pleasure for me to be here before
the committee and to have the honor and privilege of being here on
the occasion of the nomination of my colleague, Bill Saxbe, for the
position of Attorney General. I have known Bill as a good friend
and a coworker for many years, a colleague in the Senate, and a fellow
member of the bar. I have the highest opinion of his character and
of his abilities, and I am here today to urge the committee to confirm
Bill Saxbe as an excellent candidate and magnificently qualified, I
think, by his vast experience as speaker of the house in Ohio, and as
attorney general of Ohio, not once but twice, for quite a number of
years, and as an outstanding legislator here in Washington, and I
think as an outstanding American.

Mr. Chairman, I am going to leave Mr. Saxbe here to his testimony
and I explain that I also have another distinguished colleague whom
I have to present to the Foreign Relations Committee. This seems
to be "nominations morning."

Thank you.



[Senator Hruska subsequently submitted the following statement
for the record:]

STATEMENT OF SENATOR ROMAN L. HRUSKA

Mr. Chairman, I have no questions but would like to make a brief statement of
commendation and support for Senator Saxbe's nomination to be Attorney
General.

In nominating Senator Saxbe, President Nixon has abided by the longstand-
ing tradition of selecting an individual with a seasoned, varied and wide experi-
ence in the law. Senator Saxbe has also developed a broad background in admin-
istration and legislation on both the state and federal levels. As an active member
of the Ohio bar, as a member of the Ohio State Legislature, as Attorney General
of Ohio, and as a United States Senator, William Saxbe has distinguished him-
self. This background of knowledge and participation In the law will serve him
well in discharging his duties as Attorney General.

Over the last five years, Senator Saxbe has become well-known to his col-
leagues. His reputation for ability and integrity can be simply described as first-
rate. Thus, rather than seeking answers to specific questions, it might be well for
us to draw on our experience with him and our observations of him. He has proved
himself to be knowledgeable, diligent, dedicated, and patriotic. He has faith and
loyalty to his country.

We can therefore look forward to a steady, intelligent pursuit and discharge
of the duties of the United States Attorney General upon confirmation of this
colleague.

We wish him well.
The CHAIRMAN. Senator Kennedy?
Senator KENNEDY. Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.
I want to join in congratulating you, Senator Saxbe, in gaining the

confidence of the President and receiving the nomination to the posi-
tion o.f Attorney General. And I want to extend a warm word of wel-
come to you here before this committee. I know many of us on this
committee have had the opportunity to work with you in a variety of
legislative matters in the past, and have benefited from this experience.
I think all of the members of this committee have recognized the effec-
tiveness with which you have represented your viewpoint and the
people of Ohio in the United States Senate. I particularly enjoyed the
opportunity of working with you on health matters. This has been an
area of particular interest to you, and I have enjoyed that association
and working relationship.

I think you will understand, perhaps better than most, this com-
mittee's heavy responsibility, particularly in these crucial times, to
thoroughly examine several matters of special interest to this commit-
tee. I hope that the assurances that you will give to this committee and
to the American people will reassure them that the President's nominee
will be a person who is committed to a sense of justice and fairness and
will work tirelessly in restoring this sense to the American people. So,
I hope that you will be patient with us as we review some of these areas
with you this morning, and I think that we have, as I am sure you
would agree, a heavy burden in a number of these areas to explore in
significant detail your views on a variety of questions.

One area that I have had the opportunity of talking with you about
is the Kent State investigation. I have questioned every nominee for
the position of Attorney General since the time of the tragedy. I hpve
rmestioned both Mr. Mitchell and Mr. Kleindienst, as well as Mr.
Richardson. about the Justice Department's interest in this particu-
lar matter. Through Mr. Richardson and Mr. Pottinger, this investi-



gation was reopened and just last evening, Mr. Pottinger stated that
a grand jury probe will begin next Tuesday. You, as a Senator from
Ohio, took an interest in this tragedy and made statements about it
and I would like to have your view as to whether you intend to be in-
volved in future decisions and determinations that will be made by the
Justice Department in this particular investigation?

TESTIMONY OF WILLIAM B. SAXBE, U.S. SENATOR FROM OHIO,
NOMINEE TO BE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Senator SAXBE. Senator Kennedy, the investigation that is going
on at the present time, as you say, is going to impanel a grand jury.
I was informed of this last night. I have not talked to Mr. Pottinger.
In fact, I have never met Mr. Pottinger, even though he is from Ohio,
and I welcome this. In fact, when he announced some 2 weeks ago
that he hoped to have a decision on whether they were going to call
a grand jury sometime in the middle of December, I welcomed it and
I hoped that they would.

If, however, they have, as a result of this grand jury, further pro-
ceedings, it is my intention to remove myself from any participation. I
do not say recuse. I know there is such a word and I looked it up.
Recuse indicates that you withdraw yourself because of prejudice.
I do not believe that I have any prejudice in this matter, and I feel
I could be completely objective in it because the tragic series of events
that brought about Kent State and other incidents in other places,
was a sad chapter in American history. However, because I am from
Ohio, because I spent many years with the Ohio National Guard,
because I am intimately acquainted, although I never served with
or under any of these officers, and I do believe that it would be reason-
able to remove myself from any decision as to the proceedings, and I
am quite willing to do this. And I mean that in the complete sense
of the word and complete fairness. In other words, there will be no
equivocation on my part if any decision is to be made, other than the
Department will make.

Senator KENNEDY. Can you tell us who that might be? Would that
be Mr. Pottinger or the Deputy Attorney General?

Senator SAXBE. I would presume that it would be the deputy whom
I have not yet selected. I just do not think that you could turn it over
to the individual bureau chiefs because they are going to come, not
only wanting direction, they are going to come wanting advice. And
I will also instruct the deputy to discuss this with you if the time
should arrive, because I think that would be completely fair. I do -not
think there is anybody in this country that wants to get to the bottom
of this more than I do. I also wanted to proceed with dispatch. I think
the dragging of it out is an injustice to the people involved and also
to the people of the country to lead them to believe that there was,
or is, a conspiracy, unless there is evidence forthcoming of such a con-
spiracy and that, of course, I hope that is what he is going to find out.

Senator KENNFDY. Well, I appreciate your response to that. I think
that it is an admirable position, and I welcome it.

One of the important aspects of your job as Attorney General, at
least until the Congress acts on the Special Prosecutor legislation, is



for the supervision of the Watergate investigation and related offenses.
With respect to that responsibility, have you made any judgments
yourself on the possible guilt or innocence of the President, or other
high administration officials?

Senator SAXBE. No. Prior to being named as the nominee, I could
make a lot of observations, and did. But I think that when I come into
the office of Attorney General, I have to come in, not with a presump-
tion or with a belief in either guilt or innocence; I have to work with
the facts that are presented to me, and it is my intention to work com-
pletely in harmony with the Special Prosecutor. I have read the
charter, understand it, under which he operates. It is extremely broad
and comprehensive, and in some ways has even more authority than
the Attorney General. And I am also aware of the consensus needed
before he can be dismissed, and I thoroughly agree with these and I
feel myself bound by both the charter and the consensus agreement.
I again hope that it proceeds with dispatch because the people of the
entire world are watching it.

Senator KNNE D . You made some statements or comments about
certain conclusions that you drew after your meeting with the Presi-
dent. Is your statement now before the committee that you are com-
pletely open with regard to both the investigation and as to the guilt
or innocence of any of the administration people including the Presi-
dent himself?

Senator SAxTnE. Well, of course, the ones that have already been con-
victed that are involved in the affair, there is no question on that. As
to our system of laws, there is a presumption of innocence until proven
otherwise, and I do assume that position.

Senator KEFNNEDY. Is that the presumption that you were referring
to when you responded to questions after your meeting at the White
House ?

Senator SAXBE. Yes; that presumption of innocence.
Senator KENNEDY. Did you talk with the President about either

the Segretti case, the financ'ing of his campaign or the Ellsberg break-
in?

Senator SAXBE. Not in great deal; no, I did not. He assured me in
broad terms, and I might say that even though we talked some 2 hours,
we did not have the time to go into the various details, nor was I
equipped with specific knowledge and charges to go into it. He as-
sured me he was in no way involved and welcomed a complete probe.
You have got to recall that this was a time that Jaworski was being
considered. In fact, I had never heard of Jaworski until the same day,
when later in that day I was called back to meet Mr. Jaworski. And he
stated that he did not know Mr. Jaworski, but he was recommended as
a qualified, industrious, and capable lawyer who would vigorously
investigate. He said he welcomed this because he was in no way in-
volved before the fact or after the fact.

Senator KFNNEDT. Well, would you say then that you had not really
prejudged the case with regard to the President in regard to his par-
ticipation or implication in any of the Watergate matters? Is this an
open question, or would you say you have reached some conclusion?

Senator SAxmE. I have not reached a conclusion and I certainly have
no intention of reaching a conclusion while this investigation is pend-
ing.



Senator KENNEDY. You also stated that you were satisfied that the
President acted honorably in the matters that have arisen since Water-
gate. Was your statement that day based on that conversation ?

Senator SAXBIE. Based on his statement.
Senator KE.-N EDY. On his statement to you? Not upon any detailed

examination of some of the principal incidents of the Watergate case,
in particular?

Senator SAXBE. NO.
Senator KENNEy. You can understand, I think, Mr. Saxbe, how im-

portant it is to have a response to these questions. I would imagine
that if Mr. Jaworski and his staff felt that there was a prejudgment
on your part or that you had some preconceived view, this may very
well have an impact in terms of the Special Prosecutor's actions.

Senator SAXBE. I understand.
Senator KNmED-y. If you have not prejudged the matter and you are

open with regard to it, I think that is important for the Special Pros-
ecutor to understand.

Senator SAXBE. I agree.
Senator KENNEDY. In regard to the Special Prosecutor's charter,

members of this committee felt that the President stood behind the
charter that was initially established under Mr. Cox and Mr. Richard-
son. I will not review in'detail the various statements that he made and
others have made which led us to that conclusion. We have had in more
recent times the expressions by Mr. Bork that there has been altera-
tions in that charter on two particular points:

(1) Requirement of a consensus of congressional leaders for the
dismissal of the Special Prosecutor; and

(2) Requirement of a consensus of congressional leaders in, limiting
the independence of the Special Prosecutor.

Could you tell us what is your understanding of what consensus
really means in terms of the dismissal of the Special Prosecutor? How
would you interpret "consensus"? Obviously, if you are going to get
to that particular point, your counsel or advice I think would be ter-
ribly important.

Senator SAXB.. My interpretation is by "consensus" you mean six
or more votes out of eight-six, seven or eight votes. A simple majority
is not enough. If it meant a simple majority, they would have said a
majority. Therefore, I presume that, and I would consider it to be
binding on me, that it would have to be six, seven or eight votes.

Senator KENE-. That would agree to the firing of the Special
Prosecutor?

Senator SAXBB. Yes, sir.
Senator KENTwNED. Can you tell us what you consider to be justifiable

reasons for the firing of a special prosecutor? In our initial charter,
we used gross impropriety as a standard. Could you tell us what condi-
tions you believe would be justifiable in the firing of a special
prosecutor?

Senator SAXBE. Gross impropriety would mean conduct that would
unfavorably reflect upon the country or the judicial system of the
country, and by that I mean irresponsible activities that would shock
not only the bar but the citizenry of the world. The other reason I
would ihink of would be failure to proceed. In other words, if activity



was stopped for any reason. I think that would be grounds and that
is about the extent of it.

Senator KENNEDY. Therefore it is your under standing. tht request.-
ing information or raising the issue of Executive privilee, andpmr-
suing that within the courts of law, or conducting the various invest-
Pitions to the limit which the Special Prosecutor feels is fair and rea-
sonable, would not be the basis for such a dismissal ?

Senator SAxB No. And I would go even further, that I personally
pledge to him any assistance that is reasonable and we can furnish
from the Department.

Senator KE.NNrEDy. Could you tell me whether you were consulted
by Mr. Bork when this consensus provision was developed? Were you
a part of these discussions, or was that matter settled when you were
approached by the White House to be Attorney General?

Senator SAXBE. It was settled before I came on board. However,
the discussion of what consensus meant, I was there in General Haig's
office when that came up.

Senator KENNEDY. Is General Haig's view of consensus the same as
your own?

Senator SAXBE. Yes, sir.
Senator KENNEDY. So General Haig's view is that it should be six or

seven out of the eight congressional leaders?
Senator SAXBE. Six, seven, or eight.
Senator KFNNIEDY. Well, the President has been using nine names,

but I think the addition works up to only eight?
Senator SAxBE. I would say more than six.
Senator KIENNDy. More than six.
Senator SAXBE. Six or more.
Senator KEINNEDY. Are you aware that the question of consensus was

also applied to the President's limiting the jurisdiction of the Special
Prosecutor? As you probably know from the newspapers and reading
through the record, this committee reviewed in very considerable de-
tail with both Mr. Richardson and Mr. Cox, the various jurisdictional
questions that had been raised by the White House, before they left
their jobs. During the course of these examinations, Mr. Cox expressed
the view that he felt there were pressures being exerted from the White
House to limit his independence. I think it would be fair to say that he
never felt that Mr. Richardson was applying undue or improper pres-
sure, but that Mr. Cox concluded that some pressures were being
exerted.

In the initial charter which was drafted here, we left the matter of
jlrisdiction up to the Special Prosecutor. Mr. Bork, in response to an
inquiry by me. indicated that jurisdiction could be limited: "I have
amended the charter to make clear that the consensus provision ap-
plies to removal and to limits on jurisdiction.'

I felt strongly that this was an additional limitation to the juris-
diction guarantee which we had agreed upon. Do you feel that it was
necessary to have the consensus of this congressional group apply to
jurisdictional questions, or should we leave jurisdictional questions in
the hands of the Special Prosecutor?

Senator SAXBE. I do not know what the thinking was on that. It
seems to me that it would be entirely reasonable, however, that the



leadership in Congress could have an attitude. I can only think of it
in connection with national security or something like that, however.
I do not think it is a limiting factor. I would think that any dismissal
would bring with it a whole host of other things, as well as impro-
priety in the name of impropriety that would affect the jurisdiction.
Once you would say there is impropriety, gross impropriety, your
reasoning could be that you felt that he was endangering national se-
curity, something like that. Now, that is just a curbstone opinion that
I give you here today.

Senator KENNEDY. I think that some of the matters that were raised
in these jurisdictional questions were whether the investigations into
San Clemente fell within the jurisdiction of Mr. Cox or whether the
Hughes loan fell within the jurisdiction of Mr. Cox. As you are prob-
ably familiar, Mr. Richardson submitted to this committee a rather
detailed memorandum which outlined the areas of jurisdiction be-
tween the Department and the Special Prosecutor. Why, then, should
there be an additional requirement that jurisdictional matters be left
up to the leaders of Congress when prior to this letter, which Mr. Bork
sent to me on November 20, jurisdiction was left up to the Department
of Justice and the Special Prosecutor?

Senator SAXBE. I cannot give you any better reason than I have.
Senator KENNEDY. Don't you feel that you could work out the juris-

dictional matters between yourself and Mr. Jaworski?
Senator SAXBE. I do.
Senator KENNEDY. Is it really necessary to bring the leaders of the

Congress into this matter?
Senator SAXBE. I do not think so, but again, I do not know the moti-

vation for that letter. It seems to me that the Special Prosecutor has a
much broader power in this area than even the Attorney General be-
cause of that special charter. And I really think that Mr. Jaworski
will come to me only when he needs specific assistance which I will be
happy to give him.

Senator KENNEDY. Well, on this point, could we possibly examine
this particular detail after this hearing to see if this could be worked
out?

Senator SAXBE. Yes, sir.
Senator KENNEDY. In fairness to you, I did not have a chance to

mention that I was going to bring this matter up. But I think you
have been responsive. I would like to see if we could review it so that
these matters of jurisdiction could be decided by you and the Special
Prosecutor, without the necessity of involving the congressional
leaders.

Senator SAXBE. That would be my intention.
Senator KENNEDY. What matters do you expect that Mr. Jaworski

would bring to your attention, and what matters do you feel that you
would bring to his attention?

Senator SAXB-E. Well, again I refer to the charter, that the powers are
so broad that they are going to be able to operate entirely on their own.
He has the authority to instigate actions in the courts. He certainly can
proceed in almost any area of investigation that he wants to. I really
do not contemplate having a great deal of contact with Mr. Jaworski.

Senator KENNEDY. During the time Mr. Richardson was Attorney
General, he indicated that he wanted to be kept generally aware of the



scope of the investigation, but he felt that beyond that the Special
Prosecutor ought to move in his own direction.

Senator SAXBE. I agree.
Senator KNN7DY. What is going to be your reaction if you are

called to the White House on some of these jurisdictional matters?
Senator SAXBE. Well, my attitude will be to resist anything which

would detract from the power of the charter.
Senator KENNEDY. Who should the White House contact on a juris-

dictional matter? Should they call you and then you call Mr. Jaworski;
or should they call Jaworski, or should they not call either one of you?

Senator SAXBE. Well, I would certainly not want to put up any
barriers to the President ever calling the Attorney General for any
reasons. But I certainly, on the other hand, am familiar with the
charter and the will of Congress in this matter. It is certainly well
demonstrated in that charter as to the strength of it and, as I 'say, I
would resist any change in the charter. If there is a question of the
construction, I would be happy to be available to either one, but I
think I understand it.

Senator KNNEDY. If you were called to the White House on juris-
dictional matters, would you feel that there was any reason why you
could not keep this committee informed of that?

Senator SAxBE. No.
Senator KENFDY. Well, would you?
Senator SAXBE. I certainly would feel that I had an obligation tothe Congress, who put the charter together, to keep them informed

if there was any evasion or misunderstanding.
Senator KENNEDY. Well, just on the question of jurisdiction, could

you keep us informed as to what matters were raised with you? I don'tmean the substance of these matters but the fact that there was a
dispute?

enator SAXUE. Yes.
Now, I think you understand that the question of volunteering in-formation is something that you never understand what would be thenature of that. In other words, what would be an insignificant pointto me, you might consider to be of great importance. And I certainlywould not want to be pulled up short 3 months later and say, Why

didn't you tell us this! If I think it is of significant importance, I
will.

Senator KENN-DY. Well, if there was any matter affecting the juris-
diction of the Special Prosecutor-

Senator SAXBE. Or tampering with the charter.
Senator KENN=Y. Wouldn't that be a matter on these jurisdictionalissues or questions, which would be important to this committee?
Senator SAXBE. I understand, and that would be reasonable.Senator KENNEDY. If you could inform us as to these situations, Ithink it would be very helpful.
Senator SAXR& I do not think that is unreasonable, and I would

do it.
Senator KNNEDY. On the question of the Special Prosecutor's staff,

do you feel that you would have any power to either hire or fire any
of the Special Prosecutor's staff?

Senator SAXEE. No.



Senator KENNEDY. Do you think that ought to be a decision made
solely by the Special Prosecutor?

Senator SAXBE. I do.
Senator KENEDY. Should he be given complete authority and

flexibility?
Senator SAXBE. Yes, and that is specific in the charter.
Senator KENNEDY. If the President should claim executive privi-

lege as to certain documents or information, in your opinion should
the Special Prosecutor have the sole discretion of deciding whether
to challenge that claim in court?

Senator SAXBE. I think he does at the present time and he can go
to court at any time to determine that. And I think that is where it
belongs, in the court, to determine what is privileged or what has been
waived.

Senator KENNEDY. Do you think he ought to have the sole authority
to make a decision whether that matter should be raised in the court?

Senator SAXBE. Yes, I do.
Senator KENNEDY. So, he would not have to bring these issues to

your attention?
Senator SAXBE. No. In fact, I would volunteer to help him in any

situation where he felt that he needed help. I think this is specific.
Senator KENNEDy. I am sure you have been asked, Senator, about

your Hong Kong speech. I think there has been a good deal written
about it. I think it is appropriate, at least in terms of the record that
is being made by this committee, to have an opportunity for you to
respond. I have read your reactions to it and your press releases on
it but I think we ought to have your views here in order to have a
complete record.

Senator SAxBE. Well, the only thing I can say is that as a Senator
I had the privilege of expressing my opinions rather freely, some-
thing which is not going to be so easy as Attorney General in a quasi-
judicial position.

Senator KENEDY. You have a reputation for candor and speaking
right from the heart.

Senator SAXBE. Well, I do, and I hope I can continue this within the
limits of propriety. This was at a breakfast meeting in Hong Kong,
casual, and I might add in a rather light vein. My statements in Hong
Kong were based on the fact that I think that if the majority of the
people in a room know that the room is bugged they are not going to
say any incriminating things. I thing that this is understandable and I
have maintained that the tapes would produce nothing because every-
one in there knew that the room, that any conversation, was being
taped. All of the principals, at least knew it and those are the ones
that were concerned about it. And I have just felt this way and I ex-
pressed it at that time. Other statements, again many facetious but with
a grain of truth in all of them, were based upon my reading of what
was going on. The statement that the tapes could be destoyed; I did
say that they could be destroyed if they had incriminating testimony
because they are in the hands of the people that made that tape. But I
certainly did not indicate that any illegal act should be performed, nor
did I advocate it nor would I.



Senator KENNEDY. The transcript that was printed in the newspaper
said:

I personally wish I had never heard of the tapes. Unless they are incriminating
I think you should give them up. If they are incriminating, they should be de-
stroyed, and I am sure they will, but I think he Is right in saying the President
cannot be 'horsed around' in the courts. I believe the President is exactly right
when he says he can be impeached, but he cannot be 'horsed around' in the courts,
which is what he is saying.

Senator SAXBE. We attempted to get that tape to verify what was in
it and he did not have it, and he said he wrote this from memory. What
I said was that they could be destroyed.

Senator KENNEDY. By who?
Senator SAXBE. By whoever had possession of them.
Senator KENNEDY. In other words, whoever had them physically

had the power to destroy them?
Senator SAxEE. Yes.
Senator KENNEDY. Did you mean whoever had them physically had

the right to destroy them?
Senator SAXBE. No; they had the power to destroy them. What I

was talking about is that it is not customary for people to bug them-
selves and say incriminating things. And if they do, then it never sees
the light of day.

Senator KENNEDY. Whoever did destroy them would obviously
violate the canon of ethics as well as obstruct justice, would they not ?

Senator SAXBE. After it became evidence, after it became an issue.
If a tape is being made of the proceedings here this morning, and
someone wants to destroy it, there is no iMlegal act, it only becomes
illegal when that piece of tape becomes evidence and becomes part of
a legal proceeding. And the tape idea, I think, was a bad one from
the very beginning.

Senator KENNEDY. Of course, at the time of your Hong Kong
speech, there had been a request for the tapes, so it would have been
obstruction of justice at that time.

Senator SAxBFn Now my supposition went back to the day they
were made. If you are running a tape and you say something that
you do not want to on that tape, you just back off that same day, that
wame minute.

Senator KENNEDY. I think certainly you are correct in that obvious
interpretation. I think the Watergate committee had actually re-
quested these tapes, so at the time of your statement the destruction
of the tapes would fall within the obstruction of justice statute, if it
had been requested by a congressional committee or a court. Wouldn't
that be obstruction of justice?

Senator SAXBE. After it had become an issue; yes.
Senator KEN,-NEDY. Could you tell us what your present understand-

ing is as to whether Presidential documents will be provided to the
Special Prosecutor?

Senator SAXBE. My understanding is that any necessary informa-
tion will be provided.

Senator KEN.rDY. Who is to make that decision about whether it
is necessary or not?

Senator SAXB. I would guess the Special Prosecutor.
Senator KENNEDY. It was reported yesterday that U.S. Attorney

Harold Titus stated that his office was subjected to "the most trying



and compelling pressures" during the yearlong investigation of the
Watergate scandal. He stated that his probe was conducted despite"unique and harrowing obstacles of a magnitude probably never be-
fore confronted in the annals of the administration of criminal justice
in this country." He declined to state, though, who had applied
pressures.

This is perhaps an obstruction of justice. Would you have the FBI
look into that ? Did you see that report?

Senator SAXBF No; I am not familiar with it.
Senator KENNEDy. Well, if he made those statements-
Senator SAX]%. Who is Mr. TitusI
Senator KENN-DY. Pardon?
Senator SAXBZ. Who is Mr. Titus ?
Senator KNiE . He is the U.S. attorney in Washington.
Senator SAxBE. And he was involved-
Senator KENNEDY. In the Watergate investigation. He was the U.S.

attorney that was involved in the initial hearings, and those are strong
statements if accurately reported. But let us assume that they are an
accurate reflection and that he did make those statements. Would you
feel obligated to investigate those charges?

Senator SAXIBE. I would think this would come within the Special
Prosecutor, and I would hope that he would investigate them. From
the standpoint of just any pressure on a U.S. attorney, I would cer-
tainly want to know it and to protect the U.S. attorney.

Senator KENNEDY. Mr. Chairman, the committee has been very
generous with its time. I am going to go into other areas. I will be
glad to abide by whatever procedure you desire.

The CHAIRmAN. Go ahead.
Senator IENNEDY. Thank you.
In the area of wiretapping, Mr. Saxbe, could you state what your

views are with regard to wiretapping ?
Senator SAXE. Well, wiretapping is important to me on the basis

of an invasion of an individual s rights. However, it is a tool that I do
not think law enforcement can abandon and, therefore, if it is going
to be used, it has to be used with great care. It is my understanding
that there has been a steady decline in the least 10 years in the number
of wiretappings that are in existence. I do not have a number but I
am assured that this general statement is correct.

The way that I would propose, and the way the President has
directed the sitting Attorney General to operate, is that no one could
authorize an application to the court but the Attorney General, and
only on two grounds: (1) On national security, and (2) based on
stated charges that could and would be proved by wiretapping. In
other words, wiretapping only for the purpose of leading to prosecu-
tion. And I think if we are going to preserve wiretapping as a tool for
law enforcement, this is a fair requirement in its use.

Congress has it within its power to outlaw wiretapping. It has not
seen fit to do so. Therefore, to use it circumspectly and as a tool against
a crime, is something that I would intend to do.

Senator KENNEDY. What is your view in the area of warrantless
wiretapping and electronic surveillance? The Administrative Practice
and Procedure Subcommittee which I chair, Senator Ervin's sub-



committee, and the Foreign Relations Subcommittee on Surveillance,
have agreed to undertake an investigation and to hold joint hearings
to deal with some of the national security questions in this area, and
we are working together in the development of legislation. Senator
Mathias and I are introducing legislation dealing with warrantless
wiretapping and electronic surveillance. We made requests for infor-
mation in this area from the Justice Department about 2 months
ago. I know there have been a series of upheavals there and a number
of other matters which are taking their attention. But I would appre-
ciate the opportunity of working with you and the Department in this
area, to see if we cannot obtain this information and enlist your co-
operation in the hearings which we are planning for the early part
of next year. Our concern, as I mentioned, is primarily with warrant-
less aspects as well as the electronic devices, and we hope that we can
work with you in this particular area.

Senator SAXBE. I will be happy to.
Senator KENEuY. Over the years, I have been extremely interested

in the Federal protection of Indian natural resources, and the Lands
Division of the Justice Department plays a central role in this area.
There is a situation in New Mexico concerning Pueblo water rights
where the Justice Department is representing not only the Indians
but also the various agencies of the Federal Government. So you have
the Justice Department on competing sides of the same issue. There
have been many of us who have urgedi a special, separate section with-
in the Department to handle the prosecution of cases involving Indian
rights-hunting and fishing, as well as bounaries and water--so that
there could be both in appearance, as well as in reality, an avoidance
of conflicts of interest. I would like to raise this matter with you again
sometime in the future, and hope that you would give some attention
to it.

Senator SAXBE. All right. Thank you.
Senator KENNEDy. Could we go into your position-and I think you

have expressed it at other times-with regard to gun control, pri-
marily handguns, and most particularly in the area of the Saturday
night special. We have had, since I have been here, three Attorneys
General that have taken strong positions with regard to this issue, and
we have been able, through this committee, under Senator Bayh's
direction, to pass Saturday night special legislation. Could you give us
what view you might have about the Saturday night specials which
really have no use except for the killing of human beings!

Senator SAXBE. Well, I have views that differ from Senator Ken-
nedy on this. I have been a gun collector, a marksman, a shooter all
of my life, and a hunter, and naturally, I am influenced by this back-
ground and the knowledge of guns. I live in the District. When I
came, there was a registration law, a very stiff registration law, which
requires the registration of guns in the District. I hoped that this
would be vigorously prosecuted. It is not. There are no cases brought
under it. Itis disturbing to me to pass a law and then to find that it
is not being enforced in the courts here in the District.

I personally believe that the Saturday night special is an abomina-
tion. It is of no value for anything but shooting somebody and prefer-
ably a friend because you cannot get close enough to anybody else. I



have no great objection to legislation, but I question the ability to
enforce it if you have to go on the basis of what they have been able
to do where it is already outlawed here in the District of Columbia.

I have registered my guns which I keep in my home because I do
shoot clay targets and, on occasion, o hunting. But the person whohas the Saturday night special here does not register it and uses it to
commit crimes.

I have supported every bill that has come along to increase the
penalty; and in the Senate, at least, the bills have been successful to
step up this penalty. I voted for Senator Mansfield's bill. I voted for
several of the other bills which I thought should make a felony out of
any carrying of a Saturday night special or any other kind of a
weapon. And certainly having an unregistered weapon in the District
should come under this, but it is not enforced.

Part of my attitude is based on the fact that even though I am not
a mechanic or particularly adept with my hands, I can make a gun
in half a day out of readily available material. I wish there was some
way that we could control violence, and it is going to be my attempt to
do this in the Attorney General's Office, but I do not believe that thehoped for effects of outlawing guns could come about.

Now, I want to say that I would vigorously enforce any law that
this Congress passes on guns. I have no inhibitions about that. I willdo it to the full extent of ooffice, and I certainly am not going to

intervene in any deliberations here on gun activity. But I think I do
have to be fair in giving my own background in this area.

Senator KENeDY. Thank you very much, Senator Saxbe.
Senator McCLuLLAn. Mr. Chairman, I have to go to the floor in afew minutes to handle a supplemental appropriation bill. I do not

care to ask the nominee any questions, but I would like to just make
a very brief statement for the record.

The CHAnRMAk. Proceed.
Senator MCCLELLAN. Mr. Chairman, I am fully satisfied that this

nominee possesses the requisite professional qualifications to most
credibly perform the duties of the high office of the Attorney General
of the United States. And his stature of character and personal integ-
rity is such as to strongly commend him as being worthy of the trust
and the honor which this nomination confers.

I have entertained some doubts about his eligibility because of the
constitutional issue involved, and I still have some doubts. But, the
Congress, insofar as it can do so, has undertaken to remove that doubt.
If the change in salary law recently enacted is valid, then there is no
reason now why this nominee should not be confirmed. Therefore, I
shall gladly vote for his confirmation. I am confident that he will
carry out his duties fairly, impartially, and vigorously. I am proud
to support his nomination.

I have never had any reluctance whatsoever to give him my en-
dorsement for this position, except from a constitutional technicality
that did give me some concern.

Senator SAxBE.. Thank you, Senator McClellan.
Senator MCCLELLAN. Thank you very much for yielding.
The CHAIRMAN. Senator Byrd?
Senator BYRD. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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Mr. Saxbe, I wish first to congratulate you on the choice of the
President in nominating you for this important office. Second, I want
to say for the record that I, too, see no problem insofar as your pro-
fessional qualifications are concerned. I see no problem insofar as you,
personally, are concerned with respect to your integrity and character,
and moral fitness, so far as I know.

I have had some concern, however, with regard to the constitutional
inhibition involved in paragraph 2, clause 6, article I of the Consti-
tition. My efforts with respect to opposing the so-called Attorney
General pay bill on the floor were not meant to have any personal
thrust whatsoever. The Congress has now spoken in regard to that bill.
In my own mind, nevertheless, I am not at all sure that the Congress
has the power to remove that constitutional disqualification. But that
will have to be decided by the court eventually I assume.

I suppose I could vote for your confirmation, even though I strenu-
ously opposed the pay bill on constitutional grounds. At this point, I
want to at least feel that I am still reviewing that aspect. I still feelas strongly as ever that there is a constitutional inhibition and that it
cannot be removed by legislation. But the amendment which I offered
on the floor paves the way for an expedited hearing if anyone should
seek a court decision.

I am desirous of asking questions in one area today, that being thearea involving the Special Prosecutor. I have asked the chairman to
request that Mr. Jaworski come to the hearing room. I think it isimperative that the committee get your assurance of a strong commit-ment to Mr. Jaworski, and I think it is important to Mr. Jaworskithat he not only be able to read that commitment in the record, but
that he also be present when that commitent is made.I doubt that I can adequately explain to you how uncomfortable Iam in asking questions of you. I like you, personally, and I respectyou as my peer, and I certainly do not relish the prospect of interrogat-ing a colleague. But I also feel that I have a duty as a member of thiscommittee, and as a Member of the Senate, to satisfy in my own mind,and certainly to establish for the record, if I possibly can, preciselywhat your position will be insofar as your support of the Special
Prosecutor is concerned, what your commitment is, whether or not youwill seek to protect him from pressures emanating in the White House,and how far you will go in supporting his actions as they are en-
visioned in the Charter.

With that prefatory statement, Mr. Chairman, I am ready now to
begin my questioning.

The C-I.Tmh I.N. Mr. Jaworski is in the room.
Senator SAXBE. Could I interject at this time that I certainly

understand the Senator's attitude and, in fact, I welcome it because i,too, am interested in getting it exactly straight and I think, withSenator Kennedy's questions, we helped to work out some of it. And itis my intention to vigorously support not only Mr. Jaworski but every.body else connected with thfe Attorney General's office in regard to notonly crimes and misdemeanors in the White House but in every otherpart of this country without any reservation, and it is a covenant thatI have made with myself on this thing, that the chips were going tohave to fall where tfiey may, regardless of who is involved, whether



they are friends, acquaintances, or recommended by somebody. I am
sure there will be and I was the Attorney General in a State of 11
million people for a long time and you get everybody coming in with
their hat in their hand, and I am determined to meet this squarely,
not on just the White House thing but on all matters. And I am very
anxious and willing that it be spelled out in any way you think best.

Now, to the disabiilty which the Senate removed, I understand the
Senator's position. I know that he is a student of the law, but I also
point out that there is a difference of opinion on this. This week, yes-
terday or the day before, I received a letter completely volunteered
from Arthur J. Goldberg, exchanging pleasantries and he says in the
second paragraph:

I have delayed somewhat in sending this letter because I was awaiting your
confirmation by the Senate. I have no doubt it will be forthcoming. But, I regret
it has been delayed because of what I regard to be a most inconsequential con-
stitutional question.

And so there is a difference of opinion by men learned in the law.
Now I have had the attitude all the way through this that if I was

destined to be Attorney General that things would work out, and if I
am not, it is just as well.

Senator BYRD. Well, I think you are destined to become Attorney
General, M'Ir. Saxbe. But so far as I am concerned, I am not the slight-
est persuaded by Mr. Goldberg, although I respect his knowledge of
constitutional law. But, with the statement that you have made, I
think that you have prepared yourself to answer the questions which
I shall ask, and I trust that you will indulge my questions and show
your usual candor and patience. And if you can come through with
firm answers to my qestions, I believe you will have satisfied a good
many Members of the Senate in this area.

Now, Mr. Chairman, would I be asking too much-
The CHAIRMAN. Let us have order please.
Senator BYRD [continuing]. Would I be asking too much to request

that Mr. Jaworski come forward and take a seat at the table?
The CHAIRMAN. Mr. Jaworski, sit at the table, please, sir.
Senator Bym. Mr. Chairman, I am embarrassed, really, to ask

whether or not both witnesses should be sworn? Would there be any
objection?

Mr. JAwoRsKI. None whatsoever on my part, Senator.
The CHAIRMAN. Stand up, please.
Do you both swear that you will tell the truth, the whole truth, and

nothing but the truth, so help you God?
Senator SAXBE. I do.
Mr. JAWORSM. I do.

TESTIMONY OF WILLIAM B. SAXBE, U.S. SENATOR FROM 0HI0,
NOMINEE TO BE ATTORNEY GENERAL, AND OF LEON JAWORSKI,
SPECIAL PROSECUTOR
Senator BYRD. Air. Jaworski, permit me to say to you, by way of

explanation, I asked the chairman to inquire, only within the hour,
if you could present yourself here today. May I say, incidentally,



that I looked upon your appointment 6 weeks ago with great suspi-
cion. I felt that if the Executive could employ you, it could re
vou-which it can-and I felt that your employment by the execu-
tive branch meant the executive branch would again be investigating
itself. Yet, I have been pleasantly surprised during the 6 weeks that
have passed, and I have watched with admiration the courage and
independence that you have displayed. I have been reassured also by
the fact that the Special Prosecutor's force has remained intact under
your guidance, and I have also heard, with satisfaction, some of the
ihings that reportedly have been said by the Prosecutor's force
regarding your supportiveness in their continuing efforts. I especially
want to congratulate the young lady who interrogated Rose Mar'y
Woods the other day in court. And I am encouraged greatly by your
public statements that you will secure, you will seek to secure, through
the judicial process, any evidence that you feel is necessary for the
effective and fair and objective prosecution of any crimes that may
have been committed by anyone.

Having said that, I think it only remains for me to say that I want
you to continue to pursue your duties as you have set out thus far upon
your course. You have a reputation that is as important to you as our
own reputation is to any of us who are sitting in the legislative branch.
It is also very important, in my estimation, that you have the complete
support of the Attorney General and that you positively know you
have the support of the Attorney General in your effort, which will
require continuing courage. It is for these reasons that I have asked
the chairman-and appreciate very much his acquiescence to my re-
quest-that you appear before the committee at this time. I was not
here when you were before the committee previously--on previous
occasions--and I apologize to you for the request which came to you
today without warning.

Mr. JAwORSKx. Not at all, Senator. I am glad you asked me to come.
Senator BimD. I would like first to read Justice Brandeis' dissent in

the Obwtead case on the use of wiretap evidence in a prosecution under
the Prohibition Act:

Decency, security, and liberty alike demand that government officials shall be
subjected to the same rules of conduct that are commands to the citizens. In a
government of laws, existence of the government will be imperiled if it falls to
observe the law scrupulously. Our Government is the potent, the omnipresent,
teacher. For good or for Ill, It teaches the whole people by Its example. Crime is
contagious. If the Government becomes a lawbreaker, it breeds contempt for
law; it invites every man to become a law unto himself; it invites anarchy. To
declare that In administration of the criminal law the need justifies the means--
to declare that the Government may commit crimes in order to secure the con-
viction of a private criminal-would bring terrible retribution. Against that
pernicious doctrine, this court should resolutely set Its face.

I think, Mr. Saxbe, and Mr. Jaworski. that this attitude must be the
cornerstone of the investigation of the Watergate case and all of the
related aspects. And to this end, the facts, and all of the facts, ought
to be brought to light and must be brought to light to insure the Amer-
ican people that their Government is a Government of law and not a
Government of men. And that those who operate outside the law,
no matter how high a station in life or in government they may possess,
must be answerable to the law.



Senator Kennedy has referred to the Charter which was hammered
out by Mr. Richardson in his appearance before this committee, with
the advice and assistance of the committee. I think it is important that
that Charter be read paragraph-by-paragraph at this time, because
we are about to confirm an Attorney General of the United States at a
most critical time in our country's history. I wish that he were not a
Senator. My task would be much easier. But I have faith in Bill Saxbe,
that he recognizes the problem that I have and the problems that other
Members of this committee and in the Senate have, in approaching this
matter. I most surely think we will be held to account if we were to
deal with Mr. Saxbe more tenderly than we would deal with any other
nominee, any other person who might have appeared before this com-
mittee as a nominee for the office of Attorney General.

Mr. Robert H. Bork, Acting Attorney General, reinstituted the
Office of Special Prosecutor and reinstated in the Federal Register
in November, the Charter which had been outlined in the course of the
hearings on the nomination of Mr. Richardson, but with certain
amendments to that Charter.

[The amended guidelines for the Special Prosecutor, dated Novem-
ber 2, 1973, as published in the Federal Register of November 7, 1973,
follow:]

TITLE 2 8-JUDICIAL ADMINISTRATION

CHAPTER I-DEPATmENT OF JUSTICE

[Order 551-73]

PART 0-ORGANIZATION OF THE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

ESTABLISHING THE OFFICE OF WATERGATE SPECIAL PROSECUTION FORCE

By virtue of the authority vested in me by 28 U.S.C. 509, 510 and 5 U.S.C.
301, there is hereby established in the Department of Justice, the Office of Water-
gate Special Prosecution Force, to be headed by a Director. Accordingly, Part
0 of Chapter I of Title 20, Code of Federal Regulations, is amended as follows:

1. Section 0.1 (a) which lists the organization units of the Department, is
amended by adding "Office of Watergate Special Prosecution Force" immediately
after "Office of Criminal Justice."

2. A new Subpart G-1 is added Immediately after Subpart G, to read as
follows:

SUBPART G-1-OFFICE OF WATERGATE SPECIAL PROSECUTION FORCE

Sec.
0.37 General functions.
0.38 Special functions.

AUTrHourry: 28 U.S.C. 509, 510, and 5 U.S.C.

SUBPART -I---OFFCE OF WATERGATE SPECIAL PROSECUTION FORCE
§,0.37 General functions

The Office of Watergate Special Prosecution Force shall be under the direc-
tion of a Director who shall be the Special Prosecutor appointed by the Attor-
ney General. The duties and responsibilities of the Special Prosecutor are set
forth in the attached appendix below which is incorporated and made a part
hereof.
§ 0.38 Specific functions

The Special Prosecutor is assigned and delegated the following specific func-
tions with respect to matters specified in this subpart:
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(a) Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 515(a), to conduct any kind of legal proceeding,
civil or criminal, including grand jury proceedings, which United States attor-
neys are authorized by law to conduct, and to designate attorneys to conduvt
such legal proceedings.

(b) To approve or disapprove the production or disclosure of information or
files relating to matters within his cognizance in response to a subpoena, order,
or other demand of a court or other authority. (See Part 16(B) of this chapter.)

(c) To apply for and to exercise the authority vested in the Attorney General
under 18 U.S.C. 6005 relating to immunity of witnesses in Congressional
proceedings.

The listing of these specific functions is for the purpose of illustrating the au-
thority entrusted to the Special Prosecutor and is not intended to limit in any
manner his authority to carry out his functions and responsibilities.

Dated: November 2, 1973.
ROBERT H. BORC,

Acting Attorney leneral.

APPENDIX-DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE SPECIAL PROSECUTOR

The Special Proseoutor. There is appointed by the Attorney General, within the
Department of Justice, a Special Prosecutor to whom the Attorney General
shall delegate the authorities and provide the staff and other resources described
below.

The Special Prosecutor shall have full authority for investigating and prose-
cuting offenses against the United States arising out of the unauthorized entry
into Democratic National Committee Headquarters at the Watergate, all offenss
arising out of the 1972 Presidential Election for which the Special Prosecutor
deems it necessary and appropriate to assume responsibility, allegations involv-
ing the President, members of the White House staff, or Presidential appointees,
and any other matters which he consents to have assigned to him by the Attorney
General.

In particular, the Special Prosecutor shall have full authority with respect to
the above matters for :

Conducting proceedings before grand juries and any other investigations he
deems necessary;

Reviewing all documentary evidence available from any source, as to which
he shall have full access;

Determining whether or not to contest the assertion of "Executive Privilege"
or any other testimonial privilege;

Determining whether or not application should be made to any Federal
court for a grant of immunity to any witness, consistently with applicable
statutory requirements, or for warrants, subpoenas, or other court orders;

Deciding whether or not to prosecute any individual, firm, corporation or
group of individuals;

Initiating and conducting prosecutions, framing indictments, filing informs-
tions, and handling all aspects of any cases within his jurisdiction (whether
initiated before or after his assumption of duties), including any appeals;

Coordinating and directing the activities of all Department of Justice per-
sonnel, including United States Attorneys:

Dealing with and appearing before Congressional committees having jurls-
tion over any aspect of the above matters and determining what documents,
information, and assistance shall be provided to such committees.

In exercising this authority, the Special Prosecutor will have the greatest
degree of independence that is consistent with the Attorney General's statutory
accountability for all matters falling within the jurisdiction of the Department
of Justice. The Attorney General will not countermand or interfere with the
Special Prosecutor's decisions or actions. The Special Prosecutor will determine
whether and to what extent he will Inform or consult with the Attorney General
about the conduct of his duties and responsibilities. In accordance with assur-
ances given by the President to the Attorney General that the President will
not exercise his Constitutional powers to effect the discharge of the Special
Prosecutor or to limit the independence that he is hereby given, the Special
Prosecutor will not be removed from his duties except for extraordinary im-
proprieties on his part and without the President's first consulting the Majority
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and the Minority Leaders and Chairmen and ranking Minority Members of the
Judiciary Committees of the Senate and House of Representatives and ascer-
taining that their consensus is in accord with his proposed action,

STAFF AND RESOURCE SUPPORT

1. Selection of Staff. The Special Prosecutor shall have full authority to
organize, select, and hire his own staff of attorneys, investigators, and support-
ing personnel, on a full or part-time basis, in such numbers and with such
qualifications as he may reasonably require. He may request the Assistant
Attorneys General and other officers of the Department of Justice to assign
such personnel and to provide such other assistance as he may reasonably
require. All personnel in the Department of Justice, including United States
Attorneys, shall cooperate to the fullest extent possible with the Special
Prosecutor.

2. Budget. The Special Prosecutor will be provided with such funds and
facilities to carry out his responsibilities as he may reasonably require. He
shall have the right to submit budget requests for funds, positions, and other
assistance, and such requests shall receive the highest priority.

3. Designation and responsibility. The personnel acting as the staff and
assistants of the Special Prosecutor shall be known as the Watergate Special
Prosecution Force and shall be responsible only to the Special Prosecutor.

Continued responsibilities of Assistant Attorney General, Criminal Division.
Except for the specific investigative and prosecutorial duties assigned to the
Special Prosecutor, the Assistant Attorney General in charge of the Criminal
Division will continue to exercise all of the duties currently assigned to him.

Applicable departmental policies. Except as otherwise herein specified or as
mutually agreed between the Special Prosecutor and the Attorney General, the
Watergate Special Prosecution Force will be subject to the administrative
regulations and policies of the Department of Justice.

Public reports. The Special Prosecutor may from time to time make public
such statements or reports as he deems appropriate and shall upon completion
of his assignment submit a final report to the appropriate persons or entities
of the Congress.

Duration of assignment. The Special Prosecutor will carry out these respon-
sibilities, with the full support of the Department of Justice, until such time
as, in his judgment, he has completed them or until a date mutually agreed
upon between the Attorney General and himself.

[A further amendment to the guidelines for the Special Prosecutor,
dated November 19, 1973, as published in the Federal Register of
November 28, 1973, follows:]

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL,
Washington, D.C.

TITLE 28-JDICIAL ADMINISTRATION

CHAPTER I-DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

PART O-ORGANIZATION OF THE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Subpart G-i-Office of Watergate Special Prosecution Force

[Order No. 554-73]

AMENDING THE REGULATIONs ESTALISHING THE OFFICE OF WATERGATE SPECIAL
PROSECUTION FORCE

By virtue of the authority vested in me by 28 U.S.C. 509, 510 and 5 U.S.C.
301, the last sentence of the fourth paragraph of the Appendix to Subpart G--1
is amended to read as follows:

In accordance with assurances given by the President to the Attorney General
that the President will not exercise his Constitutional powers to effect the
discharge of the Special Prosecutor or to limit the independence that he is



hereby given, (1) the Special Prosecutor will not be removed from his duties
except for extraordinary improperties on his part and without the President's
first consulting the Majority and the Minority Leaders and Chairmen and rank-
ing Minority Members of the Judiciary Committees of the Senate and House of
Representatives and ascertaining that their consensus is in accord with his
proposed action, and (2) the jurisdiction of the Special Prosecutor will not be
limited without the President's first consulting with such Members of Congres."
and ascertaining that their consensus is in accord with his proposed action.

Date: November 19, 1973.
ROBERT H. BORK,

Acting Attorney General.
Senator B i-D. I shall begin with "Subpart G-1: Office of Watergate

Special Prosecution Force":
GENERAL FUNCTIONS

The Office of Watergate Special Prosecution Force shall be under the direc-
tion of a Director who shall be the Special Prosecutor appointed by the Attorney
General. The duties and responsibilities of the Special Prosecutor are set forth
in the attached appendix which is incorporated and made a part hereof.

SPECIFIC FUNCTIONS

The Special Prosecutor is assigned and delegated the following specific func-
tions with respect to matters specified in this sub-part -

(a) Pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 515(a), to conduct any kind of legal proceeding,
civil or criminal, including grand jury proceedings, which United States Attorneys
are authorized by law to conduct, and to designate attorneys to conduct such legal
proceedings.

Do you see these as among your functions, Mr. Jaworski ?
Mr. JAwoRsxI. Indeed I do, Senator.
Senator BYrD. Do you have any question, Mr. Saxbe with respect

to that paragraph and its imposition on Mr. Jaworski ol his responsi-
bilities as Special Prosecutor?
Senator SxBE. No.
Senator Bymn. Do you agree that he has the authority to conduct

any kind of legal proceedings, civil or criminal, including grand jury
proceedings, which U.S. attorneys are authorized by law to conduct,
and to deimgnate attorneys to conduct such legal proceedings?

Senator SAXBE. I think that is very pointed.
Senator Bmi. And you agree with that?
Senator SAXBE. Yes.
Senator BymD. Paragraph (b) of "Specific functions":
(b) To approve or disapprove the production or disclosure of Information

or files relating to matters within his cognizance in response to a subpena, order,
or other demand of a court or other authority.

Mr. Jaworski, do you see that as your duty and responsibility?
Mr. JAwoRsKi. I do, Senator Byrd.
Senator Bnw. And you will pursue to the best of your ability the

requirement of that paragraph ?
Mr. JAWOESKi. I have undertaken to do so, sir, and I will continue to.
Senator Byrd. Now, Mr. Saxbe, will you support Mr. Jaworski in

his sworn duty to carry out the rovisions of that paragraph?
Senator SAXBE. I will.
Senator Bymn. Paragraph (c) of Specific Functions:
(c) To apply for and to exercise the authority vested in the Attorney General

under 18 U.S.C. 6005, relating to the immunity of witnesses in congressional
proceedings.



How about that paragraph, Mr. Jaworski ?
Mr. JAwOnsKI. Yes, sir. I certainly intend to continue to follow its

mandate as I have done so up to the present time, and will certainly
do so in the future.

Senator BYRD. Now, do you share Mr. Jaworski's position, Mr.
Saxbe?

Senator SAXBE. I do.
Senator Bi-RD. Continuing:
The listing of these specific functions is for the purpose of illustrating the au-

thority entrusted to the Special Prosecutor and is not intended to limit in any
manner his authority to carry out his functions and responsibilities.

Dated : November 2, 1973.
Signed: Robert H. Bork, Acting Attorney General.
Now, I shall begin to quote the guidelines that were developed in

May of this year, to which allusion has already been made.
APPEiqDIx-DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE SPECIAL PROSECUTOR

The Special Proecutor.-There is appointed by the Attorney General, within
the Department of Justice, a Special Prosecutor to whom the Attorney General
shall delegate the authorities and provide the staff and other resources described
below.

The Special Prosecutor shall have full authority for investigating and prosecut-
ing offenses against the United States arising out of the unauthorized entry into
Democratic National Committee Headquarters at the Watergate, all offenses aris-
ing out of the 1972 Presidential Election for which the Special Prosecutor deems
it necessary and appropriate to assume responsibility, allegations involving the
President, Members of the White House Staff, or Presidential appointees, and
any other matters which he consents to have assigned to him by th Attorney
General.

Mr. Saxbe, do you have any reservations whatsoever in stating be-
fore this committee today your full support of the letter and the full
intent of that paragraph, insofar as the duties imposed upon Mr. Ja-
worski are concerned, by that paragraph?

Senator SAXBE. I do not.
Senator BYRD. The paragraph states that:
The Special Prosecutor shall have full authority for investigating and prose-

cuting offenses against the United States arising out of the unauthorized entry
into Democratic National Committee Headquarters at the Watergate-

Do you have any reservations with regard to the words "full au-
thority" Mr. Saxbe?

Senator SAXBE. I do not.
Senator BYRD. Do you understand, Mr. Jaworski, that you do have

full authority?
Mr. JAwoRsKI. I do, Senator Byrd, and we have undertaken to exer-

cise it.
Senator Bym. Now, to go to the second clause and tying it in with

the lead sentence of the paragraph:
The Special Prosecutor shall have full authority for investigating and prose-

cuting . . . all offenses arising out of the 1972 Presidential Election for which
the Special Prosecutor deems It necessary and appropriate to assume respon-
sibility-

Do you have any reservations in regard to that clause, Mr. Saxbe?
Senator SAXBE. I do not.
Senator ByRD. You have no question but that Mr. Jaworski will

have full authority to investigate and prosecute all offenses arising



out of the 1972 Presidential election for which the Special Prosecutor
deems it necessary and appropriate to assume responsibility? You
have no reservations, no problem with that?

Scnator SAXDE. No problem.
Senator BYRD. How about you Mr. Jaworski, will you continue to

pursue your duties as imposed upon you by that phraseology with the
full kni)wledge that Mr. Saxbe has assured you of his full supportO

.1r. JAxwoRsKi. I will continue to do so, Senator Byrd.
Senator BYRD. Now, Mr. Saxbe, I proceed with the third question.

ag:in linking up the phraseology in the later clause with the leadoff
words:

The Special Prosecutor shall have full authority for investigating and prose.
cuting . . allegations involving the President-

Do you have any compunctions here, Mr. Saxbe, about giving Mr.
,aworski your absolute full, complete, and total support if in his
judgment there are allegations involving the President and his duty
requires that he investigate and prosecute those alilegations?

Senator SAkxDE. I do not.
Senator BYRD. 'Mr. Jaworski, is it your intent to fulfill your duty

set forth in that paragraph?
Mr. JAWORSKI. It is, sir.
Senator BYRD. To the best of your ability?
.1r. JAwoRsKI. It is, sir.
Senator BYRD. In other words, you will follow the evidence wher-

ever it goes and if it goes to the oval office and to the President, him-
self, you will pursue it with all of your vigor?

Mr. JAWORSKi. That is my obligation and I intend to fulfill it; yes,
sir.

Senator BYRD. Quoting again:
The Special Prosecutor shall have full authority for Investigating and prose-

cuting . . . allegations involving . . . members of the White House Staff, or
Presidential appointees-

Will you pursue that with full vigor, Mr. Jaworski, and without
fear or favor?

Mr. JAwORsKI. Senator Byrd, we have been pursuing that without
any exception and we intend to continue to do so.

Senator BYRD. Mr. Saxbe, is your intent to fully support Mr. Ja-
worski in his fulfilling of his duties under this clause?

Senator SAXBE. It is.
Senator BYRD. And you will not attempt in any way to interfere

with his efforts in regard to the investigation and prosecution along
any of these lines?

Senator SAxBE. No. It has been my intention at all times that Mr.
Jaworski shall operate completely independent, and the only time
that I will see him is when he wants something from me.

Senator BYrDn. The Special Prosecutor shall have full authority for
investigating and prosecuting all of the foregoing that I have re-
ferred to

and any other matters which he consents to have assigned to him by the
Attorney General.

Does this give you any problem, Mr. Saxbe? Will you support Mr.
Jaworski in this?



Senator SAXBE. It gives me no problem.
Senator Byxo. In carrying out his responsibilities under this clause?
Mr. JAwoRsKI. May I say, Senator Byrd, that we have accepted some

matters that were assigned to us, it might be said, by the Acting At-
torney General. At least a request was made that we undertake them,
and it was an area of the ITT investigation that left some question
as to whether it was really within our jurisdiction or not. It was dis-
cussed between Mr. Bork and me, and we have assumed full authority
for it.

Senator BYRD. Do you understand the word "consent" to mean that
you have flexibility to consent or not to consent to the assigning to
you by the Attorney General of "any other matters" ?

Mr. JAWOSKI. I think it does imply that, of course. But I will say
to you, Senator Byrd, that in any instance where we feel that the
subject matter falls within the ambit of what our responsibilities are,
we are not going to hesitate to accept jurisdiction, as was true in the
ITT matter, for example.

Senator BYRD. Very well. Now:
In particular, the Special Prosecutor shall have full authority with respect to

the above matters for:
Conducting proceedings before grand juries and any other investigations he

deems necessary;
Do you recognize, Mr. Saxbe, that the Special Prosecutor has full au-

thority in this regard?
Senator SAXBE. Yes. I consider it as a great advantage to going into

the office over there, that this does fall this way, because it would give
me the opportunity to pull together the necessary things for the man-
agement of the Justice Department without requiring a tremendous
amount of time that would be spent in this area.

Senator BYwD. You have no question, though, that with respect to
the above matters that were included in the leadoff paragraph, that the
Special Prosecutor has full authority to conduct such proceedings?

Senator SAXBE. No, and I welcome it.
Senator Byxw. Do you recognize your full authority, also, Mr. Ja-

worski?
Mr. JAWORsm. I do. Yes, sir.
Senator Bnw. And you intend to carry it out?
Mr. JAwoEsKI. Yes, sir. It is coincidental, but this morning I asked

Judge Sirica for the impaneling of another grand jury. There are
so many matters that we have presented, that we feel the need of it,
and I am sure that he will appoint a grand jury this morning.

Senator Bymn. OK. Proceeding to the next clause in the bill of
particulars:

In particular, the Special Prosecutor shall have full authority with respect to
the above matters for:

Reviewing all documentary evidence available from any source, as to which he
shall have full access;

Do you recognize that you have that full authority, Mr. Jaworski?
Mr. JAwoRsm. Yes, sir, Senator Byrd. I think I can say-in fact,

there is no reason why it should not be stated publicly, certainly to
this committee--that I will have a representative from my office in
the White House going through files. This will all be done under very



careful scrutiny. But there are a number of files that need examinatioui.
and a number of documents we are interested in and those files are
being made available to us, and we intend to search for each docu-
ment which we believe is in existence and which we feel we should
have.

[The committee subsequently received the following letter from Mr.
Jaworski:]

SPECIAL WATERGATE PROSECUTION FoRCE,
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE,

Washington, D.C., December 19, 1973.
Hon. JAMES 0. EASTLAND,
Chairman, Committee on the Judiciary,
U.S. Senate, Washington, D.C.

D.a Ma. CHAIsmAN: In testifying before the Committee with then Attorney
General-designate Senator Saxbe on December 12, 1973, 1 inadvertently Indi-
cated that at that time a representative from my office was searching White
House files for evidence relevant to our investigations. (Transcript p. 52) In
fact, although the procedures for the search had been agreed upon prior to my
testimony, the search did not begin until later because of the need of obtaining
security clearance for Mr. Breyer.

I noticed this error when correcting the transcript forwarded to me by the
Committee. I have corrected the transcript to clarify the situation as it existed
at the time of my testimony. Since this change is in part substantive, I thought
it proper to bring it to your attention.

Sincerely,
LEON JAwoRsKi,

Special Prosecutor,

Senator BYD. Mr. Saxbe, you have no intention to attempt to inter-
fere with the full authority of the Special Prosecutor in this regard ?

Senator SAXBE. I do not.
Senator BYuD. Continuing:
In particular, the Special Prosecutor shall have full authority . . . for:
Determining whether or not to contest the assertion of "Executive Privilege"

or any other testimonial privilege;
Do you recognize your full authority, Mr. Jaworski, and do you

assure this committee, based upon your honor and your good name,
that you will fulfill, to the very best of your ability, the thrust of
that paragraph?

Mr. JAwoRSKL I do, sir.
Senator Bmn. Mr. Saxbe, would you have any intention now or in

the future to attempt in any way to interpose yourself, your office, or
your command, or to intervene in any way, between the carrying out
by Mr. Jaworski, or any Special Prosecutor, of his obligations under
that paragraph, and I will read it again:

In particular, the Special Prosecutor shall have full authority . . . for:
Determining whether or not to contest the assertion of "Executive Privilege"

or any other testimonial privilege;

Senator SAXBZ. Xo, I have no reservation on that.
Senator Bnw. And you would not attempt to interfere with the

responsibility of the Special Prosecutor as stated clearly in that
paragraph?

Senator SAxBE. That is correct.
Senator BYRD.
In particular, the Special Prosecutor shall have full authority ... for:
Determining whether or not application should be made to any Federal court

for a grant of Immunity to any witness, consistently with applicable statutory re-
quirements, or for warrants, subpenas, or other court orders;



Do you have any compunctions, Mr. Jaworski, in carrying out your
responsibility under that paragraph ?

Mr. JAWORSKI. I have none, Senator.
Senator ByRD. Senator Saxbef
Senator SAXBE. No, sir.
Senator BYRD. You have no compunction and you will support Mr.

Jaworski in his efforts ?
Senator BYRD. I will.
In particular, the Special Prosecutor shall have full authority ... for:
Deciding whether or not to prosecute any individual, firm, corporation or

group of Individuals;
Mr. Jaworski, do you have any compunctions or any inhibitions

against doing this to the full letter and intent of the paragraph and
to the exetnt of yourfull vigor and ability

Mr. JAwoPsKi. I intend to do so yes, sir.
Senator BYRD. Senator Saxbe, Ao you assure this committee that you

will in no way attempt to interfere with Mr. Jaworski in the carrying
out of that requirement that I have just read ?

Senator SAXBE. I have no reservation.
Senator BYRD.
In particular, the Special Prosecutor shall have full authority ... for:
Initiating and conducting prosecutions, framing indictments, filing informa-

tions, and handling all aspects of any cases within its jurisdiction (whether
Initiated before or after his assumption of duties), Including all appeals;

Are there any questions, Mr. Jaworski, with respect to that para-
graph? Do you intend to pursue that paragraph and the requirements
of it to the best of your ability, to your complete ability, and without
reservation?

Mr. JAwoRSKI. I intend to, yes, sir.
Senator Binw. Mr. Saxbe, will you support Mr. Jaworski in his

carrying out of his responsibility under that paragraph without res-
ervation ?

Senator SAXBE. I will.
Senator BYRD.
In particular, the Special Prosecutor shall have full authority ... for:
Coordinating and directing the activities of all Department of Justice personnel

Including United States Attorneys;
Mr. Jaworski, what is your interpretation of that paragraph?
Mr. JAWORSKI. Well, it has not been frequently exercised but, in

fact, if we want it, if our office
Senator BYRD. Mr. Chairman, may we have better order in the

hearing room?
Senator HART [presiding]. Those who are guests will please at-

tempt to avoid distractions. And I think it would help, Senator Byrd,
if our witnesses would speak into those microphones.

Senator BYRD. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Mr. JAWORSKI. Thank you, Senator. We do have the jurisdiction to

ask U.S. attorneys to withhold action and for the jurisdiction over
that particular matter to be placed and left in our hands. And in in-
stances where the U.S. attorney proceeds with the prosecution, as is
true, for instance, in the New York Vesco case, the U.S. attorney really
is acting subject to our direction, if we choose to exercise it. And in



that particular case that I just mentioned, the Vesco case, we are
keeping up with developments very closely and should it become neces-
sary for us to take aparticular, or participate in some respects, take
particular action, andperhaps even give some specific direction, we
would do so. We would have the authority, Senator Byrd, under that
provision.

Senator Byn. Well, I will repeat it again:
In particular, the Special Prosecutor shall have full authority with respect to

the above matters
referring to the leadoff paragraph, the all-encompassing generalized
phraseology,

full authority with respect to the above matters for:
Coordinating and directing the activities of all Department of Justice person-

nel, including the United States attorneys;
Does this give you any problem, Mr. Saxbe, this paragraph?
Senator SAXBE. There is none.
Senator Byum. You do not question the authority of Mr. Jaworski in

this area?
Senator SAxBE. No. It is my understanding in the whole approach to

this section of law that these rules, that every effort will be made by
the Justice Department to cooperate with the Special Prosecutor and
that would mean the several thousand attorneys over there that might
be able to contribute something could, if necessary, be called upon.

Senator ByRi. In particular, and this is the last of the bill of
particulars:

In particular, the Special Prosecutor shall have full authority with respect to
the above matters for:

Dealing with and appearing before Congressional Committees having juris-
diction over any aspect of the above matters and determining what documents,
information, and assistance shall be provided to such committees.

Do you understand, Mr. Jaworski, in agreeing to this area of the
guidelines, that it is intended for you to have full authority to deal
with and appear before congressional committees having jurisdiction
over any aspect of this whole matter?

Mr. JAWORSXi. Yes, sir.
Senator Bym. You have no-
Mr. JAwonsHi. I have no qualms about it.
Senator Bm. No qualms about coming before the appropriate com-

mittees or asking to come before the appropriate committees in order to
fulfill the requirements of this paragraph?

Mr. JAwoSRli. None at all and I would do so.
Senator ByRD. Mr. Saxbe, would you intend in any way to inhibit

Mr. Jaworski from doing so?
Senator SAxEE. I would not.
Senator By=. "In exercising this authority" meaning all of the fore-

going authority
the Special Prosecutor will have the greatest degree of independence that is

consistent with the Attorney General's statutory accountability for all matters
falling within the Jurisdiction of the Department of Justice.

Mr. Saxbe, how do you interpret the word "consistent" as it is used
in this context ? And may I read it again. I know you are fully con-



versant with this paragraph, but for the convenience of the record,
let me read it again:

"In exercising this authority" all of the foregoing, the bill of par-
ticulars, "the Special Prosecutor will have the greatest degree" not
great degree but greatest degree, "of independence that is consistent
with the Attorney General's statutory accountability for all matters
falling within the jurisdiction of the Department of Justice."

Senator SAXBE. I think this means exactly what it says, that "con-
sistent" is a word of art and means that if something is not in violation
of the statutory provisions of the Attorney General's office, that it is
vested with the Special Prosecutor. These go on, as you know, to
several volumes of the United States Code, the duties and obligations
of the Department of Justice, and it is used only for a purpose of pull-
ing them together so that they do not have to all be restated.

Senator Bmi. What do you see as your statutory accountability as
Attorney General, Mr. Saxbe? What do you see as your "statutory
accountability" with which the Special Prosecutor's independence
would have to be consistentI

Senator SAXBE. The statute, and as I say there are several volumes,
sets out that the Attorney General shall do this, the office of Attorney
General shall prosecute, the office of the Attorney General shall bring
this action, shall bring that action. Those are directions and limita-
tions on the Attorney General and the Special Prosecutor could do
nothing that exceeded those limits or authorization.

Senator BYRD. In response to the same question-in essence, the
same questions from me-Mr. Richardson said this:

Let me just say for myself, Senator Byrd, that I know very well what this
language means and the language reflects the understanding I have with Mr. Cox.
I would not demand information under any foreseeable circumstances because I
would be aware that I had already made clear that this was not the reserved
right that I intended to maintain. The phrase "statutory accountability" Is
designed to fulfill a narrower function, primarily to avoid the necessity for an
amendment of the law and make it possible through the exercise of the stat-
utory role of the Attorney General to make the delegations of authority that
are set forth here.

I might summarize the elements of statutory accountability, and I see them
under five headings.

Now these are the five headings as were enumerated by Mr.
Richardson:

The first is the appointment of the Special Prosecutor himself. The second is
the delegation to him of the full authority set forth In these guidelines. The
third is the provision to him of any backup of his authority that the Attorney
General in the exercise of his own statutory functions can provide. The fourth
is the provision of adminsitrative and staff support; and the fifth and last is
the reserve power of removal which is expressed here as subject only to extraor-
dinary impropriety on the part of the Special Prosecutor.

[Pages 149-150 of the printed hearings on the confirmation of
Elliot Richardson to be Attorney General.]

This is the interpretation that was made by Mr. Richardson of
the phrase "statutory accountability." Would you subscribe to Mr.
Richardson's definition of that phrase?

Senator SAXBE. Yes, but I take a much broader view. I think the
statutory authority extends to a great many things that existed long



before the Special Prosecutor was established. And the Special Pros.
ecutor is bound by those just as the Attorney General is bound. But,
I see nothing inconsistent with what he said.

Senator Bym. Well, taking your broader definition, Mr. Saxbe,
do you see anything in the statute that would be inconsistent with
the requirements that are placed on Mr. Jaworski by the guidelines?

Senator SAXBF. No; I do not see anything inconsistent. I think there
are certain limitations, for instance, on wiretaps. I do not think that
Mr. Jaworski could authorize wiretaps.

Senator BmuD. But the guidelines do not give him the authority
to authorize wiretaps.

Senator SAxia. No. That is what I am talking about and such an
authority would be inconsistent.

Senator BYu. Well, but no such authority is in the guidelines. Do
you see any inconsistency between the authority and the responsibility
placed upon Mr. Jaworski by the guidelines-

Senator SAxBs. No.
Senator Bymr. And the statutes for which you have statutory

accountability ?
Senator SAXBE. No; I do not. As I say, there are volumes on this

but I do not see, and I am sure that Mr. Jaworski is just as aware
of this as I am, and has and will continue to operate within that
statutory authority and limitations.

Senator BYRD.
The Attorney General will not countermand or Interfere with the Special

Prosecutor's decisions or actions.
Do you subscribe to that!
Senator SAX]%. I do.
Senator BYRD. That is a mandate by the guidelines. Do you subscribe

to that-that you will not countermand or interfere with the Special
Prosecutor's decisions or actions?

Senator SAX.BE. That is correct.
Senator BYRD. Do you subscribe to that?
Senator SAXBE. My understanding is he will operate completely in-

dependent, and the only time that he will have contact with me is when
he wants something that I can provide him.

Senator BYRD. And you willnot countermand or interfere with the
Special Prosecutor's decisions or actions?

Senator SAXB. That is correct.
Senator BYRD. You say, "That is correct." That means you will not?
Senator SAXBE. I will not.
Senator ByiR.
The Special Prosecutor will determine whether and to what extent he will In-

form or consult with the Attorney General about the conduct of his duties and
responsibilities.

Do you understand what your responsibility is and what your au-
thority is under that guideline, Mr. Jaworski ?

Mr. JAwoRsKI. I do, sir.
Senator BYRD. And do you intend to live up to the guideline and see

that it is applied in this regard?
Mr. JAwoisxI. I do.



Senator BywD. Mr. Saxbe, you are satisfied, are you, that this is the
requirement?

Senator SAXBE. I am not only satisfied, I am well pleased.
Senator BYRD. And you have no intention whatsoever, in any man-

ner, shape, or form, of attempting to require the Special Prosecutor to
inform or consult with you about the conduct of his duties and respon-
sibilities except when he determines that he should consult youI

Senator SAXBE. That is correct. The last thing I want is to become
involved in this investigation. Frankly there is much to be done in the
Justice Department and it cannot be done if the Attorney General is
involved in this deep investigation.

Senator ByD. Te guidelines, as amended in November by Mr.
Bork, proceed as follows:

In accordance with assurances given by the President to the Attorney General
that the President will not exercise his constitutional powers to effect the dis.
charge of the Special Prosecutor or to limit the independence of the Special
Prosecutor or to limit the independence that he Is hereby given, the Special
Prosecutor will not be removed from his duties except for extraordinary im-
proprieties on his part and without the President's first consulting the majority
and the minority leaders and chairmen and ranking minority members of the
Judiciary Committees of the Senate and House of Representatives and ascertain-
ing that their consensus is in accord with his proposed action.

Mr. Jaworski, this area of the guidelines is new. It was not in the
guidelines that were agreed upon between this committee and Mr.
Richardson. And to this extent, I think the amendment is a limitation
on those guidelines. This paragraph was later further amended. On
November 28, it was further amended by adding the additional words
and punctuation:

and (2) the jurisdiction of the Special Prosecutor will not be limited without
the President's first consulting with such Members of Congress and ascertaining
that their consensus is in accord with his proposed action.

Now I am concerned about this phraseology. It definitely is a limit-
ing factor, in my judgment. It was not in the original charter that was
agreed to among Mr. Richardson, Mr. Cox, and this committee. It was
not even in the first amended version that appeared in the Federal
Register on November 7, 1973, and it can only have the effect of erod-
ing and limiting the jurisdiction of the Special Prosecutor. It is an
erosion of your earlier authority, pure and simple, in my opinion.

What do you understand, Mr. Jaworski, to have been the "assur-
ances given by the President to the Attorney General that the Presi-
dent will not exercise his constitutional power to affect the discharge
of the Special Prosecutor or to limit the independence that he is hereby
given"? I

Mr. JAWORSKI. When the language you last read was called to my
attention, I talked with Mr. Bork, the Acting Attorney General, about
it and told him that I wondered what was meant by that language,
that there was a feeling on the part of some that it might-well, as
you have expressed it, Senator Byrd-be construed as limiting our
jurisdiction. And he told me that the use of the word "jurisdictional"
was very unfortunate, that he really did not intend to use it in the
sense in which it appears in that language, and what he really meant
was independence instead of jurisdiction. He promptly wrote me a
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letter to that effect and the letter, I think, was publicized, it is my
recollection. I know that he, in this letter, said that he wanted to
reassure me that it was not intended at all to constitute any sort of
limitation on the exercise of my authority as heretofore stated.

Senator Bym. So Mr. Bork was saying to you he had intended the
word "independence" rather than the word "jurisdiction"?

Mr. JAWORSKI. Yes, sir.
Senator BYRD. Do they both not mean the same thing, depending

on who wishes to interpret them? If I wanted to limit your juris-
diction, I would just as soon limit your independence. As a matter of
fact, if I were to limit your independence, I would probably be plac-
ing a greater limitation on you than I would by limiting your
jurisdiction.

Mr. JAWORSyI. What he meant to say, and I am reporting to you
what he did say over the telephone, when I received the letter-un-
fortunately, I do not have a copy of it with me, but I understand that
it was reproduced in the Federal Register-when I received the letter,
it made it very clear that there was no intent of any kind to either
interfere with independence or jurisdiction.

Senator BYRD. That letter did not appear in the Federal Register.
Mr. JAwORsXI. It did not? I am sorry, then. I thought that it would.
Senator BYRD. Then you think it should so appear?
Mr. JAwoRsKi. I think it would be well to; yes, sir. It is a letter

that I certainly attached some significance to.
Senator BYRD. Do you see any reason why that letter could not be

inserted in the Federal Register?
Mr. JAworsii. I do not, although I am not an authority on that. But

I do not see any reason why it should not be. Certainly, when it makes
reference-

Senator Bym. Would you submit the letter to this committee for
its inclusion in the hearing?

Mr. JAWORSKI. Indeed so.
Senator Bym. What do you think is meant by "assurances given

by the President"?
Mr. JAWORSKI. Senator Byrd, I previously undertook to tell this

committee in detail what happened, and I am pleased to have the
opportunity to tell you about it, because you were not present at the
time. But what occurred is at the time I was seeking all of the inde-
pendence that I could think of. I had the assurance given me by Gen-
eral Haig, and I will tell you in a moment-

Senator BYRD. Would you speak a little louder, Mr. Jaworski?
'Ar. JAWORSRI. Yes. And I will state in a moment the course of

events as they occurred. But when General Haig and I came to an
understanding, as far as I was concerned, an understanding that he
was to present to the President and the President was to approve it
or reject it, it included, as agreed upon, my unrestrained right to
resort to judicial process.

Senator BYRD. Is this in writing?
Mr. ,TAwoRsTU. No, sir. It has been, I think, publicly stated by the

President since then in one of his conferences or public statements.
Sen-.tor BrRD. What has ie stated?



Mr. JAWOmSi. That I would have the right to file suit.
Senator BYRD. The President has said that? i
Mr. JAwoMsIK. Yes. It is my understanding that it was said. In fact,

I think I may have heard it. I did not hear that entire conference, but
it was stated in that. And, in addition, there was set up, as you know,
this-

Senator BYRD. Well, this phraseology, refers to assurances given by
the President to the Attorney General.

Mr. JAWOIsKi. That is correct.
Senator ByRD. Now what-
Mr. JAWORSUL And I am trying to detail, or have undertaken to

detail, the assurances that were given to me before I accepted the as-
signment, Senator.

Senator B-i-m. The assurances given to you by whom ?
Mr. JAWORsKIz. Given to me by General Haig after reviewing them

with the President and coming back and saying the President had
agreed to them. Now, after that, the matter was again reviewed in the
presence of Senator Saxbe and Mr. Bork, not only what I had detailed
with respect to the right to resort to judicial process, but also the right
to come to the congressional committee that you are aware of, in the
event that an impasse should occur between the President and me and
Mr. Saxbe. Senator Saxbe at that time assured me that should he be-
come Attorney General, he would abide by that, and Mr. Bork agreed
to it, too.

Senator BlyiD. Would you supply for the record the assurances which
you were given by Mr. Bork, Mr. Haig, and by Mr. Saxbe?

Mr. JAWORSKI. I will do so, yes, sir.
Senator BYRD. Did you have the understanding that, in receiving

these assurances from General Haig and Mr. Bork, they were assur-
ances that had been given by the President?

Mr. JAWORSKI. That was my understanding. And now, how Mr. Bork
received that information, I am not aware of, but I recall that Senator
Saxbe mentioned that he had talked with the President. And, as I
mentioned, Senator Saxbe agreed to this. But I will, as you have asked,
I will supply in writing these assurances for the committee so that they
can be made a part of the record.

Senator Bynn. Very well.
[Subsequently Mr. Jaworski supplied the following material for the

record:]
OWrxca OF THE SOLTcTOR Gsiim;

Washington, D.C., November 81, 1973.
LEON JAWORI, Esq.,
Special Prosecutor,
Watergate Special Prosecution Farce,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR MR. JAWORSKI: You have informed me that the amendment to your
charter of November 19, 1973 has been questioned by some members of the pre.s,
This letter is to confirm what I told you in our telephone conversation. The
amendment of November 19, 1973 was intended to be, and is, a safeguard of your
independence.

The President has given his assurance that he would not exercise his constitu-
ti0nal powers either to discharge the Special Prosecutor or to limit the inde.
pendence of the Special Prosecutor without first consulting the Majority and
Minority leaders and chairmen and ranking members of the Judiciary Com-



mlttees of the Senate and the House, and ascertaining that their consensus is In
accord with his proposed action.

When that assurance was worked into the charter, the draftsman Inadver-
tently used a form of words that might have been construed as applying the
President's assurance only to the subject of discharge. This was subsequently
pointed out to me by an assistant and I had the amendment of November 19
drafted in order to put beyond question that the assurance given applied to your
independence under the charter and not merely to the subject of discharge.

There is, in my judgment, no possibility whatever that the topics of discharge
or limitation of independence will ever be of more than hypothetical interest. I
write this letter only to repeat what you already know: the recent amendment
to your charter was to correct an ambiguous phrasing and thus to make clear
that the assurances concerning congressional consultation and consensus apply
,o all aspects of your independence.

Sincerely,
ROBRT H. BORC,

Acting Attorney General.

WATERGATE SPECIAL PROSECUTION FORCE,
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE,

Washington, D.C., December 19, 1973.
Hon. JAMES 0. EASTAND,
Chairman, Committee on the Judiciary, U.S. Senate,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR MR. CHAmAN : In the course of my testimony before the Senate Judi-
ciary Committee, Senator Byrd requested me to furnish the Committee a written
summary of my understanding of the arrangement made with the President
through General Haig (and confirmed by Acting Attorney General Robert H.
Bork and Attorney General-nominee, William B. Saxbe) regarding the inde-
pendence I was to have in serving as Watergate Special Prosecutor. I agreed
to do so and the statement below is made in compliance with my promise.

It was expressly confirmed that I was to proceed in the discharge of my re-
sponsibilities with complete independence, including the right to sue the Presi-
dent, if necessary, and that if an impasse occurred between us, the President
would not discharge me or take any action that interferred with my independence
without first consulting the Majority and Minority leaders and chairmen and
ranking members of the Judiciary Committees of the Senate and the House, and
obtaining a consensus view that accorded with his proposed action.

Sincerely yours,
LEON JAwoRsnr,

Special Prosecutor.

Senator BYRD. Mr. Chairman, it is my understanding that there is
a desire to recess the committee now over until 2:30.

Senator HART. As Chairman Eastland left it was his suggestion,
and I think that given the time we have held these witnesses to this
moment it would make sense to recess now until 2:30.

Senator BYRD. I agree, Mr. Chairman.
Senator CooK. Mr. Chairman?
Senator HART. Senator CookI
Senator CooK. Mr. Chairman, I wonder if I might be able to make

a short statement-
Senator HART. But we can excuse the witnesses.
Senator CooK. If I might make a statement right at 2:30? I do

have a conference committee this afternoon and I wonder if I might
do so, so that I can leave?

Senator Bym. And I understand that following Senator Cook, I
shall continue with my questions?

Senator HART. Yes.



[Whereupon, at 12:35 p.m., the hearing was recessed to reconvene
at 2:30 p.m. the same day.]

AFTERNOON SESSION

The CHAIRMAN. Let's have order, please.

TESTIMONY O HON. MARLOW W. COOK, U.S. SENATOR FROM THE
STATE OF KENTUCKY

Senator CooK. Mr. Chairman, I would like to thank the Senator
from West Virginia for giving me the opportunity to make a short
statement for the record. I am due at a conference committee in the
Capitol and I will proceed.

Mr. Chairman, I find it very difficult to be formal with Bill Saxbe,
I have to confess. Bill and Dolly Saxbe are the finest and closest
friends that Nancy Cook and I have gained since we came to Wash-
ington in 1969. We have as families-been together on many, many
occasions.

Other than Bill's ability to be a used car salesman and his unfor-
tunate attitude toward the Ohio River and the Commonwealth of
Kentucky, I find him one of the most honest and one of the most
refreshing men in the United States today. He is blunt. He is com-
pletely frank. He has a mind that is quick to analyze and is some-
times instantaneous to reply.

I feel he has assumed this job and the responsibility of it, if it is
the desire of the Senate to confirm him, because of his deep commit-
ment to the law and to his profession. I know that he feei-s that theprofession has been deeply hurt by past disclosures of activities. I
feel that it is his commitment to restore integrity to a profession that
he has an uncompromising love for, and a dedication to, that he finds
himself in this position today, Mr. Chairman. He spoke and made
his decision to leave the U.S. Senate and go back to Ohio and practice
law. The President asked him to assume the responsibility, and he has
accepted that challenge as any man would.

Mr. Chairman, this individual shall miss him and the Senate shallmiss him in his present role. However, the country will find him a
welcome and honest and forthright Attorney General.

Mr. Chairman, they will find him a man who under no circum-
stances will ever cut and run.

I want to congratulate him for this appointment and I look forward
to working with him in the position that he shall assume.

Senator SAXBE. Thank you very much.
Senator CooK. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The CHAIRMAN. Senator Byrd.
Senator Bym. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Senator COOK. Would the Senator from West Virginia yield for

one moment ?
Senator BYRD. Yes.
Senator CooK. I have a statement that I would like to submit for

the record that was given to me by the Senator from Hawaii and I
ask that it be made a part of this proceeding.
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The CHAIRMAN. It will be made a part of the record.
[The statement referred to follows:]

STATEM NT OF SENATO HRAM L. FONG ON NOMINATION OF SENATOR WILLIAM B.
SAxBs To BE ATTOE -5Y GENFAL OF THE UNITED STATES

I congratulate you on your nomination to be Attorney General.
Having managed the bill which drastically reduced the salary of the Attorney

General from $6,0,O to $35,000 a year and having argued on the Senate floor the
constitutionality of such action so that your nomination could be sent to the Sen.
ate by the President, I am more than satisfied that your appointment and as-
sumption of the Office of Attorney General, at this time, is constitutional.

You will assume your office with the emolument identical to what it was when
you begun your term of office as Senator. There is precedent for such action in
the nomination and confirmation of Senator Morrill In 1876 to be Secretary of
the Treasury and in the nomination and confirmation in 1009 of Senator Knox
to be Secretary of State. In these instances, the emolument was increased during
the respective senatorial terms, then reduced to what it had been and thereafter,
they were nominated and confirmed to cabinet offices and served as such.

After having served with you in the Senate for the past 5 years, I am con-
fident you have the temperament, the ability, the experience, and the integrity to
be an effective and outstanding Attorney General.

I wish you great success and Godspeed in your new undertaking.

TESTIMONY 0 HON. WILLIAM B. SAXBE, U.S. SENATOR FROM
THE STATE OF OHIO, NOMINEE TO BE ATTORNEY GENERAL, AND
OF LEON JAWORSKI, SPECIAL FROSECUTOR-Resumed
Senator BYRD. Mr. Jaworski, earlier, prior to the recess, we dis-

cussed the phrase that I read into the record that was extracted from
Mr. Richardson's statement, the phrase "statutory accountability."

Are you satisfied with Senator Saxbe's responses to my questions its
to his interpretation of that phrase?

Mr. JAWORsKI. Yes, sir.
I feel as he does that there are certain things that our office would

not have the right to do. There are certain guidelines that we must
observe, just as the members of the Attorney General's Department
and the Justice Department must observe. Obviously I would want to
observe those.
He cited an example which I think is probably a good one. I can

think of one or two others. Certainly we would undertake and abide
by those. I do not think that impinges on anything I spoke of.

Senator BYRD. You see no inconsistency with what Senator Saxbe
said as against the mandate and guidelinesI

Mr. JAWORSKI. I do not, sir.
Senator BYRD. You also indicated that you would supply for the

record a letter addressed to you from Robert H. Bork, Acting Attorney
General, with respect to the amendment of the guidelines.

You have supplied me with that letter. I will read it into the record.
NovEmBER 21, 1973.LsOx JAWORSKI, Esq.,

Special Pro8eoutor, Watergate Special Prosecution Force, Wa8Aington, D.C.
DEAR MR. JAwoRnsEY: You have informed me that the amendment to your

charter of November 19, 1973 has been questioned by some members of the press.
This letter is to confirm what I told you in our telephone conversation. The
amendment of November 19, 1973 was Intended to be, and is, a safeguard of your
independence.



The President has given his assurance that he would not exercise his consti-
tutional powers either to discharge the Special Prosecutor or to limit the inde-
pendence of the Special Prosecutor without first consulting the Majority and
Minority leaders and chairman and ranking members of the Judiciary Commit-
tees of the Senate and the House, and ascertaining that their consensus is In
accord with his proposed action.

When that assurance was worked Into the charter, the draftsman inad-
vertently used a form of words that might have been construed as applying the
President's assurance only to the subject of discharge. This was subsequently
pointed out to me by an assistant and I had the amendment of November 19
drafted in order to put beyond question that the assurance given applied to your
independence under the charter and not merely to the subject of discharge.

There is, in my judgment, no possibility whatever that the topics of discharge
or limitation of independence will ever be of more than hypothetical interest. I
write this letter only to repeat what you already know: the recent amendment to
your charter was to correct an ambiguous phrasing and thus to make clear that
the assurances concerning congressional consultation and consensus apply to all
aspects of your independence.

Signed RoBEST H. BoaR,
Aoting Attorney General.

Does this letter fully satisfy you as to your independence and as to
the "assurances given by the President" that he "will not exercise his
Constitutional powers" either to discharge you or limit your inde-
pendence without first consulting the Majority and Minority leaders,
and others?

Mr. JAWORSKi. Senator Byrd, this is in line with what I sought. I
will be entirely candid and say to you that I sought the maximum of
what I could think of at the time, and if I could have thought of some
other safeguards, I would have asked for them.

I think the matters that you have covered today have been clarify-
ing, and certainly it nails down some matters that someone might have
had some doubt about or might have questioned.

I personally have proceeded-I hope I have not been naive-I per-
sonally proceeded on the theory that I had complete independence. I
will say that I have certainly exercised it in several respects, and no
one has undertaken to call my hand. If it should come to pass that
someone should and I thought that I was right, I would come to con-
sult the committee that has been set up for such purposes.

Senator BniuD. Say that again.
Mr. JAWORSKI. If anyone should disagree with me as to what I am

doing, particularly the President, if he should disagree and I felt
that I was within my responsibility, carrying out the functions of my
-office, I would not hesitate to come to the committee that has been set
up and report to them for the purpose of their knowing exactly what
the situation was so that the impasse could be resolved, if possible.

Senator BYD. Would you also not hesitate, as Professor Cox did
not hesitate, to call a press conference and make known to the people
,of this Nation the fact that you were being asked-if you were being
asked-to do what, in your conscience, you could not do ?

Mr. JAwoRsEi. I would make it known. This does not relate to my
right to go to. court. I would do that without even calling a press con-
ference or going anywhere. I think if I conclude that it is necessary
for me to resort to the judicial process, I have been assured that I
-will have that avenue open to me. I intend to exercise that regard-
less of what disagreement may arise.



Senator Bmn. If later, if the word is conveyed to you through the
Attorney General or otherwise that you no longer have that assur-
ance, will you still pursue the judicial process of securing evidence
from the White House with regard to any indivdual or group of
individuals?

Mr. JAwoRSiKI. I would not hesitate at all. I would indeed sir.
Senator HART. Would the Senator from West Virginia permit me

one question?
Senator BYmn. Yes.
Senator HART. Do I understand, Mr. Jaworski that if disagree-

ment developed between you and anyone, including the President,
with respect to, for example, your jurisdiction to pursue an inquiry or
otherwise, while you might come and consult the congressional leader-
ship committee provided for in the regulations, even if that congres-
sional leadership committee by a consensus disagreed with you, you
would not feel that would bar you from pursuing the question in
court?

Mr. JAWORSHi. If it related to a question in court, Senator Hart,
I would proceed without coming to the committee. I would feel that
I had that right to resort to the judicial process. If it related to some
matter, some area that does not relate to my going to court, then I
would come to the committee if an effort were made either to hamper
me or if I received instructions, directions not to proceed in that
course.

Senator HART. Thank you, Senator.
Senator Byim. Thank you.If you feel, Mr. Jaworski, that your jurisdiction is being limited or

that you are being asked to limit your jurisdiction as set forth under
the guidelines, would you feel free to come before that ad hoc com-
mittee which is mentioned in the guidelines, as well as before this
committee to make your case?. You would have no inhibitions aboutgoing public with such a problem if it should arise ?

Mr. JAwoRSit. None whatever.
Senator Brim. Do you, in view of the clarifying letter of Novem-

ber 21, 1973, written by Mr. Bork, feel any uneasiness or any insecurity
whatsoever regarding the authority that has been outlined in the
guidelines and wherein your duty lies?

Mr. JAWORSKI. No, sir, I do not.
Senator ByRm. Then the amendment of the guideline which was first

published in the Federal Register on November 7, and the subsequent
amendment of the amendment, which was published on November 28,
cause you no problem? It gives you no concern? It leaves you no area
of uncertainty, with the letter from Mr. Bork as a clarification thereoft

Mr. JAWORSXi. Yes, sir, they do not. I feel that way about it. I should
perhaps add that when I talked to Mr. Bork about the matter, he re-
sponded immediately that he did not intend for the wording to be as
it was. He said that he would write a clarifying letter immediately. In
other words, I did not have to argue the matter. He offered to do it.

Senator Byrm. Paragraph 1 under "Staff and Resource Support" is
"Selection of Staff":

The Special Prosecutor shall have full authority to organize, select, and hire
his own staff of attorneys, investigators, and supporting personnel, on a full or



part-time basis, In such numbers and with such qualifications as he may reason-
.Ably require. He may request the Assistant Attorneys General and other officers
of the Department of Justice to assign such personnel and to provide such other
-assistance as he may reasonably require. All personnel in the Department of
Justice, including the United States Attorneys, shall cooperate to the fullest ex-
tent possible with the Special Prosecutor.

Thus far, have all personnel under the Department of Justice, in-
cluding the U.S. Attorneys, cooperated to the fullest extent possible
with you, Mr. Jaworski?

Mr. JAwoRSKI. I have had no difficulty whatsoever.
Senator Bru. Do you understand that you have full authority, and

has it been made clear to you that you do have full authority, and has
that full authority been questioned at any time with respect to the
organization, selection and hiring of your staff of attorneys, investi--gators, and supporting personnel on a full or part time basis and in

-such. numbers and with such qualifications as you so reasonably
require?

Mr. JAWosK . It has not been questioned, Senator Byrd. I have
exercised my free thinking and prerogatives with respect to it.

Senator Bym. Mr. Saxbe, will the Special Prosecutor have the fullauthority granted in that paragraph?
Senator SAXBM. He will.
Senator BYRD. Budget:

The Special Prosecutor will be provided with such funds and facilities to carryout his responsibilities as he may reasonably require. He shall have the right to-submit budget requests for funds, positions, and other assistance, and such re-
quests shall receive the highest priority.

Mr. Jaworski, would you have any hestitation about submittingbudget requests for funds, positions, and other assistance, which youdeem to be necessary in the carrying out of your reponsibilities under
theiuidelines ?

r. JAwoRsxi. I would have no reticence about requesting it. I havenot had to do it so far because this was attended to before I arrived,,Senator Byrd. I will certainly do so in the future as the need arises.Senator Bymr. Senator Saxbe, as far as you are concerned, would
any requests from Mr. Jaworski have the highest priority ?

Senator SAxBE. Yes.
Senator Byn. Designation and responsibility:
The personnel acting as the staff and assistants of the Special Prosecutor shallbe known as the Watergate Special Prosecuting Force and shall be responsible

-Only to the Special Prosecutor.
Does that meet with your concurrence, Mr. Saxbe, that the person-nel acting as the staff and assistants to the Special Prosecutor shall be

responsible only to the Special Prosecutor?
Senator SAxEE. I agree.Senator BYPo. Continued responsibilities of Assistant Attorney

General, Criminal Division:
Except for the specific investigative and prosecutorial duties assigned to theSpecial Prosecutor, the Assistant Attorney General in charge of the CriminalDivision will continue to exercise all the duties currently assigned to him.
Does that paragraph give you any problem, Mr. Jaworski?
Mr. JAwomi. No problem, sir.



Senator BYRD. Public reports:
The Special Prosecutor may from time to time make public such statements or

reports as he deems appropriate and shall upon the completion of his assign.
ments submit a final report to the appropriate persons or entities of the Congress.

Mr. Jaworski, do you feel uninhibited and, as a matter of fact, do
you feel it is a duty of yours, from time to time, to make public such
statements or reports as you deem appropriateI

Mr. JAwoRSKi. I do.
I might say, Chairman Eastland asked for a report which I was

in the process of drafting. Then there were some occurrences that
changed what I would have reported because of some additional de-
velopments. I think the letter is going out, but I will report from time
to time, and of course, answer any inquiries that this committee or any
other appropriate congressional committee may have.

Senator BYRD. Would you have any reluctance from time to time to
make public such statements or reports as you yourself deem appro-
priate.

Mr. JAwoRsxi. I certainly will not. You would be the first to recog-
nize that there are many things about which I cannot talk, and have
been refraining from.

Senator BYRD. But would you, in terms of the phraseology of this
paragraph, from time to time make public such statements or reports
as you deem appropriate?

Mr. JAwoRs-I. I would, sir.
Senator BYR. Would you be inclined to interfere in any way, Mr.

Saxbe, with the Special Prosecutor in this regard?
Senator SAxB. I would not.
Senator BYRD. Duration of assignment:

The Special Prosecutor will carry out these responsibilities, with the full
support of the Department of Justice, until such time as, in his judgment, he has
completed them or a time mutually agreed upon by the Attorney General and
himself.

Mr. Jaworski, is it your intention to carry out these responsibilities
with the full support of the Department of Justice until such time as
in your judgment you have completed them?

Mr. JAWORSKI. It is, sir.
Senator BYRD. Mr. Saxbe, will the Department of Justice under

your leadership supply Mr. Jaworski with the fullest support men-
tioned in this paragraph?

Senator SAXBE. Yes.
Senator BYRD. Mr. Chairman, I ask unanimous consent to insert in

the record-I have already read it into the record-or keep in the
committee files the letter to Mr. Jaworski from Mr. Bork dated No-
vember 21, 1973.

The CHAIRMAN. Is it already in the record?
Senator BYD. To my knowledge it is not.
The CHAIRMAN. It will be admitted into the record.
[The letter referred to is printed at pages 34-35.]
Senator BYRD. In Civil Action No. 1954-73, U.S. District Court for

the District of Columbia, Ralph Nader, Senator Frank E. Moss, Rep-
reseuative Bella Abzug, and Representative Jerome R. Waldie, Plain-



tiffs, ver~u Robert H. Bork, Attorney General of the United States,
Defendant, Judge Cassell rendered a decision declaring on the part
of the court that Archibald Cox, appointed Watergate Special Prose-
cutor pursuant to 28 CFR § 0.37 (1973), was illegally discharged
from that office.

How do you view that decision, Mr. Saxbe .
Senator SAXBE. I think that the decision of the court was in error.
Senator Bym. You think it was in error?
Senator SAXBE. Yes.
Senator BYiD. On what basis I
Senator SAXB-E. The powers and the authorities of the original char-

ter did not have any provision which prevented the Attorney General
from discharging the Special Counsel. I understand there were vari-
ous agreements that such would not happen, but I think that the
existence of the amended charter is evidence that there was wanting
such protection in the original charter, and this case will be appealed
and we will have to await the outcome of it.

Senator Binu. The court said, I quote, "the firing of Archibald Cox
in the absence of a finding of extraordinary impropriety was in clear
violation of existing Justice Department regulation having the force
of a law and was therefore illegal."

Do you feel that there was a finding of extraordinary impropriety
on the part of Mr. Cox's actions which would justify the firing?

Senator SAXBE. Obviously there was, whether it is in the record or
not I do not know.

Senator Byim. You have no facts to back that statement up, that
there was extraordinary impropriety?

Senator SAXBE. No, sir.
Senator BieD. You have no facts.
Is it merely an opinion of yours that Mr. Cox was guilty of some

extraordinary impropriety?
Senator SAXDE. I think you can only go on the strength of the fact

that the Attorney General or Acting Attorney General had the author-
ity on his own determination to fire Mr. Cox. I think he acted on his
own determination.

Senator BYmD. Was he not precluded, however, from firing Mr. Cox
except for an "extraordinary impropriety"?

Senator SAXBE. I think that was in the charter. He had to find an
impropriety, and I think he did. But-

Senator BYRI. The Attorney General did not find that impropriety.
The Attorney General resigned. His Assistant resigned. Mr. Bork did
not find the extraordinary impropriety. He only carried out the order
of the President.

How do you arrive at the conclusion that the Attorney General
found an extraordinary impropriety?

Senator SAXBE. You have to base it on the fact that he did proceed
to fire him, and that he had the power to do it.

Senator ByRD. But only at the order of the President.
Senator SAXBE. We are talking about what is at issue in the case

and what is going to be argued in the Court of Appeals and probably
the Supreme Court.



Senator Bmn. The general impression is--I think I can give the
'public perception pretty accurately-that Mr. Cox was fired because he
refused to agree that he would not continue to pursue, through the
judicial process, the securing of evidence that was under the control
of the White House.

Before this committee, both Mr. Cox and Attorney General
Richardson had stated under oath that such evidence would be pur-
sued through the judicial process. Mr. Cox was carrying out his re-
sponsibility as he had sworn to carry it out.

Would you consider this to be an extraordinary impropriety ?
Senator SAXBE. Whether I consider it that or not is not the issue. It

is whether Mr. Bork considered it. That is the whole issue of the case.
Senator Bym. But there is no indication that Mr. Bork considered

it such, or that the firing was done according to his wishes. The indi-
cation was, in the public press, that he did not want to do this and
that he had considered not doing it. He only carried out the will of
the President, as expressed in the President's order to fire.

Senator SAXBE. I have not read the brief in the case. I can only
reassert that from the action of Mr. Bork, he based it on the powers
which he believed he had.

Senator Bym. Let us come to this question.
Suppose the President orders 'you to fire Mr. Jaworski because Mr.

Jaworski pursues, through the judicial process, the securing of evi-
dence which is in the control of the White House?

Do you intend to carry out such an order from the President?
Senator SAXBE. I would not attempt to fire Mr. Jaworski, nor wouldI resign~.
Senator BynD. Suppose you were told to either fire Mr. Jaworski or

you were going to get fired, what would your answer be?
Senator SAXBE. The President has the right to fire me any time he

wants to for any reason. That is based in the Stanton case.
Senator Bym. You are stating before this committee, under oath,

that you would not fire Mr. Jaworski on the orders of the President,
such orders being based solely on the actions by Mr. Jaworski to pursue
through the judicial process the securing of evidence from the White
House?

Senator SAXBE. Not only that, but I am bound by the consensus
agreement in addition to that.

Senator BYD. Suppose the consensus of the various parties men-
tioned in the guidelines was to the effect the Special Prosecutor should
be removed from his duties, but in your own judgment he was not
guilty of any extraordinary improprieties, and that he was doing only
what he said before this committee that he would do, and he was try-
ing, through the judicial process, to get evidence--that evidence, in
the hypothetical case, being in the possession of someone at the White
House.

Would you fire him?
Senator SAXBE. You are going on the assumption that six of the

eight would volunteer their advice to me. It says that you have to seek
it. Obviously, if I do not think he should be fired I would not seek it.
If they volunteer that he should be fired I would not pay any atten-
tion to them.



Senator BYRD. There is a coordinating conjunction here, the word
"and":

the Special Prosecutor will not be removed from his duties except for extraordi-
nary improprieties on his part and without the President's first consulting the
Majority and the Minority Leaders and the Chairman and ranking Minority
Members of the Judiciary Committees of the Senate and the House of Represent-
atives and ascertaining that their consensus is in accord with his proposed
action.

Suppose the President consults the majority and minority leaders
and chairmen and ranking minority members of the Judiciary Com-
mittees of the Senate and the House of Representatives and ascertains
that their consensus is in accord with his proposed action, but it has
not been shown convincingly to you that the Special Prosecutor is
guilty of extraordinary improprieties on his part?

It seems to me you cannot do it with one. You have to do it with
both of the requirements set forth.

Senator SAXBR. As a practicing attorney, I always ask my wit-
nesses not to answer hypothetical questions.

Senator BYRD. But your witness was not nominated to be Attorney
General.

Senator SAXBE. Yes. But you have to make an assumption that the
President came to me and said, I want to fire this man. You take it to
the eight delegated people. Now, if I felt at that time that he should
not be fired I would so express it, and I would probably have beerk
fired before he ever got to Congress.

Senator BYRD. The guideline does not say that the President will
ask you to go to these people.

Senator SAXBE. I understand that.
Senator ByiD. The guidelines state "without the President's first

consulting the majority and minority leaders."
Why should he not be required to consult them?
These are the guidelines that have been written.
Senator SAXBE. Because this was the way it was written.
Senator BYRD. They were not written at your behest. They have

been written with the support and acquiescence of the administration.
They establish a responsibility on the part of the President to consult
these people himself.

Senator SAXBE. Yes.
Senator ByR. Why would you not say, Mr. President, according to

the guidelines, it is up to you to consult the committee?
Senator SAxBE. Well, as I say, I doubt if I would even be there at

that time if I felt strongly that he was getting a bad deal.
Senator BYRD. Why would you not be there?
Senator SAXME. He would fire me, which he has the authority to do

for no reason at all. I do not have any of the protections that Mr.
Jaworski has.

Senator BYRD. Suppose he did not fire you?
Senator SAXBE. Sir?
Senator BYRD. Suppose he did not fire you?
Senator SAxBp,. I would express my attitude that he should not be

fired.
Senator BYRD. The President did not fire Richardson. Richardson

resigned.



Senator SAXBE. I have no intention of resigning.
Senator BYRD. That may be the very thing the White House would

like most, for you to stay on the job, but to see that you carry out the
President's orders to fire Jaworski.

Senator SAXBE. That is your supposition.
Senator Bym. That is not a supposition.
Senator SAXB3E. I have no answer to that.
Senator BYRD. Would you resign rather than carry out an order

that you did not believe was ethical or just or fair?
Senator SAXBF.. Was not ethical, just, or fair?
Senator BYmD. Yes.
Senator SAXBaE. No; I do not think that I should take this job with

the idea that I am going to flounce out of there ,the first time that
things do not go the way I think they should go, or somebody wants
me to leave. The President has the authority to fire me at any time.

Senator ByrD. There is no question about that.
Senator SAXE. Therefore, if things go badly I would expect that

he would do just that. But-
Senator BYRD. You have not answered my question.
Senator SAXBE. All right.
Senator BYRD. Would you resign rather than carry out an order

that, in your judgment, was not fair, was not ethical, and was not
just?

Senator SAXBE. No; I would not carry out the order, either.
Senator BYRD. You would make the President fire you?
Senator SAxBE. Absolutely.
Senator Bym. Despite all the protections given to the Special Pros-

ecutor by the guidelines in the Federal Register, is it not true that all
of these could be swept away by a revocation of the order in the Reg-
ister, or by amendments to the order defeating the purpose of the orig-
inal guidelines, Mr. Jaworski ?

Mr. JAWORSKI. I had not thought of it in those terms. I assume if
somebody wanted to do so he could. He would have to go further. He
would also have to violate an understanding and an agreement that
I had. But I assume it could be done.

Senator ByrD. How do you feel about that, Mr. Saxbe?
Senator SAXBE. If they removed everything in there, I would stand

by my word of what I have said here today.
Senator BYRD. Who would have to revoke or amend the order?
Would the Attorney General have to do that, or could someone else

revoke or amend these guidelines?
Senator SAXBE. I do not believe that anyone but the Attorney Gen-

eral could do it.
Senator BYRD. In your judgment, could anybody else do it, Mr.

Jaworski ?
Mr. JAWORSKI. No, sir.
Senator BYRiD. If the President or one of his top aides asked you

to revoke the guidelines, what would you do, Mr. Saxbe?
Senator SAXRIE. I would say I was bound by my word not to.
Senator BYRD. If the President or one of his top ttides asked you to

amend the guidelines, what would you do?



Senator SAxm. The only way I would amend the guidelines is by
agreement with Mr. ,-wo'ski and by consultation with the committee
that put them together.

Senator Brim). _Mr. Jaworski, have you ever been asked to promise
to resign if you feel that the executive branch is attempting to manip-
ulate the Special Prosecutor for the protection of individuals in the
executive branch ?

Would you resign if you thought that the executive branch was at-
tempting to manipulate you or to circumvent or restrict or limit your
jurisdiction for the protection of individuals in the executive branch?

Air. JAwoRslI. Senator Byrd, if that came to pass I would first
come to the congressional committee and state my views to them. If
I felt that I was acting within my authority and that it was really
my responsibility to go forward, and I felt strongly about it and the
congressional committee would not back me up, I would resign.

Senator BYRD. What congressional committee '
Mr. JAWORSKL I had in mind the committee that was set up for the

purpose of taking my grievances in the event an impasse is reached
etween the President and me.
Senator By-im. Would you also include the Judiciary Committees

of both Houses?
If not, why not?
Mr. JAWOI SKI. I think that is a good question, Senator.
Senator BYRD. Would that not give you some additional comfort,

reassurance, and backing?
Mr. JAWOnSKL It would give me a lot of comfort. It certainly would,

if I came before this committee and told them what the problem was
and the committee felt I was right. Of course, it would answer the
problem. I would just stand by without resigning.

Senator ByRD. Does this committee have your assurance that you
will do that in the event such a contingency arises?

Mr. JAwoiSKi. I am prepared to assure you that I will. Very frankly,
I have not gone into this before, except perhaps by inference, but I
would have no hesitation to come and lay the matter before this com-
mittee as well.

Senator B-viw. Earlier today, Mr. Saxbe, you stated "I do not con-
template having much contact with Mr. Jaworski."

Mr. Richardson started out in a similar manner in the case of Mr.
Cox. Mr. Richardson found later that he was by necessity being put
into a position of either refusing to carry messages to Air. Cox, or,
on the other hand, to carry those messages to Mr. Cox, or to field
them himself and insulate Mr. Cox from those pressures.

I think one may assume that you also may be confronted with a
similar situation, so that it would be very difficult for you to not have
much contact with Mr. Jaworski. I am sure that is your full and
clear intention today, just as it was with Mr. Richardson.

If you serve merely as a conduit to Mr. Jaworski, and each time
someone at the White House calls and says, this fellow is going too
far, he does not have the authority to do this, or he is exceeding his
jurisdiction, why do you not talk to him? What can you do about it,
ez cetera? The first thing you know, you may find yourself being a
constant conduit to Mr. Jaworski, and he in turn will find himself



being subjected to the water treatment, drop by drop, drop by drop,
until the constant pressure becomes unbearable.

If that develops,how do you see -your position .
Are you going to be a mere conduit, so the pressures will not build

up on you, but will instead be transferred through you to Mr
Jaworski ?

Or are you going to attempt to protect him and insulate him from
undue pressures from the White House, thus creating pressures on
yourself?

Senator SAXBE. I would resist any inclination to do this, and I am a
pretty good resistor.

Senator BYRD. That is not clear enough. You say you would resist
any inclination to do this.

What do you mean .
Senator SAXBE. By being a conduit.
Senator Byim. You would attempt to insulate Mr. Jaworski as best

you could from undue pressures from the White House ?
Senator SAXBE. That is what I consider to be part of my obligation

with the charter.
Senator BYRD. What would you do about such de facto pressure on

Mr. Jaworski, Mr. Saxbe, other than resist it?
What do you mean by resisting?
Would you tell those people down there to go to Sheol? Or would

you say, "I do not think he is exceeding his authority, and unless you
prove to me that he is not exceeding his authority, I am not going to
interfere" ?

Senator SAXus. The President in his discussion with me and the
others that I talked to down there made no reservation as to his author-
ity and his power to proceed, and I am going in with that understand-
ing. Therefore, I would not hesitate for a minute to say, this is some-
thing that I am not going to talk to him about. This is within his area.

Frankly, I do not think that it is going to occur.
Senator BYRD. Mr. Saxbe, I have served under five Presidents. I find

it to be exceedingly excruciating to say "No" to a President, whether
he is of one's own party or not. It is extremely difficult to say "No,"
especially to a President of your own party. I have had to do it, and I
have done it. I think that you have the intestinal fortitude to do it,
likewise.

Can you assure this committee that you would not hesitate to say
"No" to the President if he attempts to change the rules and signals
and guidelines from what they were when you took the job ?

Senator SAXBE. I certainly have no reservation in making that state-
ment. Again, I do not think that it is going to arise. I do not think
that the President would have nominated me to be Attorney General
if he thought that I was going to be a conduit, or he thought that I
was going to be a person to be a go-between between the Special
Prosecutor.

Senator BYRD. I would assume that he had the same confidence in
Elliot Richardson. He nominated Mr. Richardson. I am sure that
Mr. Richardson did not contemplate that that would arise which did
arise. We do have to contemplate that it may arise again, certainly in



the light of past experience that should be a lamp unto our feet. We
have to ask questions today because we have to anticipate that they
may again occur. It is the duty of this committee, as best it can, to get
your responses to what we hope will remain hypothetical questions,
and will never become actualities.

Mr. Jaworski, are you satisfied?
I realize that this is uncomfortable for you. It is uncomfortable

for Mr. Saxbe. It is uncomfortable for me. It is difficult, I know, for
you to indicate that you are not completely satisfied with the answers
that Mr. Saxbe has given. You will have no better forum, however,
in which to do that, and you may never again have such a forum.

Are you satisfied with the responses of Mr. Saxbe to my questions
with regard to the authorities that you will have in carrying out your
responsibilities as manifested in the guidelines?

Mr. JAWORSKI. Yes; I think they have been given clearly in spell-
ing out situations that could arise. I wish I were prepared to tell you
about some of the authority I have exercised in recent weeks. ThatI cannot talk about. I can say to you that if I felt that I were in anydanger, any jeopardy with regard to exercising independence, I thinkperhaps I might have faced that situation of jeopardy in some of the
things that I have done recently.

Senator BYRD. So far, Mr. Jaworski, you have acted as a man whowears no man's collar but his own-you apparently are not a yes manfor any President. I think that it has been extremely important-inview of the fact that it has been the judgment of the leadership of theSenate to hold in abeyance at least for the time being, to defer anyaction on legislation to invest the authority for the appointment ofthe Special Prosecutor in the court-that these questions be asked.I think it is more than ever incumbent upon this committee to getas ironclad a commitment as we possibly can from Mr. Saxbe to backyou up, and to get from you also, as the Special Prosecutor, an iron-clad commitment to continue to pursue your responsibility without fearor favor, to go to the courts if necessary to resolve any question of ex-ecutive privilege, and to secure through the courts if necessary anyevidence that is under the jurisdiction and control of the White House,or anyone in the White House, or elsewhere for that matter.
Does the committee have that commitment from you?
Mr. JAwoRsK1. It does.
Senator By.. Does the committee have that commitment from you,

Mr. Saxbe?
Senator SAXBE. Yes. I have no reservation. I think Mr. Jaworski isnot only a competent and a thoroughly decent man. I will fight for his

right to proceed as he sees fit.
Senator ByRD. Mr. Ziegler in the press has recently denounced the

Special Prosecutor's force.Is it your intention, Mr. Saxbe, not to be swayed by denouncementsof the Special Prosecutor's force, if they should occur in the future,through announcements from the White House in the person of Mr.
Ziegler or Mr. Warren or anybody else?

enator SAXBE. Mr. Ziegler has a right to complain about any per-sonnel in the Government, and I cannot deny him that right. Certainly
we will keep our own counsel.



Senator B-m. Mr. Jaworski, is it your intention to retain the Spe-
cial Prosecutor's force intact as you inherited it unless an individual
on that force gives clear cause for dismissal, and that such clear cause
would not include the conscientious pursuit of his duty?

Mr. JAWORSKI. I certainly intend to follow that course.
I might say that I defended one of the men who has been serving,

and I think serving capably, against an attack that you make reference
to. I did it in no uncertain terms.

If misconduct at any time should be subject to criticism, I would be
the first to accept it. I do not believe that criticism is justifiable at this
time, and I went on record as saying so.

Senator BYRD. There are some people who feel that, after the first of
the year, the ardor for enactment of legislation to provide a Special
Prosecutor by the court would cool amid the lowering temperatu res of
January, and that we may begin to see members of the Special Prose-
cutor's force making reservations to leave town on whatever airlines
may then remain available.

Fan you assure those of us who want to see the Special Prosecutor's
force stay on the job as long as it is dedicated to its duties, and as long
as it is doing a good job, that you will stand behind those men as long
as you think they are doing their duty, even if it costs you your own
job?

Mr. JAWORSKI. I certainly would. I will go a step further. I do not
think I would be worthy of the time that you have sacrificed today in
going into this subject as you have if I should stoop to the practice
of staying with somebody for a certain period of time, then dropping
them just because I might think there is some heat. That has not been
my life, sir.

Senator BYRD. Mr. Saxbe. in summary, as I think I have interpreted
your responses and your statements before this committee, you have
pledged to this committee and to the American people-who are the
final arbiters, the final judge, and the ultimate court-that you will
have no part in exerting indirect or direct pressure on the Special
Prosecutor, that you will not allow a narrowing of his jurisdiction or
authority, that you will protect his independence and insulation from
pressures from the executive branch and from the legislative branch,
and that you, to the very best of your ability, will make public such
attempts, rather than see'his investigation impaired?

Senator SAXBE. I will do anything within my power not to see the
investigation impaired. I reserve the right to complain if I do not think
it is moving fast enough, which I do not anticipate.

Senator BYRD. I think that completes my questions. I apologize to
the committee and to you, Mr. Saxbe, and to you, Mr. Jaworski, and
to those in the hearing room for what may have appeared to be a
monotonous and boring repetition of a long litany of particulars set
forth in the guidelines. I think, however, that the committee would
have been remiss if it had not done this. I think it would have been
remiss not to have called you up here, Mr. Jaworski, in the presence
of Mr. Saxbe. I think that this ought to give you extra insurance and
some additional satisfaction, comfort, security, and assurance, and a
feeling that there are people on the Hill that want to see you do the
right thing, and that these people are in both parties, and are mem-



bets of both parties. Thus far, you have conductCd yourself com-
mendably, beyond what many of us ever expected, but not beyond
what ought to be expected. And it is the confidence and the desire of
this committee that you will continue to do your duty without fear
,or favor. I felt that this would help to strengthen your hand, and, at
the same time, I thought it would help to strengthen Mr. Saxbe's
hand, because he has a record here to stand by and stand upon and
to live up to. He has his own commitment here in writing and under
oath, and if I were in his stead, I would feel that this was a strengthen-
ing factor. It was not done with any intention of putting my col-
league on the spot-not that I could put him on the spot. It has not
been done with the intention of embarrassing or demeaning him in
any way. It is only with the intention that, in the final analysis, it will
strenothen the hands of both of you, and that there will now be a
clearer understanding on the part of both as to what this committee
expects, and that a public understanding will have been established
on the record for all to read.

Mr. Saxbe, as a member of this committee, unless there is some-
thing that develops yet that I do not foresee at this moment, I will vote
to report your nomination favorably to the Senate. I do not think
that it is incumbent upon this committee to determine a constitutional
question. It is, however, incumbent upon this committee to determine
your personal and professional qualifications, and where you stand,
as far as I am concerned, on the issues that I have attempted to pin-
point as clearly as I possibly could. Your answers to my questions
have been 98 percent reassuring. That is about as good as most
people can make. It does not leave much room for improvement, and
I will say that you made an A plus. But when it comes to voting on
the floor I have stated a constitutional principle that I think I have
to stand by. I will not vote against you on the floor. I do not think
I could state that constitutional principle as I did on the floor and
then reverse myself and vote for you. But I will vote for you in
committee, and I will do everything I can-barring some unforeseen
developments subsequent to this moment-to expedite action on your
nomination in the Senate, where, on the confirmation, I will vote
present.

[Senator Byrd subsequently submitted the following letter for the
record.]

DECEMBER 13, 1973.
lion. WILLIAM B. SAXBE,

U.S. Senate,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR BILL: I have reflected much upon my statement yesterday during the
hearing that I would vote "Present" on your confirmation to be Attorney General,
and I think I would be remiss in my duty not to vote either "for" or "against".
For me simply to vote "present" would be the easy way out, and, after reviewing
my position last evening and again this morning, I feel that I must vote against
your confirmation, and I shall do so solely on what I consider to be valid consti-
tutional grounds. Having strongly opposed the pay bill a few days ago on such
grounds, and not being of the opinion that Congress has the power to remove the
impediment (Art. 1, Sec. 6, Clause 2), I do not see how I can conscientiously take
any other course.

Having said this, I want to say again that I do not believe the Judiciary Com-
mittee shares the burden of being guided by the Constitutional disqualification
to the degree that iq carried by the full Senate which, under the Constitution,
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must auvise and consent. This may appear to be specious reasoning on my part,.
or reasoning for the sake of convenience, but I believe it is sound. The Judiciary
Committee meets its responsibility, I think, when it finds you to be professionally
qualified by training and experience, and personally qualified from the standpoint
of integrity, character, and moral fitness. I, therefore, shall, as a member of the.
Committee vote to favorably report your nomination to the Senate, and, as part
of the leadership, I shall do everything I can to expedite final Senate action on
your confirmation. Although I shall vote "no" on the confirmation, I shall not
speak against confirmation, and, just as I did not ask any Senator to vote with
me against the pay bill, I shall not seek to influence-not that I could do so-any
Senator to vote as I will on the confirmation.

The vote on your confirmation will not only be overwhelming; it will also be,
gratifying to you. As for my own vote, I am truly sorry. Yet, it should be a source-
of well-deserved satisfaction to you, Bill, to know that my vote (and the handful
of others, if there are any) will be on the basis only of a Constitutional view-
point, nothing more-and, even on this ground, there are many eminent Consti-
tutional authorities who would say that the impediment has effectively been
removed.

I say again that your answers to my questions at the hearing were as satis-
factory as I could expect, and that is saying more than a little. My questions were.
meant to be pointed, and necessarily so, and I think your responses to my ques,
tions were without equivocation. For this I congratulate you.

In closing, may I say that I respect and like you personally, and I have tre-
mendous admiration for your wife "Dolly" I hope that both you and she will be.
happy in your new assignment.

With warmest personal regards, I remain
Respectfully yours,

ROBERT C. BYRD,
U.S. Senator.

Senator SAXBE. I thank you.
Mr. JAWORsKI. I thank you too, sir.
Senator Bym. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
The CHAImAN. Mr. Hart.
Senator HART. Senator Saxbe, welcome and congratulations.
I am grateful to Senator Byrd for pursuing the detailed line of

inquiry. It has been enormously helpful. But I am one member of the
committee that still has not been able to get a hand hold yet on what
really this amendment to the guidelines adds up to.

Senator BnD. Would you allow one interpolation?
Senator HART. Yes.
Senator BYRD. It allows an erosion of the original guidelines. That

was my interpretation of it earlier.
Senator HART. That is not Mr. Jaworski's interpretation, and it is

not Senator Saxbe's.
Let me read this letter. I am guilty of what Senator Byrd said he

might have been guilty of, namely repetition. I am worse than that, I
am clearly repeating the ground he went over. It is because I do not
get it.

Senator Bmn. If I could interpolate further for the record, I am
not satisfied, but Mr. Jaworski seems to be satisfied. He is the man
under the gun.

Senator HART. He is the man who is standing on the slippery rock,
if this is in fact a slippery rock, and so are we the committee and the
Congress.

So, with that apology for repetition, for a few minutes let me see
if we can develop a better understanding which will explain why-
Mr. Jaworski thinks this helps.



49

The committee developed these guidelines with Mr. Richardson and
Professor Cox. Then I remember asking Mr. Bork if there was any
truth to the suggestion that modification of the jurisdiction areas in
the guidelines could be obtained by consultation with this later estab-
lished congressional leadership, and Professor Bork said, yes, it could.
At that same time, in the range of a few days, Mr. Jaworski said that
that had not been his understanding.

Then, as a result of that exchange, a letter written by Senator
Kennedy to Professor Bork asking for clarification. Then on Novem-
ber 21 came the letter from Professor Bork to Mr. Jaworski. I apolo-
gize, but I am going to read it again.

You have Informed me that the amendment to your charter of November 19,1973, has been questioned by some members of the press. This letter is to confirmwhat I told you in our telephone conversation. The amendment of November 19,1978, was intended to be and is a safeguard of your independence.The President has given his assurance that he would not exercise his constitu-tional powers either to discharge the Special Prosecutor or to limit the inde--pendence of the Special Prosecutor without first consulting the majority andminority leaders and chairmen and ranking members of the Judiciary Committees-of the Senate and the House, and ascertaining that their consensus is in accord'with his proposed action.
Now any reading of that paragraph, it would seem to me, is, statedZaffirmatively, that the President can, if he wants to, limit the inde-pendence of the Special Prosecutor with the concurrence of a majority

of that leadership committee.
The letter goes on:
When that assurance was worked into the charter, the draftsman inadvertentlymsed the form of words that might have been construed as applying the Presi-dent's assurance only to the subject of discharge. This was subsequently pointedout to me by an assistant and I had the amendment of November 19 draftedin order to put beyond question that the assurance given applied to your inde-

pendence under the charter, and not merely to the subject of discharge.
As I read that letter, it means that the President, if he wants to, canget the consensus agreement of the leadership committee to limit yourindependence under the charter, as well as to dismiss you. For the life,of me, I cannot see how that adds up to a plus for the protection of

the Prosecutor.
Then he winds up by a real curve ball kind of comment:
There is, in my judgment, no possibility whatever that the topic of discharge

-or the limitation of independence will ever be of more than hypothetical Interest.
Why put it in ?
Well, hypothetical or real, present or future, I just cannot escape atthis moment the conclusion that this addition to your charter is an,explicit reservation to the President of a right, subject only to the:agreement of a consensus of the leadership-and we do not know what

consensus means either-to trim back your independence, to trim backyour jurisdiction. How is that a safeguard .
Mr. JAwoRsiU. Senator Hart, I have to say to you, in the mannerin which this arose, I am personally convinced that it was not intended'to in any wise limit either my independence or the jurisdiction. Whathappened was, without my knowing that there was anything else tobe drafted, there was this amendment drafted. When calls came inIrom the members of the press wanting to know what my reaction to it



was I had not even seen it. Then when it came to my attention I imme-
diately called Mr. Bork and asked him what the purpose of it was, and
I told him that it had been suggested that perhaps it limited my in-
dependence. And he said he was very much upset. He said that he
certainly did not intend to do this by any means, that this had uot
been the purpose of it, that he had signed something that he had not
gone into. He said that somebody else had drafted it, and because of
the other pressing matters, he had not had an opportunity to go into
it as he expected to, that he would immediately get out a clarifying
letter to make certain that my independence was not in any way
impaired by virtue of that amendment. He sent this letter.

As I said to Senator Byrd, it may be that I have been a little naive.
I did not think so. I felt comfortable about it, I read the letter. I
proceeded on the basis that I had the same independence that I felt
that I had from the beginning, and I assure you, sir, that I certainly
exerted a tremendous amount of independence, and I intend to continue
to do it, and that this amendment that has been filed is not going to
deter me one iota from what I believe are my responsibilities. I have
not, perhaps, given it the word for word construction and interpreta-
tion that you have, but it just did not concern me, to be frank with you.
I just went right ahead, because I felt I knew what the agreement was
and I intend to do it.

I may be coming to you and begging to you for help.
Senator HART. lut you will not be begging me, you will be coming

to the Chairman, to Senator Hruska, and to Senator Scott; those are
the only three on this committee who are on that leadership committee.

Mr. JAWORSKI. I also told Senator Byrd that I will come to this
committee.

Senator HART. But under the regulations we are only observers like
other taxpayers. Only six or eight are the voters. It is pretty close to a
dead heat when you look that list over.

Now, off the subject except as a practical footnote, I can understand
how, in the pressure of the activities of the Department, Professor
Bork could sign and have published the regulations and guidelines and
then discover that there was this misunderstanding. But I do not un-
derstand how he can then say I will write you a letter and clarify it
and the letter, in less formal language, repeats the reservation to the
President on limiting jurisdiction andindependence, provided that the
eight congressional leaders approve.

I look at Senator Byrd and ask, almost as a prayerful petition, have
I made clear why it seems a dilution of the independence of the Spe-
cial Prosecutor?

Senator Bym. Yes; you have. I think it was an erosion of the guide-
lines. Moreover, Mr. Bork's letter goes only to the amendment of the
amendment. He is not addressing himself, in my judgment, to the
original amendment of the guidelines. I am not satisfied with it at all.
I think it is a slippery slope. My only comfort derives from the fact
that Mr. Jaworski seems confident and he has indicated he will pursue
his duties as he sees them, I would take it, as though the amendments
were not there.

Mr. JAwoRswI. That is right. I will say this too. I assume I should
say this. I would rather let Professor Bork speak for himself, and I



think he would be willing to tell this committee that he really would
have liked to have just erased the amendment completely. But that he
chose instead, because of the looks of it, the appearance of it, he chose
instead to write the letter. I am not sure that he would not be willing
at the request of this committee to go ahead and just wipe out com-
pletely the amendment.

Senator BYm. Senator Hart, we have a roll call.
May I ask a question in brief ?
Senator HART, Yes.
Senator BYRD. f was not present when Professor Bork appeared

before this committee. Was he asked questions about these guidelines?
Were you there at that time?

Senator HART. Yes. The amendment had not then been printed,
Senator BYRD. I think Mr. Bork should be brought back to this com-mittee and subjected to questions before Mr. Saxbe's nomination is

confirmed.
Senator HAPT. The amendment to the guideline had not then beenprinted, but we had heard reports that the congressional consultationwould include trimming back jurisdiction, and Mr. Bork confirmedat that time that this was his understanding, although Mr. Jaworski

said it was not his.
We will return on the completion of the vote.
The CHATRmAx. The committee will be in recess.
[A brief recess was taken.]
Senator HART. The committee will be in order.Before turning to four questions which I wish to ask, let me ask onequestion on behalf of Senator Byrd. Because of his obligations on the

floor, he is not able to return.
You will recall, Mr. Jaworski, that Senator Byrd and you discussedthe possible situation where pressures were brought to bear on you,efforts were made to persuade you that for reasons of jurisdiction orotherwise that you ought not to take a particular action, and the ques-tioning went something like this if I recall it.Would you feel that you could go to the congressional leadership

group and there state your position?
Answer. Yes.
Question. If the congressional leadership group, notwithstanding

your plea, disagreed with you, what would you do?
Your response was that you would resign.
Senator Byrd wanted to make clear that under those conditions bewould hope very much that your voice would not be lost if the issueunder debate, the issue on which there was disagreement, would per-mit you, notwithstanding the adverse action of the leadership group,to go to court, that you would go to court, that you would exhaust all

the remedies, including that.
My question is, would you?
Mr. JAWORsKI. Yes, sir. I intended to make that clear, and I thinkat one point I did have an opportunity to do so. That is, if it relatedto a matter where I thought the judicial process was involved, I wouldnot even go to this committee. I would go on my own to exercise theright of judicial process. It was in areas other than that where a dis-agreement might arise. Of course, I realize that I am not infallible,

and I could be wrong.



If it came to a matter that 1 believed as a matter of conscience that
I could not accept the determination of the committee and it relateal
not to a matter of judicial process-I am going to exercise that if I
think I should-if it came down to a feeling that I could not con-
scientiously go forward, I would resign.

Senator HART. Thank you.
Mr. JAwolsKi. Thank you, Senator.
Senator HART. I think that will satisfy Senator Byrd.
We had an exchange for quite a few minutes, the three of us, over

the meaning and the purpose of the amendment to the guidelines and
the letter of clarification from Professor Bork to you.

Senator Byrd and I realize that really neither of you should be
pushed further on that because neither of you is the author of the
document.

We went to Senator Eastland and he has said that he will ask that
tomorrow morning at 10:30 Professor Bork appear and make an ex-
planation of the purpose and perhaps clarify what we might anticipate
in the future on that.

With that explanation I shall not pursue that subject.
Senator Saxbe, adopting by way of apology the explanation that

others have voiced in addressing questions to you which appear un-
friendly, let me get on with this, and I do it in the belief that in fair-
ness to yourself an explanation on the record is of value.

There was a publicized incident during the period when you were
serving at attorney general of Ohio, your purchase in 1969 of stock
in the Valley Corp. From newspaper reports, as I understand it, the
,corporation deals largely in pinball and slot machines. In many States,
these are prohibited by law, and Federal law prohibits interstate
shipment.

At the time that you purchased the stock, the newspapers advise,
the devices that the company dealt in were prohibited by Ohio, and
later the company and some of its officers were indicted in Federal
court. A major portion of the company's stock was owned by a person
in another State identified by Federal agencies as having ties to orga-
nized crime. Another major stockholder was from Cleveland. Some
questions have been raised in the Ohio press about this person with
regard to the exact nature of his business enterprise. I make reference
only to the reports. I have no information regarding the person beyond
that. As I understand it. at the time that the first stories broke dealing
with your ownership of the stock, you sold the stock in the corporation,
although defending its purchase.

I think it would be good for the public record and for you to give
-us your comments and your own views with regard to this matter.

Senator SAxBE. Yes, sir.
I was here in the Senate at the time that I bought this stock.
Senator HART. My reading of the press was wrong.
Senator SAXBE. it Was in 1969. I was elected in 1968. I bought it

on the recommendation of a friend and broker who said it was a good
investment. I bought $6.000 worth of stock. It was a good investment.
The stock today is worth about $70,000. However, I knew nothing
-about the company. When the story aT)peared that there were under-
world characters involved in it, I sold the stock.



I do not think I lost money, but if there was any profit it was maybe
$100 or $200, something like that. That is the end of it.

Senator HART. At the time of the purchase you were not aware that
it dealt in materials-

Senator SAXBE. I knew what they dealt in. I still do, but their busi-
ness, there has never been any conviction. There has never been in-
volvement. Since that time, there was a case some place in the South, not
on the basis of the illegality of the machine; rather it was that it had
been involved in certain inducements to get people to put them in.
The case was thrown out.

The company is involved in an international operation. Since this
has been raised I looked into it. They bring into the country about $11
or $12 million in profits that they make in the countries where these-
devices are legal. Their big market here, of course, is in Nevada where
it is legal. I do not know any more about this than what I am telling
you. To the best of my knowledge, they made an effort to divest them-
selves of this man-I do not remember his name--who was alleged to
have underworld connections in New Jersey or someplace. They had
a stock issue. They bought him out. I have no interest in it, and have,
not since that time. I did not profit by the investment. I just did not
want to get mixed up in it. When they raised the issue I sold the stock.

Senator HART. The issue raised was really whether the purchase of
the stock of a company dealing in materials not permitted under Ohio,
law was a sound decision ? Is that the way it was?

Senator SAXBE. If they did not sell those materials in Ohio-
Senator HART. You are obeying Ohio law.
Senator SAxBE. I do not see how that is an issue. I am not here to

defend the company or the business that they are in I do not know
that much about it. I had no further dealings with tihem, and that is.
the extent of it.

Senator HART. In any event, their activity was not illegal per se, but
it was then as a result of the Ohio prohibition ?

Senator SAXBE. It is a stock that is regularly traded over the counter.
It is listed in the Washington Post and the New York Times and is an
actively traded stock. If they are involved in illegal activities I am not
aware of it. I was not aware of it then. I am not aware of it now.

Senator HART. As you know, some of us on this committee have,
been concerned about gun control, specifically we focus on the vio-
lence wrought by handguns. All of us are familiar with the arguments
that are raised by opponents of gun control-I would prefer to repeat
handgun control, because, like you, I sometimes get into the northern
part of Michigan, and I am talking about handguns--the argument
goes that guns do not kill people, that people kill people that if you
take handguns away from the law-abiding citizen, only the criminals-
will have them.

I am convinced that the law-abiding citizen would be safer if he did
not have a handgun in the bureau drawer, I am absolutely convince&:
of that, even if the criminals continue to get them.

Now, the National Advisory Commission on Criminal Justice
Standards and Goals, which was chaired by Governor Peterson, ap-
pointed by the LEAA and working under the auspices, I think it is
fair to say, of the Department of Justice, recently agreed with that.



analysis of the handgun situation. Here is what their final report
said:

Private possession of handguns should be prohibited for all persons other
than law enforcement and military personnel. Manufacture and sale of hand-
guns should be terminated. Existing handguns should be acquired by States.
Handguns held by private citizens as collector items should be modified and
rendered inoperable.

So far so good. But the Commission set the goal for this a decade
away, January 1983, as the time that we should reach that point.

Ili addition, instead of supporting comprehensive Federal legisla-
tion, such as I have introduced, and on which the last time around
I think we got seven votes, the Commission recommended that it be
done piecemeal, on a State by State basis.

Yet we continue to read newspaper reports about the flow of illegal
guns into New York City, where you have a very strict handgun con-
trol law, suggesting the inevitable failure of a piecemeal approach
because of the problem of leakage from one State to another. To me,
this -eeins a problem that requires a national solution.

After that speech, I have two questions.
Do you agree with the conclusion of the Peterson Commission that

public safety and law and order would be vastly promoted if private
handgun ownership is prohibited, the manufacture and sale of hand-
guns to anybody but police and military is ended, and existing hand-
guns acquired by the Government?

Senator SAXBE. No.
Senator HART. You can travel further north in Michigan than I can.

[Laughter.]
Why?
Senator SAXBE. I wish that by passing a law and destromg every

weapon of violence in the world that we could do away with violence.
I do not think that we can. I do not think that there is any way that
we can effectively deprive a man bent on doing mischief from a weapon
that he can do it with, whether a butcher knife, a backyard ax, what-
ever it is.

I am also well aware that any individual with the simple knowledge
of machinery can make a gun in half a day. And I have never been
convinced that the law-abiding citizen should be discriminated against,
certainly in a city like Washington. I have watched carefully the
prosecution in Washington for violation of a rather strict gun law
that extends not only to handguns but to long guns here in Wash-
ington. For some reason, they have never prosecuted people on these
cases. I do not know why, but I think that it is typical of a realiza-
tion that however much you wish that you could control violence by
destroying a weapon, it has never been effective.

I know that there are people here in Washington that live in terror
and keep vicious dogs and all kinds of things to protect them, includ-
ing guns. Most of the law-abiding people register these guns. Every-
body knows where they are. I am also well aware that most murders
are not committed between strangers, but between people who know
each other. We hear about the violence that occurs on the street corner,
but there is a lot of domestic violence just as well. And I have never
been convinced that strict gun legislation-and I am the first to agree
with you that the handgun, especially the Saturday night special,
is an abomination-but I remain unconvinced.



I will certainly not interject my attitudes into any of the Commis-
si()Ils that are now engaged, -as "ihe Peterson _group is enaged, in
making these determinations. C( ongress Cn ],Is, this afternoon a gun

bill if they are so inclined, andi I assure you tlat I will vigorously en-
.force it, along with all the other laws.

Senator IiT. I know you will.
I know it is unlikely that during the tern, to which you will be

appointed you will be confronted with such a I . but it would Slced
up the day that we act rationally in tuis country if the Attorne"y Gen-

Pedl was a voice that sought to persuade us thtt there are 30 million

,of these guns, that for every 2 bad guys that are shot down tiere are

98 good people that are wounde( or killed. The good people a(le your

children, your neighbors, your spouse.
Senator SAxBE. There are more people killed by ice picks, axes,

knives, than there are by guns.
Senator HRT. That is against the law. too, but the ligures do not

support that.
I think all of us have to be patient. you in advancing your point of

view and those of us who differ in advancing ours. I suspect that we
aure really the more guilty because we do not try to explain. Of course,
most people are law abiding. If the Federal Government said, give up
your handgun, most people would give it up and would turn it in.
You would automatically reduce the reservoir from which the bad
people get their guns, because they do not go to buy them. We would
begin to buy up the source from which the bad people get the weapons.

The accident in the bedroom or the kitchen. the crime of passion,
these would be substantially lowered. They would be eliminated ex-
,cept as they occur in the hones of non-law-abiding people. It is up to
us to make that case.

Senator SAXBE. I understand, but if the Senator would indulge me
for a minute, my attitude on guns is not something that I have adopted
in the last week or the last month or the last year. I have grown up
in a rural community 'where we lived with guns, the whole family
learned to respect a gun. I have hunted. I have been a marksman. I
have worked at it. I was president of the Ohio Trap Shooters Associa-
tion for 5 years. I was vice president of the American Trap Shooters
Association. For me to come here and indicate because I want to be
Attorney General I am going to change a whole concept developed
over 50 years, if I were you I would not vote for him.

Senator HART. I was going to say that that would lose you a vote
from me.

But to me, to have these instruments of violence so easily available
in a society like ours is inexcusable. Even in Ohio it is diferent than
when you were a boy.

Senator SAXDE. Not a great deal. I assure you that if I thought that
we could pass a law and remove every handgun in this country except
those in the hands of law enforcement people I would certainly sup-
Port it. I just do not believe that you can do it.

Senator HART. You cannot pass a law and anticipate that it will be
respected and observed by everyone but that has not really been the
test of whether you should try.

Since your nomination was announced you have commented about
the Special Prosecutor issue, including the dispute between Professor



Cox and the President over the tapes and the subsequent dismissal of
Professor Cox, and you suggested Professor Cox was going beyond the
bounds of his charter on a general fishing expedition in regard to his
request for additional tapes.

I should say I did not hear these words, but reading from the press
account at the time, your words-and before we get to your words
there is an opening paragraph-were:

Senator Saxbe supports Nixon's decision to deny Watergate Prosecutor's access
to additional White House tapes.

"Just to have a carte blanche or fishing expedition to discredit the Presidency
of the United States, not the man or the office, would be a serious mistake," tbh,
Ohio Republican said yesterday.

Now, can you give us examples of areas in which you think Cox
acted improperly and sought material that he did not have a right to
seek and was not a part of his duty under the set of guidelines!

Senator SAXBE. No; I cannot at this time. No.
Senator HART. What in God's name were you talking about the

first time?
Senator SAXBE. I am sure that I had reason at the time. I had read

the information. I was current on what was going on on a day-to-day
basis. I felt at the time that if there was a question as to the President's
responsibility, either before or after the fact of Watergate or any of
the other affairs, that the proper method was impeachment. I repeat-
edly suggested that this was the proper method.

Since that time the President has made certain waivers as to his
right that has destroyed a great part--not destroyed, they were not
destroyed, he gave them up--of his immunity. He has also expressed
complete freedom to have Mr. Jaworski examine any evidence that he
believes necessary. In other words, any position that I had at that
time has been abandoned by the President, and I respect this, and
now as part of the operation I intend to back Mr. Jaworski to the
full extent of my authority to proceed as directed.

Senator HART. The day that your nomination was announced, and
you had a visit at the White House, you indicated that you thought
the President had acted not only honorably with regard to the Water-
gate investigation generally, but specifically that he had gone as far
as be reasonably could have and expected to go in making material
available to Professor Cox.

Since then, in our hearings in this committee, Elliot Richardson,
Mr. Jaworski, and in colloquy our colleague from North Carolina,
Senator Ervin, who was involved in that so-called Stennis compromise,
all said that they thought that Professor Cox had been correct in refus-
ing the President's offer and insisting upon his right to go to court to
obtain these materials-or at least to go to court to see if the com-
promise that was suggested satisfied the order of the court. More
recently, Senator Stennis has indicated that contrary to the White
House's very clear implication, Senator Stennis never areed to par-
ticipate in the compromise with any understanding that it would be a
binding limitation on Professor Cox's ability to seek the actual evi-
dence.

Now, as of then it would seem that you were in disagreement with
these gentlemen.



Do you recall why you felt that the effort by the President to re-
strict the Special Prosecutor's ability to have the court decide what
White House evidence should be available to the Watergate investi-
gation was proper?

Senator SAxm. I thought it was a reasonable suggestion to have, as
I understood it, Senator Stennis to go over the tapes to glean out
those parts which he thought were pertinent. Obviously, there was and
still is part of the tapes that will not be disclosed. I do not think there
is anybody that wants to disclose them. I think that they thought that
they had an understanding. Obviously, there was no meeting of the
minds. But I think it was a reasonable offer at that time, and it fell
apart for reasons that I am not acquainted with.

Senator HART. Let us assume that you felt that it was a reasonable
compromise proposal. Does it follow, therefore, that Professor Cox's
action was unreasonable in rejecting it?

Senator SAXBF. No; I do not think so, it does not necessarily follow.It was presumed that he was a part of the agreement, I think. He
obviously was not.

Senator HART. Professor Cox was fired for insisting on goini for-ward in pursuit of that evidence. Two separate Federal courts foundhis position to be not only reasonable but constitutionally correct.Under those conditions, how could Professor Bork have found Cox'sactions to be of extraordinary impropriety?
Senator SAXBE. That is the issue on appeal, I can make no otherexplanation, other than the fact that he did make such a finding.Senator HART. That was several times suggested by you as the reasonfor Bork's action. But I was under the impression that Professor Borktook the position that he had revoked the ground rules, that he hadrescinded the regulations by the action of dismissing Cox. The regula-rions prohibited him from dismissing Cox unless there was a grossimpropriety. Bork, I think, did not claim that Cox, in following thetwo Federal Court orders, was acting with impropriety. Bork simplyfired him and said I am free to fire him because, in a sense, my act ofviolating the regulations revokes the regulations. I do not think Borkclaimed that he was taking action against Cox because of improper

action on Cox's part.
I think that Bork was taking a position which makes us all uneasyabout the regulations, that the Attorney General could revoke the regu-lations by firing the Special Prosecutor.
Do you believe that you, as Attorney General, would be able to ter-minate the regulations by dismissing Mr. Jaworski?Senator SAxE. This is something that has arisen in my mind be-cause obviously a regulation printed in the Federal Register can bechanged by another regulation printed in the Federal Register. Thisis what we are talking about. The only assurance that you have thatthat is not going to happen is my assurance that it is not going to hap-pen, the agreement that I have with Mr. Jaworski that it is not going

to happen that way. Now you are dealing with people, you are notdealing with words, and I feel strongly that there comes a time when
that is all you have, really.

Senator HART. I think that you have put it very correctly.
I would anticipate that you would remember exactly what you told

us?



Senator SAXE.. I fully intend to.
Senator HART. Senator Kennedy has asked me to ask you one ques-

tion on his behalf. But I have finished my own.
Senator Scott?
Senator SCOTT. Mr. Chairman, I can be very brief. I support the

nomination and confirmation of Senator Saxbe to be Attorney Gen-
eral. I have full and complete confidence in him. His words is as good
as the gold in Fort Knox-probably under the Zurich system, better.
I am certain that any assurances that he has given to this committee
and to the Congress as regarding his conduct in his office and his re-
lationships with Mr. Jaworski, will be scrupulously adhered to.

I see no need for me to ask any questions. My concern is simply
that we proceed. Thank you.

Senator SAXBE. Thank you.
Senator HART. That stirs my memory. You and I have the assurance

of our colleague, Senator Saxbe. When we were developing those
guidelines some months ago we, in varying degrees of confidence,
thought we had the commitment of the President of the United States
that he was a party to those regulations.

It developed, I have forgotten the exact phraseology but Attorney
General Richardson later explained that the President had not ex-
plicitly accepted and been committed to the guidelines. Is there some
way-I am not suggesting that we have the President sit where Bill
Saxbe is-but is tNere some way that this committee properly can
obtain from the President his expression of acceptance of the
guidelines?

We have learned that assuming this was not correct.
Senator SAXBF. I can only give my feeling. In discussion with him,

and with discussion of members of his staff, he fully understands and
agrees to it.

Senator HART. That would not take-given the White House staff-
very long to commit it to paper and have it sent to Chairman East-
land for filing in this record. I hope I am not out of order by asking
the nominee if he would seek to obtain that brief statement from the
President in writing so we could have it in the record?

Senator SAXBE. I would not presume to demand such a thing from
the President. I would suggest that if the committee wants to do that,
they demand it.

Senator EASTLAND. I think that you are exactly right.
Senator HART. I would prefer a different method. I think, having

learned once that assumptions do not go, that it is the obligation of
the committee to ask for an explicit commitment and I do.

Now I have already indicated that we will question Mr. Bork about
the amendment of the guidelines permitting the President to limit
the guidelines on jurisdiction with the congressional group.

Senator Kennedy has asked me to ask you if you would agree that,
upon taking office, you would remove that amendment as to'limits on
independence or jurisdiction? And, before you answer that, if we
ask Mr. Bork to remove it before you are confirmed, would you
agree also that you would not add that amendment back when you
take office?

Senator SAXBE. As I told you informally, before we started, I am
convinced, talking to the Special Prosecutor, that this was put on



there because Mr. Bork thought it was a power desired by the special
Committee of Review. And, really, I am going to be the Attorney
General, if I am confirmed, not Mr. Bork.

If this committee, not the Committee of Review, but if this com-
mittee wants that off of there, that will be my first job to take it oil
of there. Because the only reason that it is on there is to give some
special powers to the committee. If it is a source of confsion, we
should take it off.

That leaves you solely the power to be consulted on the discharge
of the Special Prosecutor. I would think that you would want it to
remain in there because you have to be consulted on any change in
his authority with it on there.

Senator HART. Without that amendment, the one that we are talking
about omitting, what is your opinion as to the power that the Presi-
dent would have?

Senator SAXBE. I do not see any limit on the President's power. I
mean I do not see any reason to think that he has any power to inter-

fere with the orderly investigation by Mr. Jaworski.
I think that he does have the full power needed to get whatever kind

of information or evidence that he needs to proceed now.
I would guess that physical difficulties is one thing that is, getting

manpower, getting these kinds of thing, I do not think that the
President retains the power to deny these things.

Senator HART. Perhaps Mr. Jaworski can respond. Did the Presi-
dent, in your discussion with him, give you ironclad assurance that
your jurisdiction and independence would not be interfered with?

Mfr. JAWORSKi. Senator Hart, he did so through General Haig. I did
not choose to talk to the President.

Senator HART. I correct my question. I recall your earlier testimony.
Mr. JAWORSKI. It was offered to me, but I wondered whether it was

in the bounds of propriety; under the circumstances, I believe he had
somewhat of the same reticence. But General Haig had assured that
he had gone to talk to him and came back and gave me the express
assurance that this freedom of action was there, and also the phase
that relates to a congressional committee.

Senator ITART. That assurance communicated to you through Gen-
eral Haig was prior to the issuance of the amendment to the regulation
that gives rise to our question as to whether there had been a trimming
back. perhaps unconsciously.

Mr. JAwoasK. Yes; but I should add that Senator Saxbe, however--
when I received this assurance from the President through General
Haig, I reviewed it with Senator Saxbe-that he agreed to it. Also,
he had also talked to the President. I was not privy to that conversa-
tion. There was no question in my mind as to what Senator Saxbe and
I agreed on. It was the same thing that you have just reviewed, that
I understood as the arrangement.

Senator HART. Before the issuance of that amendment to the regula-
tion, you did have the guarantee of the President as an absolute, flat
commitment with respect to your independence. Now, unless that
amendment is eliminated, there seems to be a possibility that intrusion,
either on independent or jurisdiction, might be reserved. That is the
reason that we are talking to Mr. Bork.



Senator SAxEE. In direct answer to your question that I did not
answer. First, I will be happy to remove it, and if Mr. Bork wants
to remove it, it will stay removed.

Senator HART. Thank you.
Senator EASTLAND. Senator Tunney?
Senator TuNEy. Thank you.
Mr. Saxbe, I feel, as do some others on this committee, a strange

ambivalence with respect to your nomination. I have great respect for
you personally. I think that you have the qualifications to lead as At-
torney General. But on the other hand I am deeply concerned about
the constitutional precedent.

As you know, I voted against the Attorney General's pay bill, not
because I though that you in any way are not qualified to be the At-
torney General, but because I am concerned that the Constitution in
very plain language, makes it impossible for a person serving in the

'Congress to be appointed to the position of Attorney General if he
has voted for a pay increase for that position during his current
term.

As one who has stated, repeatedly, that I think the Constitution
ought to be adhered to, particularly as it relates to questions of execu-
tive privilege and claims of national security, that there should be a
strict limitation of the right of the President to prevent information
from being made available to a prosecutor on the claims of executive
privilege and of national security, for me to assume that the Founding
Fathers of our Republic in drafting the Constitution really meant
something different from what they said, would I think be taking a
position that is quite inconsistent with the positions that I have taken
earlier that there should be a strict reading of the Constitution insofar
as it is applied to the Presidents of the United States and his claims
of executive privilege and of national security.

I am concerned about the possibility of a cloud hanging over your
head until such a time as there is a court test regarding the constitu-
tionality of your appointment. I also think that at a time when we are
all very deeply concerned about the rule of law, it might appear to
some that we are willing to wink at the rule of law if we want an
individual in a particular office despite what the Constitution said.

It is for those reasons that I have that reluctance. It is a moral
consideration, I suppose, and an intellectual consideration as I inter-
pret the Constitution, and has nothing whatsoever to do with you as
a man. I think that you know that. I congratulate you on the fact that
the President has the kind of confidence in you that he would nominate
you to this high office.

Before asking my first question, I would just like to say to Mr.
Jaworski that I have been extremely pleased by the job that you have
done. I think that you have demonstrated very clearly your independ-
ence, your diligence, the fact that you intend to find the truth on mat-
ters that have been presented to you, and that you are willing to use the
strength and courage that are needed to guarantee that your responsi-
bilities are carried out. I feel that you have done an outstanding job
and hope that you will be able to do the same in the future.

Mr. JAwoRSKI. Thank you, Senator Tunney.



Senator TUNNEY. Senator Saxbe, I would like to ask you how wide
you think the scope of the doctrine of executive privilege is.

Can executive privilege in your mind be used to cover up evidence
of wrong doing by members of the executive branch?

Senator SAxBE. There is a body of law that is well determined. I
think that it cannot. I do believe that there are certain areas of na-
tional security where he should, where he has an obligation to cer-
tainly ask that this privilege extend to it.

I do not think that it ever contemplated covering wrongdoing.
Senator TUNNEY. Do you feel that the doctrine of national security

ought to be used at any time, under any circumstances, for the pur-
poses of covering up?

Senator SAXBE. No.
Senator TuNNEY. In your mind, then, under no circumstances, would

a claim of national security prevent Mr. Jaworski as Special Prose-
cutor from going to court to obtain criminal evidence, despite the fact
that national security might be claimed by the President as grounds for
not revealing that evidence?

Senator SxBE. I do kmow this, at times of stress in this country,
during the war and elsewhere, that there were things done in the name
of this defense, in the name of security and in the name of danger of
lives lost, and so on, that really-I know that in time of war many
things are done o.f that nature.

I think that Mr. Jaworski in his position can be the sole judge of
whether anything that comes up in this investigation is of such im-
portance in national security that it cannot be disclosed, and I would
not interject myself into that determination.

Senator TUNNEY. Would you advise the President of the United
States regarding his rights on this matter .

Would you, for instance, advise the President that he would not have
right to claim privilege on grounds of national security if, in his mind,
ie felt that the national security interest was such that he should not
reveal the information to Mr. Jaworski?

Senator SAXBE. I think that he has waived his privilege in prac-
tically every instance by releasing tapes, by releasing information, and
I v other information that he supplied; and I think that he would have
to take this up, or his representative, directly with Mr. Jaworski. That
would be the final determination. If Mr. Jaworski were in doubt, he
would have to take it directly up with the judge.

Senator TUNNEY. As I undlerstand your answer, then, you would not
feel that it was appropriate to advise the President in this area as it
related to national security?

Senator S.xBE. I would advise him to discuss it with Mr. Jaworski
if I were asked for advice. I think that the waiver that has been
made, in so many instances now, that the line is fuzzy.

Senator Tr-M,-YrM- . .Taworski, what would be your answer to that
question?

Do you feel that under any circumstances, that national security
ought to be used for purposes of keeping evidence away from you in
a criminal investigation if you felt that that evidence was necessarv in
order either to prove or to disprove crime?
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Mr. J.AwoRsKI. I would answer that, Senator Tunney, by saying that
it should not be kept away from an examination and I have been
assured that it would not be kept from me.

The reason that I say "from an examination" is that I can now per-
ceive, perhaps, of a situation where some evidence should not be used.
I am not confronted with that at the moment, because I have gone
right forward with those instances that have been referred to as in-
volved with matters of national security. And very frankly. the plea
that Mr. Krogh entered the other day came as a result of some discus-
sions that he and I had, and I think that because of the statements
that he has made already, and that I understand he will make, perhaps
at the time of sentencing, I think that that particular defense, and
that particular reason for nondisclosure, as pointed to, is pretty well
over with.

I do not think that I am going to face it again. It may be that in a
different area it will arise, Senator Tunney. If it does, I am not going
to accept it unless there is something that is truly so closely related to
something involving the seevritv of this Nation that I would have to
take that into account before I brought it out.

At the moment it would be conjectural, I do not know what it might
relate to. I think I indicated to you that there was one matter discused
with me that I do not see as any bar to my going forward with the
things that I have in mind.

Senator TuNNEY. As I understand the answer, then, Senator Saxbe,
to the question that I have asked, the man who will make the sole
determinations as to whether we go ahead to discover evidence, despite
any claims of national security and executive privilege by the Presi-
dent, would be Mr. Jaworski, and you would, in no way, advise the
President on the matter, other than to say, speak to Mr. Jaworski
about the matter?

Senator SAxBE. That is correct.
Senator TUNNEY. Mr. Jaworski. have there been any changes of atti-

tude in the White House with respect to cooperation, or powers of the
Special Prosecutor? I read in the newspapers recently that Mr. Zigler
made an attack upon your staff. Do you notice. as a result of that
attack, prior to the attack or subsequent thereto, that there has been
any change in the cooperation at the White House?

Mr. JAWORsK1. Senator Tunney, I did not accept the attack as being
a valid one, and took the positioA in writing on that particular attack.
I realize that it is possible for there to be some disclosures that would
embarrass our work. I have undertaken to make this very clear to the
staff. I have talked to them a number of times. I try very hard to keep
especially sensitive information available only to those that must di-
rectly work with it. I have not found that the staff has failed in its
loyalty to me, or in its loyalty to the cause, and I have asked directly
that if the White House can pinpoint any such instance, that I want
it done.

It has not been done, sir. For that reason, I have not accepted the
criticism as being supported.

Senator Tut-rqy. You do not feel that there has been any indication
of a lack of cooperation from the White House, as a result of that
attack, or as a result of the events that led up to the attack?



Mr. JAWORSlii. There have been a number of developes iome
times it takes awhile for those to crest, as you know. I have had quite
a number of documents turned over to me. I have had a number of

tape recordings turned over to me, not those that were turned

over to Judge Sirica-a number were turned over to me directly-

I have a representative in the White House now, going through files

in connection with our investigations.
And all I c n say is, at the moment, I am without an instance of

a rejection. I have a few matters pending that have not been passed

on, Ibut I am, at the moment, without a rejection on anything that I

have asked for. I am not saying that that might not arise, T just do

not know. We have not come to the crossroads on two or three of

them. I hope it will not arise, but I have had all of the cooperation
up to this point that I could have asked for, insofar as the production
of documents, insofar as the production of tape recordings, are
concerned.

Senator TuwryN . Senator Saxbe, I do not know if you have had
an opportunity to see a letter that Elliot Richardson wrote on Novem-
ber 8, to Robert Bork, Acting Attorney General, in which he listed a
number of items of unfinished business which he felt were worthspecial merit and attention insofar as the administration of justice

within the Justice Department was concerned.
One was a study of the role and policies of the FBI, another wasthe subject of gulidelines for the use of electronic surveillance, and so

on. It went on to include 15 points. Have you had an opportunity
to see that letter?!Senator SAB Yes, sir, I have seen that.

The letter referred to follows :]
MceLler, VA., November 14, 1978.

Ion. CHARLEs MCC. MATHIAS, Jr.,
U.S. Senate,
Washington, D.C.

DEAB MC: In the course of my recent testimony before the Senate Judiciary
Committee, you expressed some concern with regard to certain matters left
pending at the time of my resignation as Attorney General. I indicated that I
was in the process of drafting a letter for Acting Attorney General Bork sum-
marizing items of unfinished business. That letter has since been completed and
forwarded to Bob Bork-who will, I am confident, give it proper attention.

Given your continuing personal interest and the interest of the members of the
Senate Judiciary Committee, I am enclosing a copy of the letter-for possible
distribution to members of the Committee and for possible inclusion in the rec-
ord should it seem appropriate.

With warm regard,
Sincerely,

ELLIOT L. RICHARDSON.

McLLBAW, VA., November 8, 1978.
Hon. RhOsERT BoRK,
Acting Attorney General,
Wa8rhLgton, D.C.

DEAR Boa: It is with both a sense of regret for leaving so much yet to be
done and appreciation for the dedication with which I know you are approach-
ing the difficult problems of transition that I attempt here to provide a summary
of those items of unfinished business-apart from specific legal cases-which
I believe merit special attention:

(1) Study of the role and policies of the FBI: The study which I initiated-
under the direction of Bill Ruckelshaus and with the full participation and



cooperation of Director Kelley-is comprised of eleven policy issues for analysis
and decision. These issues are of significant interest to the public, the Con-
gress, law enforcement generally and the FBI in particular. It seems to me
highly desirable not only that work continue on these issues, but that the estab-
lished procedure for resolving these issues be maintained. This procedure--
developed by Bill Ruckelshaus and Clarence Kelley-involves: the full partici-
pation of the FBI in the preparation of initial analyses; review of and cow-
inent on these analyses by non-FBI experts chosen, as appropriate, by the
Deputy Attorney General; preparation of objective decision documents for re-
view and comment by the FBI and by Departmental officials with significant
interest in the resolution of the Issues; and presentation to the Attorney Gen-
eral for final decision. In addition, I would call to your attention the fact
that Director Kelley, the Assistant Attorney General for Administration and
the head of the Office of Criminal Justice recently agreed to undertake a (o-
operative, in depth analysis of the FBI budget. I suggest that this cooperative
effort go forward with a view toward completion and review of Its analysls
prior to the preparation of the FY 76 budget.

(2) Guidelines for the use of electronic surveillance: In a letter of Septem-
ber 12 to the Chairman of the Senate Foreign Relations Committee, I articulated
certain surveillance policy guidelines. And I indicated my intention to ensure
not only the application of these guidelines, but also the continuation of effort
to develop new standards and guidelines for both domestic criminal matters
and national security purposes. It seemed to me then, as It seems to me now,
desirable to give these standards precise public articulation In order to foster
better understanding of the scope and nature of the limited use of electronic
surveillance. I suggest, therefore, that the work of the FBI and the Deputy
Attorney General-already well underway in this area-be continued.

(3) Protection of individuals' rights to privacy--con8itet with the nerd for
effcient and effective criminal information systems: The Department has devel-
oped and submitted to the Office of Management and Budget a proposed "Crim-
inal Justice Information Systems Security and Privacy Act." This bill would,
if enacted, provide a sound basis for protecting individuals' rights to privacy.
I would hope that review by other Departments could be expedited and that
the bill could be promptly forwarded for consideration by the Congress.

(4) Protection of the public's rights to "freedom of information"--consistent
with the limitations necessary to protect national seurity, the integrity of in-
vestiqative processes, individuals' rights to privacy and the effective develop-
ncnt and administration of policy within the Bmecutive branch: As you know,

I have initiated-and the Department has budgeted for-a comprehensive, gov-
ernment-wide study of "freedom of Information." I would hope that this Im-
portant study of a complex set of legal and administrative problems would go
forward in accord with the plans already formulated.

(5) Reorganization of the Department: On July 11, 1973, 1 established a Com-
mittee on the Management of the Department to provide the Attorney General
with recommendations which would adapt the Department's antiquated ad-

ministrative structure and practices to the demands of the latter portion of the
twentieth century. On October 17, I announced decisions made on the basis of

"Stage I" of the Committee's analysis. For reasons stated in the Committee's
report and in my own comments to the press, I hope that these decisions will be
implemented-and that the "Stage II" follow-on studies will receive top man-
agement support and attention.

(6) Planning and Evaluation: It is an unfortunate irony that the Department
has, for the past several years, been preaching the merits of comprehensive plan-
ning to states and localities-without In any serious respect practicing what it
preached, Upgrading the Office of Criminal Justice was a first step toward de-
veloping an appropriate analytic capacity for the federal level. I had hoped soon
to establish an office with even broader staff responsibility for Planning and
Evaiuatoa. I would suggest that the Management Committee be directed prompt-
ly to provide a paper on this issue-it is already in the process of development-
for tle Attorney General's decision.

(7) Creation of an Inspector General: On August 8, I established a "Commit
tee on the Inspector General" chaired by the Deputy Attorney General. The
Committee provided me with a preliminary report recommending the circula-

tion of a specific proposal for the creation of an "Office of the Inspector General."



I approved that recommendation and a specific proposal lilts been circultled and
commented upon. The issue is, I believe now ready for further Colimitlee rec-

ommendation and decision. While I have not had in opportunity to review t1e
comments on the proposal, I have been generally in favor of the creation of all
Office of Inspector General. And for reasons stated at the time of the Committee's
creation, I would suggest prompt attention to the recommendation of the Coan-
mittee.

(8) Depolitioizatiog of certain appointmcitts: At my direction, a comlprehel-
sive review of the appointment process for Assistant U.S. Attorneys, U.S. Attor-
neys, U.S. Marshals and Judges was recently completed. While this is in some
respects a controversial subject which will demand careful consideration prior
to decision, certain less controversial decisions seem to me to be clearly indi-
cated: (a) the full "professionalization" of a career Marshals Service and (b)
the creation of a central pool of career professiotias for periodic rotation to U.S.
Attorneys' office to asslt in both litigation and personnel development.

(9) Refonn of the Federal Criminal Code: At my direction a comprehensive
analysis of the Brown Commission Report, S. 1 and S. 1400 has been completed
and Is available for review and decision. Reform of the federal criminal code
would have been my number one legislative priority. Although the subject is
vast, I believe that with prompt attention and thorough legislative planning,
comprehensive code reform could be enacted by the next Congress.

(10) EOlection Reform: This subject is under continuing review by White
House staff. I have noted to the President that there are at present significant
gaps in the statutes concerning political "dirty tricks." I have urged-and would
continue to urge--that, at a minimum, steps be taken promptly to seek legisla-
tion to close these gaps, I have, in addition, established a Committee under the
direction of the Associate Attorney General to undertake a comprehensive re-
view and analysis of the broad issues of election reform-and particularly the
issues of campaign financing. I would hope that the work of this Committee
would continue to receive high priority attention.

(11) "Juvenile Delinquency" Preveition: The serious crime problem in the
United States is in very large measure a youth crime problem. Yet youth crime
has attracted much too little rigorous analytic attention. The starting point for
analysis and reform, in my opinion, should be with focus on the problems of
classification, diagnosis and assignment of youth offenders. Insofar as the "juve-
nile delinquency" problem is more broadly conceived as a problem of youth devel-
opment, I should emphasize that lack of adequate federal funding is not the
cause-the federal government spends more than $12 billion on youth develop-
ment. The problem is largely conceptual and administrative. Here I would urge,
as a first step, the strengthening of the Interagency Council on Juvenile De-
linquency-as suggested by LEAA.

(12) Improvement of inter-Departmental policy development and implemen-
tation: Many of the Department's most serious responsibilities and problems in-
volve policies which have been in important measure the responsibility of other
Departments to develop and administer. It is for this reason that I urged the
creation-and was pleased to be named chairman-of three Cabinet Commit-
tees: Civil Rights, Crime Prevention and Rehabilitation, and Drug Abuse. Pri-
ority at this stage should, in my opinion, be attached to the recruitment of strong
staff support capability for each of these committees.

(13) Reduction of unnecessary litigation: Given the continuing increase in
caseload, it is my opinion that the Department should pursue every opportunity
to reduce that which may be essentially unproductive litigation which the De-
partment is obliged to pursue-but which could be avoided altogether, without

any adverse impact, by the minor modification or clarification of confusing statu-

tory or regulatory language. I have asked the heads of the litigating divisions to

examine this hypothesis. And given the competing demands upon the precious
and limited legal resources of the Department, I would urge follow-ups on this
point.

(14) Liaison with Gambling Commission: There is much evidence which sug-
gests that gambling is a principal source of financing for organized crime: but
there is very little evidence as to the effect of law enforcement efforts on either
the incidence of gambling or the strength of organized crime. This raises funda-
mental questions as to whether the benefits of present law enforcement ap-
proaches to gambling outweigh the costs. These questions-being Investigated by



the Congressional and Presidential Commission oil the Review of the NationalPolicy Towards Gambling-must be of considerable concern and continuing
interest to the Department of Justice.

(15) Reduction of the influo of illegal aliens: A number of coordinate actionsshould continue to be pursued to ameliorate this problem. With the combinationof penalties against employers for the employment of illegal aliens (we have sup-ported H.R. 982, which has not yet been acted on by the Senate) and the admis-sion of a larger number of aliens to meet genuine labor shortages (I have askedfor cooperation here from the Labor and Agriculture Departments), we couldenforce the Fair Labor Standards Act as to the legally admitted workers andcould police their conditions of work. Also, further attention to various person-nel and administrative actions within INS is needed, starting with the confirma-tion by the Senate of General Leonard Chapman's nomination, to improve morale
and performance there.

With best wishes,
Sincerely,

ELLO'T L. RICHARDSON.
Senator TuNNEY. Have you had an opportunity to discuss it with

Mr. Richardson or Mr. Bork?
Senator SAXBE. I discussed it with Mr. Richardson. However, mydiscussions have been extremely limited because I was not nominated

until yesterday. I felt it would be presumptuous of me to interjectmyself into the Justice Department until I had some reason and au-
thority to do it. I have not been over there. I have not talked in length
on anything.

There is a tremendous overhaul going on in the Justice Department.from top to bottom. There is a reorganization. There are a number of
committees, on the freedom of information, there are committees onwiretapping, and surveillances, committees on the criminal code, and
all of these things are going on at the present time.

I hope to get into them and to assess their respective values.
Senator TuNN7E Y. I was wondering if you feel that you can answer

questions with respect to the items that were raised by Mr. Richard-
son with respect, for instance, to the role and policies of the FBI?
Have you had a chance, in your own mind, over the period of years
that you have served in the Senate and as attorney general of your
State, to evaluate the role and policies of the FBI and the nature of
the Attorney General's supervision over the FBI? Could you respond
to questions that were raised by Mr. Richardson in this letter?

Senator S,%XBE. I do not think that I could go into any depth on it.
I have not talked to Mr. Kelley. I feel strongly that the FBI has gone
through a rather traumatic experience in the last 3 years because for a
long time after Mr. Hoover's death, and then the period of time when
there was no director, then Mr. Gray, who left under circumstances
not too attractive, and then Mr. Ruckelshaus and since then Mr.
Kelley, who really has not had time to get involved in the general
overhaul of the FBI.

I feel strongly that the FBI is a force for good in this country, thatthey should be an example to all law enforcement departments for
fairness and capability, and I think that they can regain a great dealof their previous splendor through enthusiastic and hearty coopera-
tion with the Attorney General. I intend to do that.

Senator TUNNEY. Mr. Richardson said, from the study that he initi-ated, that there are 11 policy issues for analysis and decision, and he



goes on to say that: "It seems to me highly desirable not only that
work continue on these issues, but that the established procedure for
resolving these issues be maintained." What are your thoughts on
that?

Senator S.kxBE. I do not have any on that right now. I have not
made any assessment of that.

Senator TuNNEY. You have not seen the study ?
Senator SAxBE. No; I have not. As I said, I do not think that I

should interject myself until my disability was removed and that f
was named and I did come up here.

Senator TUNNEY. In the Evening Star Acting Attorney General
Robert Bork was quoted as saying iat he has told William P. Saxbo
that his top priority, when he becomes Attorney General, should be to
push a study of possible reorganization of the Federal Bureau of In-
vestigation. He also told Saxbe that he should also push parts of the
reorganization program that Richardson started before he resigned.Senator SAXBE. He told me, he did, and I told him that I would
look them over.

Senator TUNNEY. You have not made any decision on it?
Senator SAxBE. No.
Senator TUNNEY. How about guidelines for the use of electronic

surveillance?
Apparently, Mr. Richardson was developing guidelines.Are you familiar with these guidelines, and do you have any

thoughts?
Senator SAKXRE. The only guidelines that I am aware of is that noone but the Attorney General can authorize a request to a court for

electronic surveillance.
Senator TTNNmy. Mr. Richardson said that:

It seemed to me then, as it seems to me now, desirable to give these standardsprecise public articulation in order to foster a better understanding of the scopeand nature of the limited use of electronic surveillance. I suggest, therefore,that the work of the FBI and the Deputy Attorney General-already well under-way in this area-be continued.
Do you agree with that?
Senator SAXBR. I do not know.Senator TuNNy. I assume that you feel that there should be apublic articulation of the standards, however, do you not?
Senator SAXBE. What do you mean I
Senator TUNINEy. I assume that what Mr. Richardson means whenlie says public articulation of standards is to make clear to the publicWhat those standards are, and that when electronic surveillance isgoig to be instituted it will be instituted according to those standards.
Senator SA-ME. In other words, tell public what and when?Senator TUNNTy. And how, and what the standards are.
Senator SAXBE. That sounds reasonable.
Senator TuNxEy. Mr. Richardson goes on:
Protection of individuals' rights to privacyconsistent with the need for effi-cient and effective criminal information systems. The Department has developedand submitted to the Office of Management and Budget a proposed "CriminalJustice Information Systems Security and Privacy Act." This bill would, if en-acted. provide a sound basis for protecting individuals' rights to privacy.



Do you have any knowledge of this legislation?
Senator S.\x, . Not specifically, but I am very much interested in

this because I think that this is 'a very importat right that an indi-
vidual has and should not be invadel. There is great danuer today
with the electronic computers and so on that we do invade the indi-
vidual's rights and you have to walk the fine line of making available
information to proper law enforcement people and at the same timenot invading individual rights.

Now, as I understand it, the number of electronic surveillance cases
has dropped dramatically every year in the past 10 years, but there isa growing concern when'you leave the electronic surveillance and you
proceed to the building iip of criminal information, because criminal
Information is growing, and the means of distributing this criminal
information is becoming more sophisticated.

Now, if this kind of information is made available to people who
then disclose it illegally, it becomes an invasion of a personal right.

Senator TTNEY. I assume that you are talking about, among other
things, the electronic data by the NCIC and the distribution that is
made of this criminal data to local police chiefs throughout the
country?

Se itor SAxiB. That is right. I have had some familiarity with this.*When I was Attorney General of Ohio, I ran a clearinghouse for crim-
inal information. I found that everyone from credit bureaus to em-
ployient offices were invading our sources and. actually, it was done
on a first come, first serve basis. They actually charged a fee to supply
infor'mation to employers.

W e would gladly close up these holes. I have been led to understand
that the information service is gradually closing up the holes. cutting
off the outlets that misuse this information and make it available to
people that are not authorized to have it. I will certainly continue that.

Senator TxN-T. Y. You take a personal interest in this matter?
Senator SAXBE. I do.
Senator TtT,-X-,-EY. -Mr. Richardson goes on to say:
Protection of the public's rights to "freedom of inforinatiou"-consisteut with

the limitations necessary to protect national security, the integrity of investiga-
tive processes., individuals' rights to privacy and the effective development and
administration of policy within the executive branch. I have initiated-and the
Depa rtment has budgeted for-a comprehensive, Government-wide study of
"freedom of information."

Do You feel that you would go ahead?
Senator S.kxHEF. The Freedom of Information A(ct has not been im-

plenmented to the degree that it should have. and it is something that
has a lot of difficulty, of things with the various departments, not just
the Justice Department. but all the departments, to cooperate, and I
am hoping that the committee that is working on this will be able to
work out some of those bugs, so that we can have full compliance with
the law. The Law is rather explicit. I do not believe it is being com-
1)letely coinplied with, not only in the Justice but the other depart-
ments.

Senator Tr,-x-x . You feel that you would go ahead with the way
that it was being done by Mr. Richardson in that area?

Senator S,\x.. If there is a committee on it, I would certainly want
that committee to continue.



Senator TUNwNy. He goes on to talk about the reorganization of the
Department. It says he:

Established a committee on the management of the Department to provide the
Attorney General with recommendations which would adapt the Department's
antiquated administrative structure and practices to the demunds of the later
portion of the 20th century.

Then he talks about stage I and stage II studies.
Do you plan to carry on those studies ?
Senator SAxBE. They have already gone through with stage I. It was

put on in October. Stage II is the first chance that will get to get a
crack at it. Some of the things that he has done I can understand,
some I cannot. I will have to have more information.

Senator TuNNEY. You feel that these studies are important ?
Senator SAXBE. The studies are important. Whether the changes

are necessary or not, I do not know. Some of them look very real. I am
somewhat alarmed by the obvious effort to separate the Attorney Gen-eral from some of the bureau chiefs. I do not quite understand this.I think the Attorney General should be very close to those bureauchiefs, certainly the FBI and some of the other, the persons in some ofthe other services. I will want to get more information on that.

Senator TuNNy. Mr. Richardson in his letter said:
Planning and evaluation: It is an unfortunate Irony that the Department has,for the past several years, been preaching the merits of comprehensive plan-ning to States and localities--without in any serious respect practicing whatit preached. Upgrading the Office of Criminal Justice was a first step.
Do you think that such actions on the part of the Attorney Generalare valuable, and should they be continued ?Senator SAXE. I cannot give you an intelligent answer on that. I

just do not know that much about it.Senator TuNR-r. Creation of an Inspector General. He says that he:
Established a "Committee on the Inspector General" chaired by the DeputyAttorney General. The committee provided me with a preliminary report recom-mending the circulation of a specific proposal for the creation of an "Office orthe Inspector General." I approved that recommendation and a specific proposalhas been circulated.
Do you have any feeling about that?
Senator SAxBi. I was an Inspector General in the Air Force forsome period of time. I am familiar with the operation of it. It is aquasi-military approach to control. Whether that will fit into anoffice such as the Department of Justice, I do not know. It is a satis-factory means of detecting omissions and mistakes. It is worthless

without a proper follQwup.
The followup has to have the authority to see that there are correc-tions made. Just to identify the problem is no answer. So I will con-tinue the investigation on that, and if it lives up to the expectationsand there can be an adequate follow, I am not that familiar with thechain of command over there to know if it will work. To work therehas to be a very tight organization with command responsibility.I have a feeling that some of these responsibilities are rather loose.And to go around and shake down, say, a district attorney's officewithout being able to help the guy is not very effective. If he is short-handed, if he is overrun with work, if he cannot hire the kind of people
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he wants, what good does it do to come out and come in with a
deficiency list a mile lone? It would be better to send a guy out there
and tell him to go to work rather than picking the ox to pieces.

Now, as I say, unless you have a strict command responsibility, an
Inspector General is just a nuisance.

Senator T-uNNEY. Point 8. Depoliticization of certain appointments.
He says:

At my direction, a comprehensive review of the appointment process for
Assistant U.S. Attorneys, U.S. Attorneys, U.S. Marshals and Judges was recently
completed." Then some of the decisions that he felt were clearly Indicated:
"(a) the full 'professionalization' of a career Marshals Service and (b) the
creation of a central pool of career professionals.

Senator SAXBE. This is a problem because of the deficiencies in pro-
fessionalism that is necessary. However, you and I are here through
politics. If you remove politics from all aspects of American life, you
remove political party responsibility.

Congress-and this is a congressional problem, it is not a problem
for the Attorney General's Office alone-Congress can remove these
standards tomorrow and say that the Congressman and the Senator
has no input on the naming of a judge or on the naming of a district
attorney. What I would like to know is who does and how is he better
qualified than a Senator.

I think that when you start depoliticizing things, you had better
watch out, you have depoliticized yourself, because if you stick en-
tirely to the bureaucracy, it is not always the answer to all problems.
In fact, I can point to a number of bureaucracies that bogged down
in their own redtape. I am sure that one of the reasons that we do get
as good people as we do for district attorneys and for judges is be-
cause they feel an individual challenge. Get a young man on his way
up. If you make this strictly a civil service job, you are going to get
a lot of old dreamers in there that are in there for the trip and are
not going to be the kind of people that you want.

Senator TUNiEy. Insofar as U.S. Attorneys are concerned, I whole-
heartedly agree with you. I wonder what your thoughts are with re-
gard to the Marshals Service, depoliticizing the Marshals Service?

Senator SAXBR. If there are deficiencies in the Marshals Service
the way it is now, I am not aware of it. I always thought they operated
rather well.

Senator TuNN&Y. Mr. Richardson goes on to talk of reform of the
Federal Criminal Code. "At my direction a comprehensive analysis
of the Brown Commission Re port, S. I and S. 1400 has been completed
and is available for review and decision."

Quite clearly that subject is a vast one, and I have no intention of
asking you specifics.

Senator SAXBE. It has been before Congress for some time. I think
it is essential that Congress move on it. Without any input from the
Attorney General's Office, I am just aware of the fact that our crim-
inal code is antiquated and needs to be brought up to date. There is a
lot of standardization that is necessary. The bill has been in this com-
mittee, in subcommittee. There are a lot of members here that have
done a tremendous amount of work on it. It seems to hang up some-
where along the line. Why, I am just not sure.



Senator TuN.NEY. Do you intend to review the Federal Criminal
Code and the recommendations that have been made for reformn so
that you will have an ability to give a personal input to the Congress
as to recommended changes?

Senator SAxnE. Yes. I might add that I do have some information
as to what is in it now. I am interested in it. I was on the executive
committee of the Attorney Generals Association. All those organiza-
tions were consulted 10 years ago, and there has been a million hours
of work on this criminal code.

Now, for me to say that I am going to get completely familiar with
it in the next 6 weeks, no. I know generally what it is. I know what
the guidelines are. But as I say, I do not think it is going to pass this
session of Congress.

Senator TuNNEY. It is going to be a lot longer than 6 weeks before
it passes.

Senator SAxBE. That is right. But I would certainly be able to sup-
ply people who can testify, because the Department of Justice has
been working very closely with the members of this commitee and
the House Committee and others that are interested.

Senator TuNNEY. Election reform. This is a subject which Mr.
Richardson says is under continuing review by the White House staff.

Do you intend to involve yourself m this?
Do you feel there is a need ?
Senator SAxBE. No, I do not think the Attorney General has any

business involving himself in such delicate congressional activities as
these. He would provide such information as he might be called on,
but to make recommendations I think would be presumptuous.

Senator TuNNEy. How about in the areas of campaign financin ?
Senator SAXBE. I do not think that is the Attorney neral's jo,

unless I completely misconstrue what it is. I think the Attorney Gen-
eral runs the Department of Justice. The Department of Justice takes
the laws that Congress sends over there and does their utmost to try
to see that they work, those that have criminal or civil liability, vigor-
ously prosecutes both of those. I am certainly not going to try to
advise Congress about what kind of campaign spending law they
should pass.

Senator TuNNzr. Juvenile Delinquency Prevention. He writes about
the need to develop far better procedures to attack the problems of
juvenile delinquene.

Do you feel that this is important?
Senator SAXB. I think it is extremely important. I think that we

waste many lives by the system. The problem is how to go about it.
Senator TUN-Ey. He recommends strengthening the Interagency

Council on Juvenile Delinquency.
Are you familar with that ?
Senator SAXBE. I am not familiar enough with their job to give you

an opinion.
Senator TuNN Y. There are a number of other areas that are cov-

ered, but I am sure that when you take oftice you will have ample
opportunity to study them, and I assume you will address yourself
to them. I do not want to hold up the proceedings today by going over
them.



Senator SAxBE. Senator Tunney, there is one thing I might add in
that regard. In my limited contact with the Justice Department-
as I say, I have not been there; it is secondhand, sending people over
there, looking over material that was brought back-I am amazed
at the turmoil that seems to exist there of numerous committees, all
studying very big problems that portend great changes. The vigorousreorganzation wch they are in the midst of, the vacancies that are
created by this reorganization, the changing of approaches to many
of the bureaus through different avenues of approach, all of these
things have just compficated the job of Attorney General terribly, and
I am sure that Mr. Richardson, had he been permitted to continue,
would have been very active in the next 2 or 3 years that he has insti-
gated. It is going to mean an assessment of his activities by my people
just as soon as I get in there.

We are going to have to proceed on those that we feel have the first
priority, and set priorities for the rest of them. I do not see how we
can proceed on all of them, because there are too many balls in the
air.

Senator TuNNEY. Do you have any idea of what your first priority
will be when you get there?

Senator SAXBE. The first priority will be staffing, because I have to
get a deputy, I have to get at least five supergrade people within a
very short time, people to come in to head major bureaus and depart-
ments. And, frankly, my first priority after that is to get acquainted
with every aspect of the Office of the Attorney General.

Senator TuNNrEY. Will you have freedom to pick your own deputy?
Senator SAXBE. Yes. I intend to keep Mr. Bork. He is a capable

Solicitor. I certainly hope he will stay. Other than that, I have no
comment. I have been apprised of a wonderful lot of talent down
there of people that are in offices now. I hope they will stay. Frankly,
for the last 3 months, since my name came up. I have been sending
almost daily messages down there, hang in there, because a lot of
people want to leave. There is a great uncertainty, just trying to hang
onto them until I get over there.

Senator TUNNEY. This morning in answer to questions from Senator
Kennedy, you said that you would not participate in the Kent State
investigation. You said you did not want to use the word recuse. The
impression was that, in effect, you completely disqualified yourself.

Senator SAXBE. That is my intent. If there are decisions to be made-
and frankly, I think the major decision was made yesterday to call a
grand jury-if there is evidence forthcoming, this is where it is goingto be developed.Senator TuNnEY. I was shown during the luncheon break an article
that appeared in the Los Angeles Times, November 7, 1973, in which
reportedly you said in an interview that you had no thought to dis-
qualify yourself and that you did not perceive yourself as being biased
on that issue.

Senator SAXBE. That is the reason I did not want to use the word
recuse. I do not think I am biased. I do not think I am prejudiced on
this matter. If there is any reason to believe that there was a con-
spiracy, I think they should have a full opportunity to proceed. I



have no one to protect. I think that because of the attention that has
been drawn, the best way to demonstrate it is that any decision that
will be made will be made by others in the department.

Senator TuNnEY. Just a few last questions.
What is your feeling with respect to going around the country giv-

ing political speeches as Attorney General,
Would you feel compelled to do that? Will you do it I
Senator SAXBE. I think in normal times there is nothing wrong with

the Attorney General doing this, but I do not think these are normal
times. It will not be my practice to do so.

Senator TUNNEY. Senator Hart asked me to ask you a question, a
question related to possible contributions which Senator Saxbe may
or may not have received in his campaign.

It seems to me that the public confidence requires that all questions
be asked before rather than after a nominee takes office, so I offer that
to suggest the tone of the questions I am about to ask.

Officials of Armco Steel and Republic Steel are considered active
contributors and fundraisers to the Republican Party in Ohio. Per-
haps they contributed to your campaignI

Senator SAXBE. I do not know. I would hope they did, but I do
not know.

Senator TUNNEY. Further, the two steel companies own the Reserve
Mining Co. in Silver Bay, Minn. The Environmental Protection
Agency asked the Justice Department to bring suit against Reserve
Mining for dumping taconite tailings into Lake Superior. The I)e-
partment brought the suit and litigation is under way. Environmen-
talists, particularly in Michigan and Minnesota, are concerned that the
suit be vigorously pursued by the Justice Department.

For the record, would there be an association with Armco and Re-
public Steel that would affect the manner in which the Justice Depart-
ment would pursue that Reserve Mining case ?

Senator SAxE. No. I might add that I think I received contribu-
tions-when I say it, I do not know it is true--but I think I received
contribution% from 4,000 or 5,000 people. If I were to tailor the activi-
ties of the Justice Department on the basis of whether or not they
contributed to me, there would be a lot of people that would be in the
same class as this, and I assure you I am not going to keep any list ofpeople that contributed on what the Justice Department does. I am
going to be completely objective.

Senator TUNNEY. Would you review the matter and your possible
conflict and make a determination if you should recuse yourself?

Senator SAXBE. On what?
Senator TUNNEY. On the question on the suit against the Reserve

Mining Co.
Senator SAXBE. No. There again presumption of prejudice. In the

Kent State thing there is a lot of emotion. People were hurt. It is a hot
question in Ohio. I was a member of the National Guard. I was ac-
quainted with everybody involved in that. I think there is sound basis
for me to say any decision be made by somebody else.

On the other, I cannot think of any other cases that the Justice De-partment may have where I have any interest that would suggest that
there is prejudice on my part.



Senator TUNxEY. What you are telling us is you would in no way
allow the fact that they gave you a campaign contribution to affect
your judgment on the case and your willingness to pulsue it?

Senator SAXBE. No. Even if I had stock in the company, which I do
not. In fact I made a large sacrifice-last week I sold my 10 shares
in IBM because they are involved in litigation. I plan to liquidate
other insignificant shareholdings that I have where thcre may be
litigation.

Senator TNim y. Mr. Jaworski, it was reported yesterday that
U.S. Attorney Harold Titus suggested that his office was subjected
to compelling pressures during his year-long investigation of the
Watergate scandal. He declined to state who applied the pressure. Do
you feel that possibly obstruction o.f justice has been involved that you
should investigate the matter?

Mr. JAwoRsKi. I think he should make available to us any informa-
tion he has. We would be pleased to receive it and pursue the matter.
It would be within the jurisdiction of the Special Prosecutor.

Senator TUNNEY. Has he made any attempt to give it to you yet!
Mr. JAWORsiu. As far as I know, he has not. He has not been in touch

with me, but he may have been in touch with my deputy or someone
else. I have not heard about it if he has.

We commented on-not that part of the story but another phase of
the story. I do not think they have been in touch with our office yet.

Senator TuwNmy. You have not personally felt any pressure?
Mr. JAwoRsi. No. There has not been any, Senator Tunney. If

there were an attempt to apply it, I assure you I would not pay any
attention to it.

Senator TuxiNEY. You said that before. I am sure that is true.
Senator Saxbe, I am personally convinced that you are going to be

confirmed very soon, and I just want you to know that I wish you very
well in your new responsibilities. I think you are going to have a very
difficult job, very difficult job, and one which I cannot imagine any-
body giving up the U.S. Senate for. I think that you are to be
commended for attempting to solve many of the difficult problems that
exist in the Department oXf Justice, notwithstanding the morale prob-
lem that you will face, and you have a reputation for being plain-
spoken, being honest, and I th'ink you are going to need those qualities,
as well as the indefatigable constitution that I also know you have
and the character that you also possess. I wish you very well.

Senator SAXBFE. Thank you.
Senator TuNNFY. Senator Mathias.
Senator MAT HAS. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
I promised Senator Eastland I would not be more than 10 minutes.

I will try to live up to that.
I will take off where Senator Tunney finished in welcoming you

and wishing you well, and saying that I am sure members of this com-
mittee would want to be as helpful as they can.

I have just been looking over your biographical sheet here and
thinking, realy, what a happy circumstance it is that you have had the
particular kind of preparation that you have had as you go to the
Justice Department at this time. Your service in the Legislature of



Ohio, your service as attorney general of ohio, your experience as a

private practitioner of the law, I think, will give you a rcalistic ap-

proach to some of the problems of people-the human proble.lns and

other problems of a personal dimension-an approach which is often
lost by people who come to the Capitol, by people who cone to XWash-

ington and head the great departments of our Government. And as

great as these departments are, I think they oftcn have difficulties in

solving problems of individual people, and I am sure that this is an

ability that you can bring to the department.
Were you a member of the National Association of Attorneys

General?
Senator SAXBE. Yes, sir. I served on the executive committee.
Senator NIATUIAS. You will recall that in that association there were

two classes of members, one class that was Iown as the attorneys gen-
eral and the other the attorneys genial.

Senator SAxIn. I belong to both.
Senator MATIUAS. I am also encouraged by some of the activities

that you have undertaken as a member of the Senate, which I think
will now, in your new position, give you a good foundation for facing
some of the problems which have not been solved and need solutions
very badly.

I think, for example, of the bill which you cosponsored, and had
a large part in writing, which dealt with the reform of the entire sys-
tem of criminal justice, beginning with the counseling of juveniles
who were first beginning to show some wayward tendencies, and carry-
ing all the way through to the badly needed ref orm of the corrections
system.

Senator SAxBE. And the parole system.
Senator MATHiAs. Yes, and taking in all the way-stations.
Another is the bill which you cosponsored which deals with total

access to information on the part of all congressional committees who
have the jurisdictional right to that information. This is really a
stronger bill than the Freedom of Information Act. I am sure that
in your new role you will not forget that.

Since Mr. Jaworski is still with us, and we are not going to hold
him long, I have one or two specific questions.

When you were here before, Mr. Jaworski, on the 20th of Novem-
ber, I asked you whether or not you would supply the committee with
a written status report on the requests for evidence, bearing on the
matters in your jurisdiction, which have been directed to the White
House.

Subsequently Chairman Eastland, on November 29, sent you the
specifics of that request.

I wonder how you are coming along in giving us an answer?
Mr. JAWORSKI. I had the letter on my desk to sign, I think it was

on Monday, when there came an arrangement that I had made, had
concluded on Monday afternoon, that increased the flow of materials
substantially. There also was a development that occasioned the deliv-
ery of a number of recorded tapes to me, and I then revised the report
that I was going to file with you. It is in the course of preparation
now. It will be filed. It is a different report than I would have had to



file a few days ago. I thought I would bring it up to date, rather than
file the one that was outdated.

Senator MATHiAS. Your report today is progress?
Mr. JAWo0SXI. Yes, sir, it is.
Senator MATRIAS. I know, as far as Senator Saxbe is concerned, thatSenator Byrd went over this whole area. He has committed himselfto your full right to access to such information.
Senator Saxbe, the Senator from California has saved us a lot oftime by going over the letter of November 8 which Mr. Richardsonsent to Mr. Bork on projects in the Justice Department which were

pending at the time of the Boston Massacre.I would simply, without going into detail on these items, point outthat many of them are projects which were develo ed as a result ofconversations with Mr. Richardson and as a result of colloquies thattook place during the confirmation hearings on his nomination as
Attorney General.

One in which I have a particular interest is the Criminal JusticeInformation Systems Security and Privacy Act that Senator Tunneymentioned. I would hope that we will be able to develop a bill thatwill reach all information, including State systems, which we canreach because of the LEAA involvement, and which will expedite theinclusion of the dispensation of arrest records, and provide citizenswith the right of review and the mechanics for purging erroneousinformation. I think it should have some criminal penalties for viola-tion. I do not think we could today lay you under any time limit, but Iwould hope that we could have a bill early in the next session and begin
work on that.

Senator SAXB3E. Was there an understanding that the Justice De-
partment would provide such a bill?

Senator MATnIAS. Yes; there was an understanding. I cannot makeit a commitment, but there was an understanding. We even got so faras to write the title of it, and there is a draft available. I hope that this
is a matter that you will give some early attention to.

Senator SAX3E. I will.
Senator MATHuS. I will mention the question of the FBI again.

The FBI largely operates in a statutory vacuum. Some of its mostcritical powers are derived from Franklin Roosevelt's Executive
orders and that is not a happy way to have it. It is not happy forthe FBI. I do believe that we need a statutory base there. This com-mittee will be happy to work with you. I think it is much better thatwe work together than to work at cross purposes. I know that we will
have your cooperation on it.

Finally, we have made a good start, and we have had fine coopera-tion from Melvin Laird and Secretary Weinberg as well as from theDepartment of Justice, in the field of juvenile delinquency. As youknow, as much as 70 percent of the crime in many parts of America
is committed by juvenile delinquents.

I would lay you under particular injunctions in these three areas.
They are of critical importance.

Senator SAXBE. I think it is indicative of the problem when youhave four or five agencies involved in juvenile delinquency, no onehas been able to find a handle on this. It is a product of a very destruc-



tire social influence that are beyond the Department of Justice, and
I will be happy to work on this, but you have got to remember that
the Department of Justice is not a social agency and in most of these
things, they are caused by a breakdown in family and community life.
I am very much interested, and hope that we can work together.

Senator MATHIAS. One of the most troublesome things that has come
up in the last couple of years--it came up in the Richardson confirma-
tion, it came up in the Patrick Gray hearing it came up in Chief
Kelley's confirmation-is the maintenance of the so-called dossiers on
Members of Congress.

It would seem to me that the time has long since passed for keeping
these records. I would hope that you would see to it that the pledges
that have been given to this committee--

Senator SAXBF. I was amazed that this practice existed. I did not
even know it until I got into some of these discussions.

Senator MArIAs. If you find that it has persisted, despite all the
pledges that were given, I hope that you will dispense with it.

Senator SAXBE. I will give it immediate attention.
Senator MATHIAs. As a final word, I feel that one of the tragedies

of the Boston massacre was the evidence later put before this Com-
mittee that the Attorney General, Mr. Richardson, did not have an
opportunity to talk with the President personally during some of the
most critical days leading up to that event. I would urge that you
would maintain your rank as one of the senior members of the Cabinet
to insist upon personal access to the President.

Senator SAxBE. This, he has assured me.
Senator MATias. This is a critical element in the kind of service

that you can render to the country, and to the President.
We wish you well.
Senator SAXB . Thank you.
[Senator Mathias subsequently made the following material a part

of the record.]
U.S. SENATE,

November 28, 1978.
Hon. ELLIOT L. RICHARDSON,
McLean, Va.

DEAR ELLIOT: I note by this morning's Washington Post that you have made
reference to two documents bearing on the firing of Archibald Cox which have
not yet been made a part of the record of the oversight hearings of the Senate
Judiciary Committee. I am wondering if you would be willing to supply me with
copies of these documents for inclusion in the record.

I should also advise you that I will submit copies of these documents to General
Haig for his comment in the light of the differences of opinion that have been
aired publicly with respect to the circumstances under which Mr. Cox was fired.

Sincerely yours,
CHARLES MCC. MATHIAS, Jr.

U.S. Senator.

MCLEAN, VA., November 80, 1978.
Hon. CHARLES McC. MATHIAS, Jr.,
U.S. ,Senate,
Waskington, D.C.

DEAR MAC: Here, in response to your letter of November 28, are the two
documents bearing on the firing of Archibald Cox which were referred to in that
morning's Washington Post.



The first document embodies my initial attempt to put in writing, at the saig-
gestion of Mr. Cox, the proposal I had submitted to him orally. This document
contains a paragraph captioned "Other Tapes and Documents" which was
omitted from later drafts at the urging of Mr. J. Fred Buzhardt, who pointed
out that the paragraph was redundant because the proposal on its faue dealt
only with the subpoenaed tapes.

The second document is a draft press release written Friday evening, October
19, immediately after I received the President's letter instructing me to direct
Mr. Cox to make no further attempts by judicial process to obtain tapes, notes.
or memoranda of Presidential conversations. I held up this release upon learning
that the President's letter to me had not been made public.

I would be glad to have these documents included in the record of the hearing
on legislation to create the position of special prosecutor at which I recently
testified.

With warm regard,
Sincerely,

ELLIOT L. RicHARsoN.
Enclosures.

THE THIRD PERSON

The cornerstone of the proposal is reliance on an individual ("the Reporter")
who can be counted upon to provide a complete and accurate report of ail the
material portions of the tapes. Given such reliance on this individual, lie mtLt
be a person of wide experience, strong character, and firmly established reputa-
tion for veracity. He must, moreover, be a person who would be recognized as
putting his responsibility to the truthfulness of his report above any other
considerations.

PROCEDURE

The Reporter would be furnished with a raw transcript of the tapes from
which had been omitted only continuous portions of substantial duration which
clearly and in their entirety were unrelated to the Watergate case or related
matters. With this transcript in hand, the Reporter would listen to the entire
tapes, Including the omitted portions. Having replayed the tapes or portions
thereof as often as necessary to satisfy him as to their content and meaning, the
Reporter would prepare a report which differed from a direct and complete
transcript of the tapes only In the following respects:

(a) The conversation would be converted into the third person;
(b) Any continuous portion not relating to Watergate matters at all would

be omitted but any such portion would be identified In brackets by general sub-
ject (e.g., "[Impoundment of appropriations]").

(c) Any reference to national defense or foreign relations matters whose
disclosure would, in the judgment of the Reporter, do real harm and which was
not otherwise omitted as part of a continuous portion would be omitted, but
the report would preserve the sense of any such reference insofar as it had any
conceivable relevance relationship to Watergate matters and identify the subject
by a bracketed reference (e.g., "[SALT]").

(d) The Reporter would paraphrase language whose literal disclosure would
in his judgment be seriously embarrassing to the President but would take pains
to make sure that the paraphrase did not alter the sense, Including the flavor or
emphasis, of the original;

(e) At any point where, despite repeated replaying and adjustments of vol-
ume, the Reporter could not make out what was being said, the Reporter would
so signify (e.g., "[Unintelligible]").

The Reporter would preface his report with a certification under oath attesting
to his faithful observance of the procedure set forth above.

COURT APPROVAL

Court approval of the proposed procedure would be sought at two stages: (a)
in general terms when or soon after the Reporter began his task, but without
identifying him by name, and (b) when the report was delivered to the Court
with the Reporter's certificate. At the second stage, the Special Prosecutor and
counsel for the President would at-that-time join in urging the Court to accept
the report as a full and accurate record of the material portions of the tapes
for all purposes for which access to those tapes might thereafter be sought by or
on behalf of any person having standing to obtain such access.
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OTHER TAPES AND DOCUMENTS

The proposed arrangement would undertake to cover only the tapes heretofore
subpoenaed by the Watergate Grand Jury at the request of the Special Prosecu-
tor. Any request by the Special Prosecutor for a similar report covering other
tapes as well as any request by the Special Prosecutor for memorandum or other
documents believed by the Special Prosecutor to deal with the same conversations
covered by the proposed report would be the subject of subsequent negotiation
between the Special Prosecutor and counsel for the President.

ASSURANCE AGAINST TAMPERING

Submission of the report to the Court would be accompanied by such affidavits
with respect to the care and custody of the reports as would help to assure that
the tapes listened to by the Reporter had not at any time been altered or
curtailed.

DRAFT PREss RErEASE
The President's decision to call on Senator Stennis to prepare an authenticated

record constitutes, in my view, a reasonable and constructive compromise of the
"Watergate tapes" issue. It seems to me inconsistent, however, with the explicit
understandings on which the office of Special Prosecutor was created to deal
now with hypothetical future attempts by Mr. Cox to invoke judicial process, and
the proposal I presented to Mr. Cox this week did not attempt to do so, I plan to
seek an early opportunity to discuss this approach with the President.

U.S. SENATE,
COMMITTEE ON THE JUDICIARY,

Washington, D.C., December 5, 1973.Gen. ALEXANDER M. HAle, Jr.,
Amsitant to the President, The White House,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR GENERAL HAIe: The fact that testimony given before the Senate Judiciary
Committee by Elliot Richardson has been publicly disputed has been a matter
of concern to members of the Committee. In view of the Committee's specific
agreement with Mr. Richardson and the Administration with respect to depart-
mental regulations creating and governing the office of Special Prosecutor, it is
obviously important to know why and how the office so created was abolished.

Mr. Richardson has now made available to me, at my request, two documents
not heretofore submitted for the Committee record or otherwise available to the
public. These documents are described by Mr. Richardson as follows:

"The first document embodies my initial attempt to put in writing, at the sug-
gestion of Mr. Cox, the proposal I had submitted to him orally. This document
contains a paragraph captioned 'Other Tapes and Documents' which was omitted
from later drafts at the urging of Mr. J. Fred Buzhardt, who pointed out that
the paragraph was redundant because the proposal on its face dealt only with
the subpoenaed tapes.

"The second document is a draft press release written Friday evening, Octo-
ber 19, immediately after I received the President's letter instructing me to direct
Mr. Cox to make no further attempts by judicial process to obtain tapes, notes, or
memoranda of Presidential conversations. I held up this release upon learning
that the President's letter to me had not been made public,"

It is my intention to enter these documents into the record at the next meet-
ing of the Judiciary Committee.

I might point out that the draft of the Stennis compromise prepared by Mr.
Richardson and amended by Mr. Buzhardt would seem to corroborate Mr. Rich-
ardson's testimony that he had not agreed to any limitation of the authority of
the Special Prosecutor during the early part of the week of October 15th. The
letter from Mr. Cox to Mr. Wright dated October 19th, which is already a part
of Committee record, would indicate that the matter of limiting the Special
Prosecutor's authority was, however, a subject of conversation between Mr.
Charles Alan Wright and Mr. Cox by that date. This again would seem to
corroborate Mr. Richardson's testimony.

Since there have been conflicting versions of this story, notwithstanding this
evidence, and since Mr. Richardson's telephone and appointment logs submitted
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to the Committee identify you as a principal member participant in these events,
I am hopeful that you will be able to resolve the apparent contradictions.

It would, of course, be helpful to have your comment and I want to give you
an opportunity to register your views.

I should advise you that I would expect to advise the Committee of your reply
and introduce it as part of the Committee record.

Sincerely yours, CHARLES McC. MATJUIA5, Jr.,
U.S. Senator.

Enclosures.

WASHINGTON, D.C., October 19, 1978.
CHARLES ALAN WRIGHT, Esq.,
The White House,
Washington, D.C.

DEAR CHARLiE: Thank you for your letter confirming our telephone conversa-
tion last evening.

Your second paragraph referring to my comments 1, 2, 6, and 9 requires a
little fleshing out although the meaning is clear in the light of our telephone con-
versation. You stated that there was no use In continuing conversations in an
effort to reach a reasonable out-of-court accommodation unless I would agree
categorically to four points.

Point one was that the tapes must be submitted to only one man operating in
secrecy, and the President has already selected the only person in the country
who would be acceptable to him.

Point two was that the person named to provide an edited transcript of the
tapes could not be named Special Master under a court order.

Point three was that no portion of the tapes would be provided under any
circumstances. This means that even if the edited transcript contained evidence
of criminality important in convicting wrong-doers and even if the court were
to rule that only the relevant portion of the original tapes would be admitted
in evidence, still the portion would be withheld. It is also clear, that under your
Point 3, the tapes would be withheld even if it meant dismissal of prosecutions
against former Government officials who have betrayed the public trust.

Point four was that I must categorically agree not to subpoena any other
White House tape, paper, or document. This would mean that my ability to secure
evidence bearing upon criminal wrongdoing by high White House officials would
be left to the discretion of White House counsel. Judging from the difficulties we
have had in the past receiving documents, memoranda, and other papers, we
would have little hope of getting evidence in the future.

These points should be borne In mind in considering whether the proposal put
before me is "very reasonable."

I have a strong desire to avoid any form of confrontation, but I could not
conscientiously agree to your stipulations without unfaithfulness to the pledges
which I gave the Senate prior to my appointment. It is enough to point out that
the fourth stipulation would require me to forego further legal challenge to
claims of executive privilege. I categorically assured the Senate Judiciary Com-
mittee that I would challenge such claims so far as the law permitted. The At-
torney General was confirmed on the strength of that assurance. I cannot break
my promise now.

Sincerely, ARCHiBALD Cox, Special Prosecutor.

THE WHrr HousE,
'Washington, D.C., December 12, 1978.

D&Az SENATOB MATHIAS: In responding to your letter of December 5th, I
would first like to state without equivocation that in recent discussions there
has been no intention of which I am aware to discredit Elliot Richardson or to
in any way impugn his integrity or cast doubt on his veracity. I have the highest
regard for Mr. Richardson and consider him a good personal friend.

It is not unique that several people, bent on the mutual goal of resolving a
problem rather than contemporaneously recording their actions, will differ in
their recollection of events leading up to a decision.



This is particularly the case in regard to the recollections of those who were
involved in the meeting of Friday, October 19, which set in train, events which
led up to the discharge of Mr. Cox. Individual recollections of specific details
of that meeting may differ, but not the good faith of those attempting to recall
what took place. For this reason, I sincerely feel that any further debate on this
matter can serve no constructive purpose. I believe Elliott, with whom I have
discussed the whole affair, shares my feeling. It is for this reason that I hope
and trust that this response will satisfy your inquiry and lay this Issue to rest.

I thank you for your thoughtfulness In writing and affording me this oppor-
tunity to provide my comments.

Sincerely,
ALPxANrzR M. HAze, Jr.,
GeneraZ, U.S. Army (Retired),

Assistant to the President.

Senator EASTLAND. The Chairman has been requested to have Mr.
Bork in the morning.

It has nothing in the world to do with the hearings on Senator
Saxbe and Senator Saxbe need not be here.

We will recess now until 10 o'clock in the morning and there will be
an executive session of the committee at 2 o'clock tomorrow afternoon.

Mr. JAwoRSix. Mr. Chairman, may I be excused too? It will not be
necessary for me to be here ?

Senator EASTLAWD. No, sir, it will not be.
The committee is recessed.
[Whereupon, at 6:10 p.m., the committee recessed to reconvene at

10 a.m., Thursday, December 13, 1973.]


